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Chairman’s Statement
FEWRE

PEGASUS
MOTION
PICTURES

KTEE=E

=S/

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Pegasus Entertainment Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), | am pleased to present to you
the Group’s annual report for the year ended 30 June 2017 (the “year
under review").

Business Review

During the year under review, the film industry in the People’s Republic of
China (the "PRC") has maintained steady growth in terms of box office
receipts, number of new cinemas and cinema screens. According to the
State Administration of Press, Publication, Radio, Film and Television (%
FTEEMREEZLRB) ("SAPPRFT”), the total national box office receipts in
the first half of 2017 increased 10.49% to approximately Renminbi (“RMB")
27.2 billion from the corresponding period in 2016. The number of new
cinemas and new cinema screens were 460 and 2,584, respectively in the
first half of 2017. With the total number of cinema screens reaching over
45,000, the PRC has officially overtaken the United States to become the
country with most cinema screens around the globe. The cinema’s
admissions in the PRC were reached to approximately 781 million in the
first half of 2017, representing a period-on-period growth of 7.92%. On
the other hand, total box office receipts in Hong Kong slightly dropped
about 4.2% in the first half of 2017; however, the Group believes that this
is just a healthy adjustment, and the industry is still on the right
developmental track for continuous growth.
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Regarding our film production business, the Group has released two films,
namely “Bounty Hunters” (E £ J& A) and “S Storm” (S/& £ ) during the
year under review. “Bounty Hunters” (<278 A ) was a large-scale adventure
action film produced by a joint venture among the Group and production
companies from Korea and the PRC, starring Lee Min Ho (&%) and Wallace
Chung ($8)2 R ); and “S Storm” (S/& % ) was a general-scale action film and
a sequel to the Group's previously released film entitled “Z Storm” (Z[E %),
starring Louis Koo (& RA%%) and Julian Cheung (3R 7% ).

In recent years, the Group has been producing multiple film genres, such as
martial arts, drama, crime and romantic features, etc., aiming to reach a
wider audience with different interests. We also invested in western sci-fi
and animation films. For instance, the international blockbuster movie
“Inversion” (tentative name), which its filming is tentatively scheduled to
take place in early 2018. “Ballerina” (X £ & & &), a meaningful French
animated film presented by the Group dubbed voice acting by me and
Stephanie Au ([ £ J¥), three-time Olympic swimmer, which debuted in
Hong Kong in August 2017. We believe this diversification strategy can
empower us to provide quality entertainment for the audiences in Hong
Kong and the PRC as well as the international.

As for our film exhibition operations, with the overall downward adjustment
of the film exhibition industry in Hong Kong, our flagship cinema complex,
Cinema City Langham Place, has also recorded a slight decrease of 2.6% of
the box office receipts during the year under review; however, it has still
maintained the number one ranking in terms of box office receipts among
all cinemas in Hong Kong over the year under review and up to August
2017. During the year under review, the Group has made efforts to explore
suitable sites for opening new cinemas in order to expand our film
exhibition operations. In August 2017, Cinema City Chai Wan, the Group’s
second cinema in Hong Kong was officially opened. As the only cinema in
Chai Wan, Cinema City Chai Wan offers a convenient entertainment
experience for residents throughout the community. During the soft
opening period in July 2017, the cinema was recorded a promising
attendance of our cinemagoers. In the same month, Cinema City JP, the
Group's third cinema in Hong Kong was also opened for trial operation and
will officially commence operation in late September 2017. The encouraging
response of these cinemas have fueled our confidence in the film exhibition
business, and the Group will accelerate laying the groundwork for the
opening of two new additional cinemas located in Causeway Bay and Tsuen
Wan, slated for operation in the fourth quarter of 2017.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEmE

Results for the Year and Dividend

For the year ended 30 June 2017, the Group reported total revenues of
approximately Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$") 225.6 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 49.5% over the corresponding period last year.
This was mainly attributable to the decrease in the revenue from film and
television (“TV") series production and distribution segment. During the
corresponding period last year, impressive revenue was recorded for the
large-scale film “Ip Man 3" (¥ f#3), while during the year under review,
only the contributions mainly from “S Storm” (S/E\%) were reflected in the
revenue total, and “Bounty Hunters” (B &8 A ) was a film jointly produced by
the Group and production companies from Korea and the PRC, the results
were reflected in the share of results of a joint venture. Loss attributable to
owners of the Company was HK$40.0 million during the year under review,
compared with the corresponding period last year of approximately
HK$72.6 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 44.9%, the
decrease was mainly attributable to the reduction of the impairment losses
recognised during the year under review.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 30 June 2017.

Prospects

Looking ahead, in the face of a rapid and continuous industry growth, the
growth momentum has remained strong in the PRC, we will maintain the
steady expansion of our core businesses based on the firm foundation as
well as of our established brand we have built so far. On the one hand, we
are committed to strengthen our film and TV series production and
distribution operations by producing and investing in more diversified and
higher quality films; on the other hand we will accelerate our progress in
developing our film exhibition operations by opening more cinemas in Hong
Kong and the PRC.

Appreciation
In closing, | would like to express my deep appreciation to all fellow Board
members and our staff for their tireless dedication and hard work. On

behalf of the Board, | would also like to thank our shareholders for their
ongoing support and trust in our vision and development.

Wong Pak Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 September 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Business Review

The Group is principally engaged in (i) film and TV series production,
distribution and licensing of film rights, (ii) film exhibitions, (iii) post-
production, and (iv) advertising, marketing and publication. The Group
produces films and TV series in the Chinese language with Hong Kong and
the PRC as its major markets. The Group also operates both a cinema and a
post-production house in Hong Kong during the year under review.

Film and TV series production and distribution

During the year under review, film and TV series production and distribution
operations had remained one of the core businesses of the Group with
reported revenues of approximately HK$83.9 million, a decrease of
approximately 72.1% compared to the corresponding period last year. This
was because even though two films were released during the year under
review, namely “Bounty Hunters” (B €% A) and “S Storm” (S& %), only
the contributions from “S Storm” (S/& %) were reflected in the revenue,
while “Bounty Hunters” (B & &
Group and production companies from Korea and the PRC, the results of
which were reflected in the share of the results of a joint venture. During
the corresponding period last year, the Group released two films, namely
“Ip Man 3" (% [3) and “Wong Ka Yan” (E & fik), however, revenues
were mainly bolstered by the large-scale blockbuster “lp Man 3" (£ 3).
“Bounty Hunters” (E %% A) generated revenue over HK$152.6 million to
the joint venture, in return it attributed net profit to the Group of
approximately HK$13.5 million during the year under review. As a result,
the profit from this business segment was decreased from HK$56.8 million
during the corresponding period last year to HK$22.1 million during the

) was a film jointly produced by the

year under review.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIRE & W DT

Currently, the Group has a number of films and TV series in the production
pipeline which are scheduled for release during the next financial year.
These include two films that are in the pre-release stage: “Lucid Dreams”
(NFE 2 E R4, a general-scale drama film starring Kevin Cheng (%5
5258), Louis Cheung (3R#£52), Dada Chan (F&%%) and Stephy Tang (B8EEfiR)
and directed by Teddy Robin (Z=#78 = ); and “Tomorrow Is Another Day”
(=%£7E), a general-scale drama film starring Teresa Mo (FE3%£45) and Ray
Lui (& R f&). “The Invincible Dragon” (J1 8 T~ B%) is a large-scale action
film starring Max Zhang (5 &) and Anderson Silva, a former UFC
middleweight champion, and directed by Fruit Chan (B ), which has now
entered into the final stage of production.

In addition, several more films are scheduled to start production by the
forthcoming financial year, namely, “L Storm” (L/& %), a large-scale action
film and sequel to the Group's previously released films entitled “Z Storm”
(ZR £) and "S Storm” (S[& £), starring Louis Koo (& X #4) and Julian
Cheung (5R%5 #%); along with “Ip Man 4" (¥f4), the forth sequel in the “Ip
Man” (Z£[) film series starring Donnie Yen (21 ).

Other than film production, the Group has been extending its scope of film
development by investing in a number of movies across different genres
and from different countries in order to cater to wider audience interests.
Subsequent to the year under review, the Group invested in the distribution
of a meaningful French animated film “Ballerina” (X 1{# & & &) that was
released in August 2017, voice acting by Mr. Wong Pak Ming (E1418), the
Chairman of the Board, and Stephanie Au ([& £& J%), three-time Olympic
swimmer. Moreover, the Group also invested in an international blockbuster
movie entitled “Inversion” (tentative name) to be produced for worldwide
theatrical distribution. “Inversion” is a science fiction movie about a
streetwise American con man and a young Chinese physicist who race
against the clock to save the earth from a terrifying loss of gravity. Crystal
Liu (%I 75 JE), a famous Chinese actress is part of the main cast. The pre-
production of “Inversion” is underway with filming and worldwide
theatrical distribution tentatively scheduled to take place in early 2018 and
by 2019, respectively. Based on the outstanding pre-sale performance track
record, the Group expects the film to receive a positive market response
when it is finally released. This will serve as a significant catalyst for income
growth over the next few years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In the future, the Group will continue to identify quality investment
opportunities in film and TV series projects worldwide, not only to
strengthen the Group'’s revenue base, but also to enrich its knowledge and
experience for tapping into the global market. The Group has also made
use of the 3-year strategic cooperation framework with R 73 (KE) B
R A 7] (in English, for identification purpose only, Huace Pictures (Tianjin)
Co., Ltd.) (“Huace Pictures”) entered in June 2016 to strengthen the
Group's capability and to further extend penetration into the PRC film
market. “L Storm” (L[ % ) will be the second cooperative venture between
the Group and Huace Pictures in which the Group will serve as producer
and Huace Pictures will be the film’s distributor across the PRC.

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 9 October 2012 (the
“Prospectus”) and the reports published in previous financial years, various
factors such as number of films distributed by the Group, the scale,
schedule of film release and the result of a film could have significant
impact on the Group's results. Taking all these factors into consideration,
the Group's interim financial results may not be indicative of the Group’s
financial results of a full year and the Group’s financial performance would
fluctuate from period to period.

Film exhibition

In terms of film exhibition operations, the Group’s flagship cinema complex
— Cinema City Langham Place, which is situated in a prime location of
Mongkok, has maintained its number one ranking in terms of box office
receipts among all cinemas in Hong Kong during the year under review.

As the only cinema in Hong Kong equipped with “4Dx" exclusive viewing
technology, which provides an advanced, sophisticated cinematic
experience for audiences, Cinema City Langham Place has been maintaining
its primary position as the largest box office receipts cinema in Hong Kong.
During the year under review, the box office receipts came to approximately
HK$119.6 million, which was a slight decrease of approximately 2.6% year
on year. The Group considers the performance of Cinema City Langham
Place outperforming the market as its drop was less than the overall market
given the fact that the total Hong Kong box office receipts in the first half
of 2017 were down 4.2% and Cinema City Langham Place still ranked top
of the list among all cinemas in Hong Kong.

As for the Group's first cinema in the PRC, located in “Vivo City” (1823 ),
a new large-scale retail complex in the Central Business District (CBD) of
southwest Shanghai, renovation work has already been completed.
Currently, “Vivo City” (18 2 #) is under refurbishment and undergoing
structure consolidation work. Given that we need to coordinate with “Vivo
City” (18 2 3%) and wait for its completion on the construction work, we
expect the cinema’s commencement date will be delayed and begin full
operation in late 2017. Nevertheless, the cinema is currently under the trial
operation period, the Group is look forward to commence full operation as
early as practicable.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIRE & W DT

During the year under review, the Group successfully expanded its film
exhibition business and scheduled to open four new cinemas in different
strategic locations across the territory, including Chai Wan, Causeway Bay
and Tsuen Wan.

Cinema City Chai Wan first opened for trial operation in mid-July 2017 and
officially started operation in August 2017. This is the Group's second
cinema in Hong Kong, and is now the only cinema operated in the Chai
Wan district. With five movie halls and approximately 500 seats, equipped
with the world’s most advanced 4K projection and 7.1 Dolby surround
sound systems, Cinema City Chai Wan has enjoyed an overwhelmingly
positive response and has achieved a promising attendance in its first
month of business. In addition, Cinema City JP, the Group’s third cinema in
Hong Kong, has approximately 700 seats and is one of the few cinemas in
Hong Kong equipped with a 4K laser phosphor projection system, which
has already soft opened in mid-August 2017. The fourth cinema in
Causeway Bay and the fifth cinema in Tsuen Wan are expected to open for
business in the fourth quarter of 2017. With 5 cinemas in full operation by
the end of 2017, the Group is expected to became one of the three largest
cinema circuits in Hong Kong.

Cinema City Langham Place has been another key revenue driver for the
Group. During the year under review, revenue from film exhibition
amounted to approximately HK$137.3 million, accounting for
approximately 60.8% of total revenue of the Group. The revenue amount
was similar to the corresponding period last year, while loss of this business
segment increased significantly from HK$12.9 million during the
corresponding period last year to approximately HK$25.6 million this year
mainly attributable to the accounting treatment relating to the lease
recognition and the amortisation of the rent-free period as compensation
for the renovation period offered by the landlords of all the new cinemas
were not in operation during the year under review. Pursuant to the lease
agreements entered into between the Group and the landlords of all the
new cinemas, rent-free periods ranging from 3 to 9 months were offered
by the landlords. Based on the accepted accounting principles, practices
and policies adopted by the Group, these rent-free incentives were treated
as a uniform reduction of overall rental expenses on a straight-line or
systematic basis over the entire lease term. Despite the fact that the lease
terms began during the year under review and rental payments had not to
pay during the rent-free periods, rental expenses were immediately
recognised under the aforementioned accounting treatment while revenues
only began to generate when the cinema started operations, which was
after the year under review.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Notwithstanding the short-term losses as mentioned above, the Group
believes that these new cinemas will bring steady and continual cash
returns for the Group, once the cinemas start operations, which will, in
turn, help further expand the overall revenue base of the Group. The Group
is confident that the performance of film exhibition will be further improved
going forward. Therefore, the Group is optimistic about prospects for the
film exhibition business and will be on the lookout for any chance to open
more cinemas in Hong Kong as well as in the PRC.

Post-production

Post-production plays an important role in the Group’s overall integrated
film production process. In order to fully control this business segment, the
Group has acquired the remaining 20% equity stake from the owner of the
non-controlling interest during the year under review. In spite of a loss of
HK$3.2 million recorded during the year under review, the loss was
narrowed when compared with HK$3.8 million loss in the corresponding
period last year. Going forward, the post-production business is poised to
maintain its small-scale operation to support the Group’s overall profitability
in the film production, and more importantly to benefit the Group’s film
production business in terms of efficiency and cost control.

Advertising, marketing and publication

The film advertising and marketing business has allowed the Group to
benefit from sophisticated advertising and promotion strategies as well as
cost reductions during the year under review. As for the publication
business, the Group ceased the publication of the monthly luxury lifestyle
magazine — “Platinum of UnionPay” (#RH#H <€) in August 2016 in view
of its unsatisfactory performance in order to save costs and to reallocate the
Group's resources to make further investments in other business segments.
As a result, the losses in this business segment narrowed substantially from
HK$79.9 million during the corresponding period last year to approximately
HK$1.9 million this year.

The Group continues to review the overall structure and strategies of its
print and digital media publication business, including using the Group's
publication platform for promotional events and joint film marketing
campaigns thereby creating a synergy effect from the Group’s publication
business and film production, distribution, advertising and marketing
businesses. By focusing on other business segments, the re-orientation of
print and digital media publication operations has helped strengthen the
core business development of the Group, which forms an important part of
the Group’s film production value chain. The Group intends to maintain this
business segment as a small-scale operation with a supportive role to the
Group's core businesses before a solid development plan comes up.
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Outlook

After the explosive growth in terms of total national box office receipts over
the past few years, the pace of growth for the entire film industry in the
PRC has slowed since 2016. However, as compared to the growth rate of
the national box office receipts in 2016 of 3.7%, the growth rate in the
first half of 2017 has regained the upward momentum, the Group believes
that this is just a healthy adjustment and the industry by and large still has
great potential growth over the long run.

In addition, on-going favourable policies were issued by the PRC
government to support and governance the development of the film
business operations. In November 2016, the Film Industry Promotion Law of
the PRC (R Bl B E ¥ (2# %) was adopted at the Standing Committee
of the Twelfth National People’s Congress of the PRC (FREIZE+ — @2 &
ARRE KRG EHKZE B E) for the purposes of promoting investment in
film production and encouraging the long-term development of the film
industry. The above mentioned law came into force on 1 March 2017. The
Group believes such favourable policies would continue to make better
guidance for the industry participants and healthy environment of the film
market.

In Hong Kong, the government has also clearly demonstrated its support
for continuing to promote the development of the film industry. To this
end, the Hong Kong Government in March 2017 announced two
commercial sites which are slated for sale in Kai Tak and in Sha Tin, and the
announcement included that in the land lease was a required minimum
number of cinema seats. The new measures aim to facilitate local cinema
development with a view to attracting audiences and promoting the long-
term growth of Hong Kong's film industry. With the support of the Hong
Kong Government, the Group remains optimistic about the future prospects
for the industry.

Looking forward, the development of the film market will continue to be
driven by high quality films and increasing number of the cinema screens.
Based on these industry drivers, the Group will continue to strategically
focus on its established core businesses in film production and exhibition to
strengthen the integration of its film production value chain and effectively
utilise its available resources to capture business opportunities within the
film industry in the PRC and Hong Kong in order to maximise the Group's
value and returns to shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial Review
Revenue and Gross profit

Revenue of the Group for the year under review amounted to
approximately HK$225.6 million, representing a decrease of approximately
HK$220.8 million or 49.5% compared to the corresponding period last
year, mainly contributed by revenue from the business segments of film and
TV series production and distribution and film exhibition of approximately
HK$83.9 million and HK$137.3 million, respectively. Despite the Group
released two films during both the year under review and the corresponding
period last year, the significant decrease in revenue of film and TV series
production and distribution was mainly due to the revenue derived from
the large-scale blockbuster “Ip Man 3" (% 3) released in last year whilst
the overall scale of the films released during the year under review were
comparatively smaller than the films released in last year. Moreover,
“Bounty Hunters” (2 & 8 A), one of the two films released during the
year under review, was a film jointly produced by the Group and production
companies from Korea and the PRC, its results were reflected in the share
of results of a joint venture. For film exhibition segment, the revenue for
the year under review was maintained the level to the corresponding period
last year.

Gross profit of the Group was approximately HK$116.3 million representing
a decrease of approximately HK$70.6 million or approximately 37.8%
compared to the corresponding period last year. Gross profit margin for the
year under review was approximately 51.5%, which showed a significant
increase from that of approximately 41.9% for the corresponding period
last year. This was mainly attributable to the increase of the gross profit
margin of the film and TV series production and distribution segment from
36.8% last year to 42.4% this year, the production of general-scale film
during the year under review as opposed to a large-scale film, due to the
relatively large costs involved, large-scale production inherently has a lower
gross profit margin. Moreover, the gross profit margin for film exhibition
segment was slightly increased approximately 3.2 percentage points from
54.3% last year to 57.5% this year following the Group’s strictly control in
direct cost.

Other gains and income

Other gains and income was approximately HK$11.9 million for the year
under review, representing an increase of approximately HK$7.2 million or
approximately 152.1% compared to the corresponding period last year.
This was mainly due to (i) a compensation of approximately HK$5.3 million
according to the delay in handover of a leased cinema premises from the
landlord in the PRC during the year under review; and (ii) the investment
income from investments in film/drama production of approximately
HK$1.4 million during the year under review, whilst no such income were
recorded in the corresponding period last year.
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Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately HK$7.7 million
or 7.5% from approximately HK$102.8 million for the corresponding period
last year to approximately HK$110.5 million for the year under review. This
was mainly due to the increase of rental related expenses of cinema
operations of approximately HK$21.2 million in aggregate during the year
under review attributable to the accounting treatment relating to the lease
recognition and the amortisation of the rent-free period offered by the
landlords of all the new cinemas were not in operation as mentioned in the
film exhibition section of the Business Review; and such increase was set off
by the decrease of film advertising, promotion and distribution costs of
approximately HK$13.5 million regarding the number and scale of films
released during the year under review as aforementioned.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by approximately HK$43.7 million or
approximately 49.9% from approximately HK$87.7 million for the
corresponding period last year to approximately HK$43.9 million for the
year under review. This was mainly due to (i) the grant of share options by
the Company on 13 July 2015 which resulted in a charge of approximately
HK$25.3 million to the administrative expenses during the corresponding
period last year; (i) the amortisation of intangible assets for the advertising,
marketing and publication segment of approximately HK$11.2 million
during the corresponding period last year; and (iii) the discretionary bonus
paid to the Directors of HK$6.0 million during the corresponding period last
year, whilst no such expenses were recognised during the year under
review.

Net foreign exchange loss

Net foreign exchange loss decreased by approximately HK$1.8 million from
approximately HK$6.8 million for the corresponding last year to
approximately HK$5.0 million for the year under review. This was mainly
due to the extent of the depreciation of RMB against HK$ was narrowed
down during the year under review.

Impairment losses recognised for the year

Total impairment losses recognised for the year decreased by approximately
HK$45.3 million or approximately 69.0% from approximately HK$65.6
million for the corresponding period last year to approximately HK$20.4
million for the year under review. During the year under review, impairment
loss was recognised on interest in Jade Dynasty Holdings Limited, an
associate of the Group, and its subsidiaries (collectively, “JDH Group”) due
to the recoverable amount of JDH Group, which is its value in use,
according to the Group’s assessment of its budget and expected future
cashflows is less than its carrying amount.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Impairment loss on goodwill and intangible assets amounted to
approximately HK$43.1 million and HK$20.5 million respectively in respect
of the uncertainty of the publication business were recognised for the
corresponding period last year, whilst no such impairment losses were
recognised during the year under review.

Share of results of associates

During the year under review, the Group had two associates, JDH Group
and Supreme Art Entertainment Limited (“Supreme Art”), an associate the
Group acquired in July 2016.

The operation of JDH Group had recorded a loss attributable to the Group
of approximately HK$3.8 million. JDH Group generated revenue from the
businesses of comics publication and licensing of its database of comic
stories and comics heroes for films, TV series and theme park development
as well as related product merchandising. As compared to a loss from the
corresponding period last year of approximately HK$0.2 million, the
increase in loss for the year under review was mainly due to the decrease in
the licensing income derived from its database of comic stories and comic
heroes for film, TV series and theme park development.

The operation of Supreme Art had recorded a profit attributable to the
Group of approximately HK$2.1 million. Supreme Art is engaged in the
provision of artiste management and agency services which is benefit to the
Group's film production business.

Share of results of a joint venture

Bounty Productions Limited (“BPL"”) was set up by the Group with two
independent third parties for the production and distribution of the film,
“Bounty Hunters” (B & % A), of which the Group owns as to 40%
interest. “Bounty Hunters” (2 % 8 A) was released in July 2016 and
generated revenue of approximately HK$152.6 million to the joint venture
this year, in return attributed net profit to the Group of approximately

HK$13.5 million during the year under review.
Income tax expense

The income tax expense of the Group for the year under review amounted
to approximately HK$1.0 million (2016: HK$10.3 million) at the effective
tax rate, excluding certain tax losses not recognised and non-taxable items
which include impairment losses recognised and share of results of
associates and a joint venture that were net of tax, was approximately
19.2% (2016: 18.7%).
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Loss for the year under review

The Group's loss and total comprehensive expense attributable to owners
of the Company for the year under review amounted to approximately
HK$40.0 million (2016: HK$72.6 million) and HK$41.2 million (2016:
HK$73.5 million) respectively. The improvement of the results for the year
under review was primarily resulted from the significant increase in other
income and decreases in administrative expenses and of impairment losses
recognised, being set off against the decrease in revenue and gross profit
contributed by film and TV series production and distribution as well as film
exhibition businesses during the year under review as aforementioned.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

As at 30 June 2017, the Group's bank balances and cash amounted to
approximately HK$63.2 million (30 June 2016: HK$103.3 million), which
are denominated mainly in HK$, United States Dollar (“US$") and RMB.

As at 30 June 2017, the Group did not have any interest-bearing loans and
shareholders’ loans (30 June 2016: Nil). Gearing ratio was not applicable as
at 30 June 2016 and 2017.

The Group had un-utilised credit facilities totaling HK$55.0 million as at 30
June 2017 (30 June 2016: HK$35.0 million). The Group has maintained
these general banking facilities for flexibility.

As at 30 June 2017, the Group had total non-current assets of
approximately HK$184.5 million (30 June 2016: HK$170.2 million), net
current assets of approximately HK$123.3 million (30 June 2016: HK$162.1
million) and net assets of approximately HK$307.7 million (30 June 2016:
HK$332.3 million). The current ratio of the Group, representing the ratio of
current assets over current liabilities, was approximately 1.8 as at 30 June
2017 (30 June 2016: 2.3).

During the year ended 30 June 2017, the Group mainly funded its liquidity
by the net proceeds from the listing of the Company’s shares on the
Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 31 October 2012 (the “Listing”) and issue of new
shares pursuant to the subscription rights attaching to the warrants of the
Company and resources generated internally. The Group’s financial
resources are sufficient to support its business and operations. The Group
would also consider other financing activities when appropriate business
opportunities arise under favourable market conditions.

16 Pegasus Entertainment Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2016/17

EEFEANBR

REIBEFERN  AAr#EAEBRLEAEBREEREZR
@5 R4 EBA00F B T(2016%F : B 726
AET)RAEBMN2B8ET(20165F : BEK73588
TL) e REIBEFE EENE T B MR E U A KIE AN
RAOKRBEX RERRARBAEBERLD e ES
EEF BHREEERBETUAREY N ES TR
Weas R EFRAFTHK S o

RBEE  MBERRELER

R2017F6 A308 » REBEMRTEBMREHAE
#6328 8BT(20165F6 5300 : #B¥103.3FET)
FELEE - ET((ET])) RARKEEE -

R2017F6 A30H ' AEBWEIMFTEERKLKE
E#(20165F6 A30H : &) - R 2016 F K% 201746 A
30 BEAGBLRIAEA -

M2017F6 A30H  AEERNKRGAEZEREARLAS
S5 08 &70(2016F6 A30H « BH#35.0687T) ©
AEBMERBIHE —RIRITRE - WREBEFE -

MR201756 A30H - "EEEGIERBEELEBELNE
184 5B 8L(2016%F6 A308 : BE1702HET)
MEEEFENEE1233FE (201696 A308 ¢
EEE162. 15 &) REEFELNEE307.75887L(2016
F6H30H : BH3323FHETL) c M2017F6A30H -
AEENRBLE(RBEERRSEEMNL X)L
£18(20165F6 A30H :2.3) °

HE2017F6 A30ALLFE  AEEXZFBAANA]
DR 2012F10A3MBEETEH AR SMERAF
(MR al R Em ([ LM RIBEAR BRI E
EHSHRBRETHROMSRBEFERANDER
BNRBES AEENWBEREAIIFEBRE
B AEBTSAELREEXEBES BETIBEERF
BE AV E RS o



Management Discussion and Analysis

Fund Raising Activity

The following fund arising activity of the Group had occurred during the
year under review.

Issue of new shares pursuant to the subscription rights
attaching to the warrants of the Company

On 12 December 2013, the placing of 96,000,000 non-listed warrants to
twelve placees was completed. The warrants conferring the rights to
subscribe for an aggregate of 96,000,000 subscription shares at a
subscription price of HK$0.93 per subscription share. The warrants were
issued under the general mandate granted to the Directors at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 31 October 2013. Assuming the
full exercise of the subscription rights attaching to the warrants, it is
expected that approximately HK$89.3 million will be raised and such net
proceeds will be used for general working capital of the Group.

As a result of each of the shares of par value at HK$0.01 being subdivided
into four subdivided shares of par value at HK$0.0025 each as effective
from 22 July 2015, based on the relevant terms of the warrants, the
exercise price of the warrants was adjusted from HK$0.93 per share to
HK$0.233 per subdivided share, where such adjustment was effective from
the close of business of the business day immediately preceding the date on
which the share subdivision became effective. In accordance with the
adjustment of the exercise price of the warrants as aforesaid, the number
of shares falling to be issued upon exercise of the warrants changed from
67,000,000 shares to 267,424,892 subdivided shares as at 22 July 2015. As
at 30 June 2016, 159,656,653 warrants were outstanding.

During the year ended 30 June 2017, a total of 71,845,494 warrants were
exercised which resulted in the Company’s issue and allotment of
71,845,494 new shares of HK$0.233 each. During the year ended 30 June
2017, the net proceeds from the exercise of warrants amounted to
approximately HK$16.7 million being utilised as general working capital as
intended, which had been used for the Group’s film production costs. As at
30 June 2017, the Company had no outstanding warrants as all warrants
without exercise were expired on 11 December 2016.

Employee Information

As at 30 June 2017, the Group had 122 full-time employees (30 June 2016:
94). Staff costs, including Directors’ remuneration and part-time staff,
amounted to approximately HK$28.7 million for the year ended 30 June
2017 (2016: HK$34.7 million).
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The Group offers a comprehensive and competitive remuneration and
benefits package to all its employees. The Group has adopted a share
option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible persons who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. The Group has also adopted other employee benefits including
a provident fund scheme for its employees in Hong Kong, as required under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, and has participated in
employee pension schemes organised and governed by the relevant local
governments for its employees in the PRC.

Charge on Assets

The Group's bank deposits of approximately HK$30.5 million and HK$30.6
million as at 30 June 2016 and 2017, respectively were pledged to secure a
general banking facility of HK$30.0 million available to the Group. As at 30
June 2017, the Group’s bank deposits of approximately HK$0.7 million (30
June 2016: HK$0.7 million) were pledged to secure the bank guarantee
provided by a subsidiary of the Company regarding its due payment under
a cinema equipment rental agreement.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group’s business operations were conducted mainly in Hong Kong
with transactions principally denominated in HK$, US$ and RMB. The
monetary assets and liabilities are denominated mainly in HK$, US$ and
RMB. Apart from HK$, which is pegged to US$, any significant exchange
rate fluctuations of HK$ against RMB may have a financial impact to the
Group. During the year under review, there was no significant fluctuation in
the exchange rates of these currencies.

The Group did not engage in any derivatives activities and did not commit
to any financial instruments to hedge its statement of financial position
exposure during the year ended 30 June 2017.

Capital Commitment

Save as disclosed in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements, there
were no other capital commitment for the Group as at 30 June 2016 and
2017.

The commitments are to be financed by internal resources of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 30 June 2016 and 2017, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Use of Proceeds from the Listing

The planned use of proceeds from the Listing as disclosed in the Prospectus
were based on the best estimation of future market conditions made by the
Group at the time of preparing the Prospectus, while the proceeds were
applied in accordance with the actual development of the market.

From 31 October 2012, the date of the Listing, to 30 June 2017, the net
proceeds from the Listing had been applied as follows:
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LW RERERE
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201210 A31B( LW HE)#®E2017F6 A308
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Actual use of
proceeds from
the date of the

Total use of
proceeds as

described in the Listing to

Prospectus 30 June 2017

mEmHEEER

BRER 20176 A30H

PRt 18 SR8 Fri8RIE

EABE EREAEHE

HK$’ million HKS$’ million

BEEET BEEET

Expansion of film production business R B RUEER 58.4 58.4
Invest in equipment for post-production KB 1% BB ER G 9.8 7.4
Staff recruitment BEET 2.8 2.8
General working capital —MREEES 2.5 2.5
Total A&t 73.5 71.1

The un-utilised proceeds were deposited in the Group’s bank accounts
located in Hong Kong.

The Group intended to expand its film production business by releasing
eleven films during the two financial years ended 30 June 2013 and 2014.
These eleven films had been released up to the financial year ended 30
June 2017.

The Group has intended to undertake certain post-production works of its
own films by investing up to HK$11.0 million from the net proceeds in
post-production equipment and recruiting staff for its operation. The Group
established its in-house post-production arm in Hong Kong to engage in
digital media post-production operations. The Directors expected that the
remaining net proceeds will continue to be used for procuring the post-
production equipment to strengthen the business operation.

The Directors considered that no modification of the planned use of
proceeds described in the Prospectus was required.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management
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Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Pak Ming (“Mr. Wong"), M.H., aged 71, was appointed as a
Director on 8 March 2012 and was redesignated as an executive Director
and appointed as the chairman of the Board on 5 October 2012. Mr. Wong
is responsible for the strategic planning of the Group. He is an artist and
filmmaker in Hong Kong, who formed Cinema City Company Limited and
Cinema City (Film Production) Company Limited, both of which are film
production companies, in 1980s. In 1990, Mr. Wong founded Mandarin
Films Limited. Mr. Wong was an executive director of Nine Express Limited,
formerly known as China Mandarin Holdings Limited (“Nine Express”) (Stock
Code: 0009), shares of which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange from 21 August 2001 to 18 August 2009. Mr. Wong has over 30
years of experience in the film industry for each of the roles as executive
producer, script writer and artist and over 25 years of experience as film
director. He has participated in more than 100 films throughout his career.
Mr. Wong was awarded the Medal of Honour by the HKSAR Government
in 2015. He has been the chairman of the Movie Producers and Distribution
Association since 1997. He was a member of the Hong Kong-Taiwan
Cultural Co-operation Committee under Hong Kong-Taiwan Economic and
Cultural Cooperation and Promotion Council from 1 August 2013 to 31
October 2015. He was a member of the Hong Kong Film Development
Council from April 2011 to March 2013. Mr. Wong is the father of Ms.
Wong Yee Kwan Alvina and Mr. Wong Chi Woon Edmond, both executive
Directors.

Ms. Wong Yee Kwan Alvina (“Ms. Alvina Wong"”), aged 41, was
appointed as a Director on 15 March 2012 and was redesignated as an
executive Director on 5 October 2012. Ms. Alvina Wong is responsible for
the sales and distribution functions as well as the cinema operation of the
Group and has around 15 years of experience in the film industry, including
assessing market reception of proposed films, providing promotional
services for films and liaising with film distributors and licencees. Ms. Alvina
Wong was an executive director of Nine Express from 1 September 2003 to
1 April 2009. Ms. Alvina Wong graduated from the University of Toronto
with a bachelor’s degree in Arts in June 1998. Since January 2017, Ms.
Alvina Wong has been a committee member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference (Ff Bl A R B # 7 & #). Ms. Alvina
Wong is the daughter of Mr. Wong and the sister of Mr. Wong Chi Woon
Edmond, both executive Directors.

Mr. Wong Chi Woon Edmond (“Mr. Edmond Wong"), aged 38, was
appointed as a Director on 15 March 2012 and was redesignated as an
executive Director on 5 October 2012. Mr. Edmond Wong is responsible for
overseeing film production of the Group. He has around 13 years of
experience in the film industry as script writer and was an executive director
of Nine Express from 3 June 2008 to 13 February 2009. Mr. Edmond Wong
graduated from McMaster University in Canada with a bachelor’s degree in
Arts in June 2002. Mr. Edmond Wong is the son of Mr. Wong and the
brother of Ms. Alvina Wong, both executive Directors.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Kam Tong (“Mr. Lam”), aged 48, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 5 October 2012. Mr. Lam graduated
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in
Business Management in 1991. Mr. Lam is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Lam has over 17 years
of experience in professional audit and extensive experience in the areas of
investor relations management, auditing, mergers and acquisitions and
offshore financing. Since May 2012, he has been an executive director, the
chief financial officer, the company secretary and an authorised
representative of Fantasia Holdings Group Co., Limited (Stock code: 1777),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Since June
2014, he has been a non-executive director of Colour Life Services Group
Co., Limited (Stock code: 1778), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Lam was the chief financial officer, the company
secretary and a qualified accountant of Greentown China Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 3900), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, from May 2006 to October 2008. Mr. Lam was an executive
director and the chief financial officer of China Aoyuan Property Group
Limited (Stock code: 3883), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, from September 2009 to May 2012, and was the company
secretary of such company from December 2008 to May 2012. Mr. Lam
was an independent non-executive director of Sheng Yuan Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 851), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, from November 2010 to March 2014.

Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk (“Mr. Lo"), aged 43, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 5 October 2012. Mr. Lo has over 18
years of experience in business management in a private company which
trades in the PRC and Hong Kong. Since November 2016, Mr. Lo has been
a committee member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (B A RBUARE 2 3).

Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence (“Mr. Tang”), aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 5 October 2012. Mr. Tang is a
member of the Royal Institute of British Architects and a committee
member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (FFEI A
R A % B & ). Mr. Tang is a director of several private companies
engaged in the business including property investment and investment
holding. Mr. Tang was an independent non-executive director and a
member of the audit committee of Nine Express from 1 September 2001 to
31 August 2003 and from 1 December 2005 to 29 May 2008 respectively.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management
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Senior Management

Mr. Chan Chi Ming (“Mr. Chan"”), aged 42, is the chief financial officer
and the company secretary of the Company as well as director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group responsible for assisting the Directors in
overseeing finance and accounting, internal control, investor relations,
mergers and acquisitions, corporate governance and regulatory compliance.
Mr. Chan joined the Group in December 2011. Mr. Chan graduated from
the Hong Kong Baptist University with a bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration (Accounting) in December 2000. Mr. Chan is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Chan had over 11 years of accounting and auditing
experience accumulated from working for various international accounting
firms and a main board listed company in Hong Kong.

Ms. Chan Yuen Yee (“Ms. Chan”), aged 56, is the administration
manager responsible for the overall administrative function and assisting in
production contracts management of the Group. Ms. Chan joined the
Group in October 2009. She obtained a diploma in Management Studies
awarded jointly by Hong Kong Polytechnic University and Hong Kong
Management Association in September 1997. Prior to joining the Group in
2009, she had over 15 years of working experience in administration
management in a film production and distribution company, where she was
mainly responsible for human resources management and office
administration.

Ms. Qian Gao Gao (“Ms. Qian"), aged 56, is the deputy general manager
of It RARBHE 4830 B R A 7] (“Beijing Pegasus”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, responsible for overseeing the operation
of Beijing Pegasus and assisting in all the Group’s business activities in the
PRC. Ms. Qian joined the Group in January 2012. Ms. Qian graduated from
Beijing Institute of Economy (it = 4F & £ ) and obtained a degree of
Industrial Statistics under the Department of Industry and Economy
Administration ( TE&EERE X TEZTEZE) in September 1984. Prior
to joining the Group, Ms. Qian had over 29 years of experience in the film
industry including 8 years in the SAPPRFT where she was mainly responsible
for reviewing the application for film production and participating in film
subsidisation works; and over 20 years in various film production and
distribution companies in the PRC, where she was mainly responsible for
assisting the parent company in Hong Kong on its investment in the PRC
domestic films and submitting application for film productions including
films under the co-production arrangement in the PRC, redevelopment
works for cinemas in the PRC and identifying film investors.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June
2017.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business Review

A fair review of the Group’s business for the year ended 30 June 2017, a
discussion on the Group’s future development in business and the
description of the principal risks and uncertainties that the Group may be
facing are set out in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 6 and the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 7 to 19 of this annual
report. The capital risk management and financial risk management
objectives and policies of the Group are set out in notes 35 and 36(b) to the
consolidated financial statements respectively. An analysis of the Group's
performance during the year using financial key performance indicators is
set out in the Financial Summary on pages 171 to 172 of this annual report.
This discussion forms part of this report.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group respects the environment and is committed to the sustainable
development of the environment and the society. For details of the Group's
environmental policies and performance during the year under review,
please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages
49 to 62 of this annual report.

Compliance with laws and regulations

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable laws,
rules and regulations in particular, those have significant impact on the
Group’s business and operation levels, such as the Amusement Rides
(Safety) Ordinance, the Buildings Energy Efficiency Ordinance, the Places of
Public Entertainment Ordinance, the Food Business Regulation, the Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance and the Competition Ordinance.

In addition to safeguard the interests of the Group’s employees, the Group
is committed to complying with the requirements of the Minimum Wage
Ordinance and the Employment Ordinance.
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On the corporate level, the Group complies with the requirements under
the Companies Ordinance, the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO") as well as the applicable financial reporting standards.

During the year under review, the Group has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Group.

Key relationships with employees, customers and
suppliers

The Group believes that its success depends on the support from key
stakeholders which comprise employees, customers and suppliers.

The Group recognised that employees are the valuable assets of the Group.
The Group has complied with the applicable employment laws and
regulations as well as regularly reviewing the remuneration package of the
Group's employees with reference to market conditions and conform to the
performance, qualifications and experience of employees.

The key customers of the Group include the co-producers, distributors and
cinemagoers. The Group is committed to provide good quality service to its
customers and enhance the loyalty of customers by increasing the
interaction with customers through social media platforms particularly in
film exhibition business, which provide good development to the Group’s
overall performance in long run.

The Group has maintained solid and good relationships with its suppliers
which ensures quality supply so as to provide high quality films and services
to customers.

Results and Dividends

The Group's loss for the year ended 30 June 2017 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

on pages 70 to 71 of this annual report.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year
ended 30 June 2017 (2016: Nil).

Segment Information

Details of the segment information of the Group are set out in note 6 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Financial Summary

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years as extracted from the consolidated financial
statements in the annual reports 2013/14, 2014/15 and 2015/16 and this
annual report, respectively are set out on pages 171 to 172 of this annual
report.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

Bank Borrowing

The Group did not have bank borrowings as at 30 June 2017 (30 June
2016: Nil).

Interest Capitalised

The Group has not capitalised any interest during the year ended 30 June
2017 (2016: Nil).

Share Capital and Warrants

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and warrants during
the year ended 30 June 2017 are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Details of other equity-linked agreements are included in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme" in this report.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the year ended 30 June 2017 are set out in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 74 of this annual report, respectively.

Distributable Reserves

As at 30 June 2017, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
approximately HK$291,630,000 (30 June 2016: HK$293,974,000).
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the year
ended 30 June 2017.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 30 June 2017, income received/receivable from the
top five customers in aggregate accounted for approximately 24.3% (2016:
49.0%) of the Group's revenue. During the same period, income received/
receivable from the single largest customer accounted for approximately
11.7% (2016: 19.7%) of the Group's revenue.

During the year ended 30 June 2017, the fees paid/payable to the top five
suppliers in aggregate constituted approximately 30.6% (2016: 34.2%) of
the Group's total fees paid/payable to the suppliers. During the same
period, fees paid/payable to the largest supplier constituted approximately
8.2% (2016: 19.6%) of the Group’s total fees paid/payable to the suppliers.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the Company
(who to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the share
capital of the Company) has any interest in any of the top five customers
and suppliers.

Emoluments Policy

The emoluments of the Directors is recommended by the remuneration
committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) after
considering the factors such as the Company’s operating results, individual
performance, salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.

The remuneration of the employees of the Group is determined with
reference to market terms and the performance, qualifications and
experience of the individual employee.

The Company has adopted the Scheme as an incentive to Directors and
eligible employees who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Details of the Scheme is set out in the following section headed “Share
Option Scheme” in this report. The Group has also adopted other employee
benefit including a provident fund scheme for its employees in Hong Kong,
as required under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, and
has participated in employee pension schemes organised and governed by
the relevant local governments for its employees in the PRC.
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Details of the emolument of the Directors and five highest paid individuals
of the Group are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates the Scheme for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible persons who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. The Scheme has been approved by the then sole
shareholder on 5 October 2012. There was no outstanding share options
under the Scheme as at 30 June 2016 and 2017. No share options were
granted, exercised or cancelled/lapsed under the Scheme during the year
ended 30 June 2017. Details of the Scheme as well as the share options
granted/lapsed during the year ended 30 June 2016 are set out in note 33
to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors

The Directors during the year ended 30 June 2017 and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Pak Ming (Chairman)
Ms. Wong Yee Kwan Alvina
Mr. Wong Chi Woon Edmond

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Kam Tong
Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk
Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence

Pursuant to Article 84(1) of the Company’s Articles of Association, at each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if
their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation and shall be
eligible for re-election. Every Director, including those appointed for a
specific term, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years.

By virtue of Article 84(1) of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Lo
Eric Tien-cheuk and Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, and being eligible, will offer himself for re-election
at the annual general meeting.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management

The biographical details of Directors and senior management of the Group
are disclosed in the section headed “Profiles of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 20 to 22 of this annual report.

Directors’ Service Agreements

Each of Mr. Wong, Ms. Alvina Wong and Mr. Edmond Wong, being all the
executive Directors, had entered into a service contract with the Company
for an initial fixed term of three years commencing from 31 October 2012
renewable automatically until terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other expiring at the end of
the initial term or any time thereafter.

Each of Mr. Lam Kam Tong, Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk and Mr. Tang Kai Kui
Terence, being all the independent non-executive Directors, had entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company on 1 July 2015. Each letter
of appointment is for a term of one year from the date of the letter of
appointment and renewable automatically for successive terms of one year
each commencing from the day next after the expiry of the then current
term of appointment unless terminated by either party giving at least one
month’s notice in writing.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has or is proposed to enter
into a service contract/letter of appointment with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries (other than contracts expiring or determinable by the Group
within one year without the payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation)).

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from all
three independent non-executive Directors pursuant to the Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and the Company considers the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts of Significance

Details of Directors’ interest in transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business are set out in the section
headed “Related Party Transactions/Connected Transactions/Continuing
Connected Transactions” in this report and note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Other than as disclosed above, there was no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to which the Company or its subsidiaries, or its
holding companies or any of its fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in
which a Director was materially interested, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisting during or at the end of the year ended 30 June 2017.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus, the section headed “Related Party
Transactions/Connected Transactions/Continuing Connected Transactions”
in this report and note 38 to the consolidated financial statements of which
certain Directors engaged in film-related businesses, none of the Directors
or the controlling shareholders of the Company or their respective
associates as defined in the Listing Rules has any interest in any business
which competes or may compete with the business of the Group during the
year ended 30 June 2017.

Compliance of Non-Competition Undertaking

On 5 October 2012, Mr. Wong, Ms. Alvina Wong, Mr. Edmond Wong and
Honour Grace Limited (“Honour Grace”) (collectively, the “Controlling
Shareholders”), have given an irrevocable non-compete undertaking (the
“Non-competition Undertaking”) in favour of the Company pursuant to
which each of them irrevocably, unconditionally, jointly and severally
undertaken, among other matters, not to, directly or indirectly, carry on,
invest in or be engaged in any business which would or might compete
with the business of the Group. Details of the Non-competition Undertaking
have been set out in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

The Non-competition Undertaking has become effective from 31 October
2012, the date of the Listing.

The Company has received the confirmation from the Controlling
Shareholders in respect of their compliance with the terms of the Non-
competition Undertaking for the year ended 30 June 2017.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed and confirmed that
the Controlling Shareholders had complied with the Non-competition
Undertaking and the Non-competition Undertaking had been enforced by
the Company in accordance with its terms for the year ended 30 June
2017.

Contracts of Significance
Saved as disclosed above, there is no contract of significance between the

Company or any of its subsidiaries, and a controlling shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company and its
Associated Corporations

As at 30 June 2017, the interests of Directors and chief executive of the
Company in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and required to
be entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or which were required, pursuant to Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by the Directors, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Position in shares and underlying shares of the Company
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M2017F6 A30H  EFRARBITTHRABHERARA
S E A AAEEEE (EX R FBHFRBEERHISEXVEL) &Y
B 1D AR RARR 10 R B AR IR B 5 R HA B KB 88 XV 2B
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BEHFLHBEGRIBHEGXESHEFIXRABERN
) RALHNADRIREZSFRIBEKMIE 352
G EE R MAED  ARE EMARBMETE
MEFHETESRZHNH T AN T &I FTH)#E
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Percentage of
the Company’s/

Company/name associated
of associated Number of company’s issued
Name of Director company Nature of interest shares Position share capital
P N
F NG HBARE&T
EEnA HBAR AR ERMtE R#HEE B RAF DL
Mr. Wong Company Interest in a controlled 1,200,000,000 Long 46.23%
corporation (Note)
|mEAE ZN/NC] R EE R (BH3E) TR
Company Beneficial owner 123,760,000 Long 4.77%
ZN/NC] EnlEBEA "R
1,323,760,000 51.00%
Honour Grace Beneficial owner 9 shares of Long 60.00%
US$1.00 each
£\ BEmfEA A 9k (B A
EfE1.00%7T)

Note: These shares are registered in the name of Honour Grace, the entire issued share
capital of which is legally and beneficially owned as to 60% by Mr. Wong, 20% by
Mr. Edmond Wong and 20% by Ms. Alvina Wong. Under the SFO, Mr. Wong is
deemed to be interested in all the shares registered in the name of Honour Grace.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of
the Company

As at 30 June 2017, the interests of the persons, other than the interests
disclosed above in respect of Directors or chief executive of the Company,
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO and entered in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company
were as follows:
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Percentage of the
Company'’s issued

Name of shareholder Nature of interest Number of shares Position share capital
HAEQTE BT
BRERBHEAE EEME RHEE R A RAEB DL
Honour Grace Beneficial owner 1,200,000,000 Long 46.23%
£ E=fEAA a5 )
Mr. Wong Interest in a controlled 1,200,000,000 Long 46.23%
corporation (Note 1)
|mEE NI EEER (M$7E1) HE
Beneficial owner 123,760,000 Long 4.77%
BEmiaA "R
1,323,760,000 51.00%
Ms. Zee Ven Chu Lydia (Note 2) 1,323,760,000 Long 51.00%
Rt (PfifEE2) TR
Ms. Wong Kit Fong Beneficial owner 197,992,000 Long 7.63%
BRF L BEmEEA a5

Note 1: These shares are registered in the name of Honour Grace, the entire issued share

capital of which is legally and beneficially owned as to 60% by Mr. Wong, 20%
by Mr. Edmond Wong and 20% by Ms. Alvina Wong. Under the SFO, Mr. Wong
is deemed to be interested in all the shares registered in the name of Honour
Grace.

Note 2: Ms. Zee Ven Chu Lydia, spouse of Mr. Wong, is deemed under the SFO to be

interested in all the shares in which Mr. Wong is deemed to be interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2017, the Company had not been
notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO to be disclosed to the Company, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.
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Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Other than as disclosed under the sections headed “Share Option Scheme”
and “Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations” in this report, at no time during the year ended 30
June 2017 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or any of its fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or chief
executives of the Company or their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) to have any right to subscribe for securities of the Company
or any of its associated corporations as defined in the SFO or to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

The Company’s Articles of Association provides that the Directors and
officers shall be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
with they shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against the Directors and
senior management of the Group in respect of potential legal actions that
may be incurred in the course of performing their duties.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 34 to 48 of this annual report.

Related Party Transactions/Connected
Transactions/Continuing Connected Transactions

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the year ended 30
June 2017 are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
Except for the transactions with BPL are not constituted connected
transactions, all of these related party transactions are connected
transactions/continuing connected transactions fully exempted under Rule
14A.76(1) of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company confirmed
that it has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

32 Pegasus Entertainment Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2016/17

BARODHESHER

BRARE [HBRERE] R [EFERITBABEHRARA T
REBEEABMRG  BERDRESFNERRAE ]
MERFTHTEEIN B E2017F6 A30RIEEFEER » &
AalskE A A B A TSR T AR R B AT ER
NERTZE  REEER AR RITHARIEESH
WEEA(EER EMHRE) BREREARQ R SKHEEM
HEEE (TERBESFRBAEKRN) NFES - R
AR QB EMEA B BRGNS EHMEFR

R RERERX

ARRABERMAURE EFERSEBMEBARK
EAT AN INITHBE R BT KB A AR
T ABSBRBOERITAMELERERNMETT
B A BR BX BERERIHMEARADN
BE NN ERE

/'

H?
YJ‘

ARAREREENAEBRSREEERETHBER
ARSI BEMBEERFTRYEFTRSRBEEEE S
EAKENEREEBRENERADEENEER

HEE RRIE -
EEER
ARRABENEHBEKFLEEARR - ERERAAR

M EEEAFRERBERNAFRFEMAEI8ALEE

CECE

BABLIXE BERXS HEEERS

BEAREBREE 201796 A30 Eﬁiﬁaﬁffﬁﬁﬂ

SHBENGAEFBERRMEIS - RERES 2R
TERBERZXZI  PBREREE 75§<5%¢%f§**’\$

BT FHBRAE1AATE 14AT6(NIEEENBER
5/ HEEERS - AATIER  EORE FHRAE
TAAZETHTERTE ©



Sufficiency of Public Float

As at the date of this report, based on information that is publicly available
to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors
confirm that the Company maintained the amount of public float as
required under the Listing Rules.

Event after the Reporting Period

There is no significant event undertaken by the Group subsequent to 30
June 2017 and up to the date of this report.

Auditor

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire, and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A
resolution for their re-appointment as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Wong Pak Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 September 2017
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Code on Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices. During the year ended 30 June 2017, it met all the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, save as the deviations as mentioned in the
following sections headed “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer”
“Board Meeting, General Meeting and Procedures” in this report.

and

The Company will continue to review its corporate governance practices in
order to enhance its corporate governance standard, to comply with the
increasingly tightened regulatory requirements and to meet the rising
expectations of the Shareholders and investors.

Compliance with the Required Standard of
Dealings in Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having
made all reasonable enquires, all the Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard of dealings and the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors adopted by the
Company during the year ended 30 June 2017.

Board of Directors

The Company is governed by the Board which has the responsibility for
leadership and control of the Company. The Directors are collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Group by directing and
supervising the Group's affairs. The Board set strategies and directions for
the Group'’s activities with a view to developing its business and enhancing
shareholder value.
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Board Composition
The Board comprises the following Directors:
Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Pak Ming (Chairman)
Ms. Wong Yee Kwan Alvina
Mr. Wong Chi Woon Edmond

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Kam Tong
Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk
Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence

The Board currently comprises six Directors, including the Chairman (being
an executive Director), the other two executive Directors, and three
independent non-executive Directors. An updated list of Directors
identifying their roles and functions and whether they are independent
non-executive Directors has been published on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange respectively. Biographical details of the
Directors are set out in “Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 20 to 22 of this annual report. The composition of the Board is well
balanced. Each of the Directors has relevant expertise and extensive
corporate and strategic planning experiences that can contribute to the
business of the Group. During the year ended 30 June 2017, the Company
had complied with Rules 3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors representing more than one-third of the Board and at least one of
them has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. All independent non-executive Directors
also meet the guidelines for assessment of their independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has received an annual
confirmation of independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors. The Company considers all the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.
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The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of, and promoting
the success of the Company. This is achieved by setting up corporate and
strategic objectives and policies, and the monitoring and evaluations of
operating activities and financial performance of the Company.

All the Directors carry out their duties in good faith and in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, taking decisions objectively and acting in
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

Mr. Wong (the Chairman of the Board and executive Director) is the father
of Ms. Alvina Wong and Mr. Edmond Wong (both executive Directors).
Save as disclosed above, there is no family or other material relationship
among members of the Board and the senior management of the Group.

Formal service contracts and letters of appointment have been issued to the
executive Directors and the independent non-executive Directors
respectively setting out the key terms and conditions of their respective
appointments.

The insurance cover in respect of legal action against the Directors and
senior officers is covered by the existing Directors and Officers Liability
Insurance Policy of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Company has not yet adopted A.2.1 of the Code. Under the code
provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer ("CEQ") should be separated and would not be performed by the
same individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and
CEO should be clearly established and set out in writing.

Mr. Wong is the Chairman of the Board and is responsible for the overall
strategy planning and policy making of the Group. The Chairman also takes
the lead to ensure that the Board works effectively and acts in the best
interest of the Company by encouraging the Directors to actively participate
in the Board’s affairs and promoting a culture of openness and debate.

The Company has no such position as CEO and therefore the daily
operation and management of the Company is monitored by the executive
Directors as well as the senior management of the Group.

The Board is of the view that although there is no CEO, the balance of
power and authority is ensured by the operation of the Board, which
comprises experienced individuals who would meet from time to time to
discuss issues affecting operation of the Company.
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Responsibilities and Delegation of Functions

The Company has formalised and adopted written terms on the division of
functions reserved to the Board and those delegated to the management of
the Group. The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of the
Company, including the approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, risk management and internal control
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict
of interests), financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as
the advice and services of the company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”) and senior management of the Group, with a view
to ensuring compliance with the Board procedures and all applicable laws
and regulations. Any Director may request independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon reasonable
request being made to the Board. The day-to-day management,
administration and operations of the Company are delegated to the
executive Directors and senior management of the Group. The Board has
delegated a schedule of responsibilities to these officers for the
implementation of the Board decisions. The Board periodically reviews the
delegated functions and work tasks. Prior to entering into any significant
transactions, the aforesaid officers have to obtain the Board'’s approval.

No corporate governance committee has been established by the Company
and the Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties, which included:

(1)  developing and reviewing the policies and practices on corporate
governance of the Group;

(2)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management of the Group;

(3) to review and monitor the Group's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to Directors and employees; and

(5)  to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in
the corporate governance report of the Company.
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Appointment, Re-Election and Removal of
Directors

Each of Mr. Wong, Ms. Alvina Wong and Mr. Edmond Wong, being all the
executive Directors, had entered into a service contract with the Company
for an initial fixed term of three years commencing from 31 October 2012
renewable automatically until terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other expiring at the end of
the initial term or any time thereafter.

Each of Mr. Lam Kam Tong, Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk and Mr. Tang Kai Kui
Terence, being all the independent non-executive Directors, has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company on 1 July 2015. Each letter
of appointment is for a term of one year from the date of the letter of
appointment and renewable automatically for successive terms of one year
each commencing from the day next after the expiry of the then current
term of appointment unless terminated by either party giving at least one
month’s notice in writing.

The Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association. According to the Company’s Articles of
Association, one-third of the Directors are required to retire from office at
each annual general meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once in every three years. The Directors to
retire every year shall be those who have been longest in office since their
last re-election or appointment.

Board Meeting, General Meeting and Procedures
During the year ended 30 June 2017, the Board convened a total of five

board meetings and one general meeting have been held. The following is
the Directors’ attendance record of meetings held by the Board:
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Number of Number of
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number of number of

board meetings general meeting

HERE HERE

EEEEEYA BRRASEE

Mr. Wong Pak Ming =HIABEE 5/5 11
Ms. Wong Yee Kwan Alvina =R 5/5 11
Mr. Wong Chi Woon Edmond EHFEEE 5/5 11
Mr. Lam Kam Tong MERE S 4/5 0/1
Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk BRE A 5/5 0/1
Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence BRI B 5L A 5/5 1/1
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Code provision A.6.7 of the Code stipulates that the independent non-
executive Directors should attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of the Shareholders. Mr. Lam Kam Tong and
Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk were unable to attend the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 17 November 2016 as they had other business
engagement.

Board members were provided with complete, adequate and timely
information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly.

Draft agenda of each Board meeting is sent to all Directors in advance.
Notice of at least seven days is given for a regular Board meeting. For other
Board and committees meetings, reasonable notice is generally given. Board
papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information are
dispatched to all Directors at least three days before each regular Board
meeting to ensure that the Directors have sufficient time to review the
related documents and be adequately prepared for the meeting.

The Company Secretary is responsible to keep minutes of all Board
meetings and committees meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated
to all Directors for comments within a reasonable time after each meeting
and the final versions are open for Directors’ inspection. The Company’s
Articles of Association contains provisions requiring Directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for
approving transactions in which such Directors or any of their associates
have a material interest.

Continuous Professional Development

All Directors with names as listed out in the section headed “Board
Composition” in this report have been given relevant guideline materials
regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a Director, the relevant
laws and regulations applicable to the Directors, duty of disclosure of
interest and business of the Group and such induction materials will also be
provided to newly appointed Directors shortly upon their appointment as
Directors. All Directors have been updated on the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to
ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. Continuing briefings and professional development
to Directors will be arranged whenever necessary.
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During the year ended 30 June 2017, the Company had organised a
seminar on the updates and the latest development of the Listing Rules,
SFO and Hong Kong Companies Ordinance for the Directors. The seminar
was facilitated by the Company’s legal advisor with presentation and
relevant materials and all Directors have attended such seminar. In addition,
all Directors were provided with monthly updates on the Group’s business,
operations and financial matters to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. During the year ended 30 June 2017, the Directors also
participated in other training activities such as attending seminars and
reading materials relevant to the Company’s businesses or to their duties
and responsibilities as directors of a listed company.

All Directors had provided the Company Secretary with their training
records for the year ended 30 June 2017.

Board Committees

During the year ended 30 June 2017, the Board has established three board
committees, namely the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
Remuneration Committee and nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) of the Company, with written terms of reference which are
available for viewing on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange to assist them in the efficient implementation of their functions.
Specific responsibilities have been delegated to the above committees.

Audit Committee

The Board established the Audit Committee on 5 October 2012 with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.21 to 3.23 of the
Listing Rules and the Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are
mainly to communicate with external auditor; to review the remuneration,
terms of engagement, independency and objectivity of the external auditor;
to review the accounting policy, financial position and financial reporting
procedures of the Company; and to review and assess the financial
reporting, risk management and internal control systems of the Company
and making recommendations thereof.
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The Audit Committee has three members comprising three independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Lam Kam Tong (Chairman), Mr. Lo Eric Tien-
cheuk and Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence. During the year ended 30 June 2017,
the Audit Committee had reviewed the interim results and report of the
Company for the six months ended 31 December 2016. The Audit
Committee had been provided with the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, risk management report, internal control report and other
necessary information to consider, review and access significant issues and
matters arising from these works conducted. Subsequent to 30 June 2017
and up to the date of this report, all members of the Audit Committee
attended a meeting to review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems for the year ended 30 June 2017.
The Audit Committee had considered and reviewed, with management and
the external auditor of the Company, in detail of the identification and
approach with respect to the key audit matters that were most significant
in the audit procedures included in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on
pages 63 to 69 of this annual report. The Group’s final results and the
annual report for the year ended 30 June 2017 had been reviewed by the
Audit Committee before submission to the Board for approval. Members of
the Audit Committee were of the opinion that the preparation of such
results complied with the applicable accounting standards, the Listing Rules
and that adequate disclosure have been made. The Audit Committee also
recommended the appointment of external auditor of the Company.

During the year ended 30 June 2017, two meetings of the Audit Committee
were held and the attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is
contained in the following table:
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 5 October 2012
with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The primary
duties of the Nomination Committee are mainly to review of the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge, experience and
diversity of perspectives) of the Board at least annually and to make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy; to identify individuals suitably qualified
to become the Board members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships of the
Company and to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors. In reviewing and recommending the appointment of new
directors, the Nomination Committee would seek to identify the
competencies required to enable the Board to fulfill its responsibilities. The
resume or document of the nominee or candidate will be given to the
Nomination Committee for consideration. The Nomination Committee has
adopted a process for selection and appointment of new directors which
provides the procedure for identification of potential candidates, evaluation
of the suitability of the candidate based on his qualifications, skills,
knowledge, business and related experience, commitment, ability to
contribute to the Board process and such qualities and attributes that may
be required by the Board. The Nomination Committee shall review the
Board Diversity Policy established for implementing diversity on the Board
periodically.

The Nomination Committee has three members comprising three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk (Chairman),
Mr. Lam Kam Tong and Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence. During the year ended
30 June 2017, two meetings of the Nomination Committee were held to
review the structure and composition of the Board, the attendance of each
member of the Nomination Committee is contained in the following table:
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Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk BREBEE 2/2
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Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence B RSN Se A 2/2
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 5 October 2012
with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The primary
duties of the Remuneration Committee are mainly to review the terms of
the remuneration package of each Director and member of senior
management of the Group and making recommendations to the Board
regarding any adjustment thereof; and to review and evaluate the
performance of individual Directors. No Director shall participate in any
discussion about his or her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee has three members comprising three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence (Chairman),
Mr. Lam Kam Tong and Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk. The remuneration of the
Directors was determined with reference to their respective experience,
responsibilities with the Group and general market conditions. During the
year ended 30 June 2017, two meetings of the Remuneration Committee
were held to review the remuneration package of the Directors and senior
management of the Group, the attendance of each member of the
Remuneration Committee is contained in the following table:
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Mr. Tang Kai Kui Terence B RR SN SE A 2/2
Mr. Lam Kam Tong MERE S 2/2
Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk EREBEE 2/2

Remuneration of Senior Management

The biographical details of senior management of the Group are disclosed
in the section headed "Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 20 to 22 of this annual report.

The remuneration paid/payable to senior management of the Group for the
year ended 30 June 2017 fell within the following bands:
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Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group's
consolidated financial statements for each financial year and to ensure that
the consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The statement
by the auditor of the Company about their responsibilities for the
consolidated financial statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 63 to 69 of this annual report. The Board also ensures
the timely publication of the financial statements. The Directors, having
made appropriate enquiries, confirm that they are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The remuneration paid/payable to the auditors of the Group for the year
ended 30 June 2017 is set out as follows:
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Paid/payable
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HK$'000
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Statutory audit services JEEZERTE 1,669
Non-statutory audit services IEEZEIRTE

Tax compliance and consulting services WEa 8 G ARG 108

Total HEt 1,777

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board has developed the Group's internal control, risk assessment and
management systems and has overall responsibility for reviewing and
maintaining an adequate and effective risk management and internal
control systems to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and the
assets of the Group. It evaluates the effectiveness of the systems at least
annually to ensure the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions. The review covers all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management.
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Risk management and internal control systems

The Group's risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage and mitigate risks, rather than eliminate risks, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. The Group has employed a bottom-up approach for identification,
assessment and mitigation of risk at all business unit levels and across
functional areas.

Main features of risk management and internal control
systems

The key elements of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems include the establishment of a risk register to keep track of and
document identified risks, the assessment and evaluation of risks, the
development and continuous updating of responsive procedures, and the
ongoing testing of internal control procedures to ensure their effectiveness.

Annually, the Group identifies and assesses the key inherent risks that affect
the achievements of its objectives. A risk matrix is adopted to determine risk
rating into three categories: low, medium and high, after evaluation of the
risk by the likelihood and the impact of the risk event. The risk ratings
reflect the level of management attention and risk treatment effort
required.

Process used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks

During the process of risk assessment, each of the risk owner of
departments are required to capture and identify the key inherent risks that
affect the achievement of its objectives. Each inherent risk is evaluated
according to the risk matrix. After taking into consideration the risk
response, such as control measures in place to mitigate the risk, the residual
risk of each inherent risk is evaluated again. The risk register with the risk
responses and residual risks is reported to the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee, evaluates the effectiveness of the systems and report to the
Board. The highest category of residual risks is subject to the Board's
oversight.
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Process used to review the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and to resolve
material internal control defects

The management is responsible for the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems. In view of
the Group’s business and scale of operations, and in order to adopt the
most cost-effective method of conducting periodic reviews of the Group's
internal controls, an independent consulting firm (the “Internal Control
Auditor”) has been engaged to work with the Board, through the Audit
Committee, to execute the internal audit function. The Internal Control
Auditor has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems for the year ended 30 June 2017
according to the scope of review determined, agreed and approved by the
Audit Committee and in accordance with the requirements under code
provision C.2 of the Code.

The Internal Control Auditor reported to the Audit Committee and the
Audit Committee was satisfied that there had been no material deficiency
identified in the areas of the Group'’s risk management and internal control
systems being reviewed, where some minor areas need to be improved
have been identified and reported to the Audit Committee and the Group
would take further steps to improve by taken implement of the
recommendations suggested by the Internal Control Auditor. Accordingly,
the Board considered the risk management and internal control systems to
be effective and have been implemented with adequate resources during
the year ended 30 June 2017.

Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Company is aware of its obligations in disclosure of inside information
under the Listing Rules and Part XIVA of the SFO. The Board has already
established and implemented a policy on the procedures, guidelines and
internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside information.
The policy stipulated the duty and responsibility of inside information
announcement, restriction on sharing non-public information, handling of
rumours, unintentional selective disclosure, exemption and wavier to the
disclosure of inside information, and also compliance and reporting
procedures. Every senior management of the Company must take all
reasonable measures to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a
breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Group from time to
time. They must promptly bring any possible leakage or divulgence of inside
information to the attention of the Company Secretary, who will notify the
Board accordingly for taking the appropriate action promptly. For any
material violation of this policy, the Board will decide, or designate
appropriate persons to decide the course of actions for rectifying the
problem and avoiding recurrence.
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Company Secretary

Mr. Chan Chi Ming joined the Group in December 2011 and has been the
Company Secretary since October 2012. The biographical details of the
Company Secretary are set out under the section headed “Profiles of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 20 to 22 of this annual
report. The Company Secretary has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 30 June 2017.

Shareholders’ Rights
Communications with Shareholders

The Company has established a range of communication channels between
itself and the Shareholders, and investors. These include answering
questions through the general meeting, the publication of annual and
interim reports, notices, announcements and circulars and the Company’s
website at www.pegasusmovie.com.

During the year ended 30 June 2017, there had no change in the
Company's constitutional documents.

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place
as may be determined by the Board. Any general meeting other than an
annual general meeting shall be referred as an extraordinary general
meeting (“"EGM").

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, including the Listing Rules and
the Company’s Articles of Association as amended from time to time,
Shareholders may convene an EGM to consider proposals in accordance
with the following provisions:

1. One or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company having the right of voting at general meetings can deposit
a written request to convene an EGM at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong (the “Hong Kong Office”),
for the attention of the Board or the Company Secretary.
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2. The written request must state the name of the Shareholders
concerned, their respective shareholdings, the objects of the meeting,
including details of the business(es) and resolutions proposed to be
considered and approved at the meeting, signed by the Shareholders
concerned.

3. The request will be verified with the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar and transfer office and upon their confirmation that
the request is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask
the Board to convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice in
accordance with the statutory requirements to all the Shareholders.
On the contrary, if the request has been verified as not in order, the
Shareholders concerned will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, an EGM will not be convened as requested.

4. If within 21 days of such deposit of the requisition, the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

5. The notice period to be given to the Shareholders in respect of the
EGM varies according to the nature of the proposal. Notice of the
EGM at which the passing of a special resolution is to be considered,
notice of the EGM shall be arranged to be sent to the Shareholders at
least 21 clear days or 10 clear business days (whichever is longer)
before such EGM. Notice of all other EGM shall be arranged to be
sent to the shareholders at least 14 clear days or 10 clear business
days (whichever is longer) before such EGM.

6.  There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Companies Law,
Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands or the Company’s Articles of Association.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene an EGM following the procedures set out
above in this section.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders and other stakeholders can make any enquiry in respect of the
Company in writing either by email at ir@pegasusmovie.com or deposited
at the Hong Kong Office for the attention of the Board or the Company
Secretary. The appropriate management member of the Company will
respond to the legitimate enquiry of the Shareholders, the Company’s
potential investors or analysts.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
ﬁﬂ%ﬂ {i Zihkv%ﬂﬁm

Scope and Reporting Period

This is the first Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") Report issued
by the Company, highlighting its policies, measures and performance in
relation to ESG issues. This report is prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 of the
Listing Rules.

This ESG report focuses on environmental and social aspects of the
operations of the Group’s head office, film production and distribution,
exhibition and post-production in Hong Kong, from 1 July 2016 to 30 June
2017 (the “reporting period”), unless otherwise stated. This ESG report
does not cover the Group’s business in the PRC as the operation of the
Group's exhibition business in the PRC was not commenced during the
reporting period.

Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality

In order to identify the most significant aspects for the Group to report on
for this ESG report, key stakeholders, including but not limited to the
Group’s customers, cinemagoers, employees, investors, suppliers and
regulators, have been involved in discussion sessions to review areas of
attention which will help the business meets its potential growth and be
prepared for future challenges.

Stakeholders’ Feedback

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on the Group’s environmental,
social and governance approach and performance. Please give your
suggestions or share your views with the Group via the Group's social
media platforms or email at ir@pegasusmovie.com.

The Company’s Commitment on ESG

From film production on sites to film exhibition at the cinemas, the Group
commits to make efforts towards sustainable business and reducing carbon
footprint while showing good stewardship in the community the Group
serves. For instance, on film production operation, a production manager is
assigned at each film set to carefully manage, supervise and execute
sustainability practice and performance in every aspect of the production,
from reducing use of plastic water bottles to renting vehicles with higher
fuel efficiency and the use of rechargeable batteries. On film exhibition
operation, vegetarian options are available for cinemagoers, as well as
ensuring the cinema venue is accessible to meet the needs of the particular
individual. The Group will endeavour to integrate ESG into the business
models.
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1.

A. Environment and Resources A. RERER
Emissions 1. HEBY
Greenhouse gas emissions B = BB
Scope of greenhouse Emission Total emission
gas emissions Emission sources (in tonnes of CO.e) (in percentage)
B E
(AW =S b bz BHME
BEREENEER PER AR E&5) (AZLL)
Scope 1
E1
Direct emission Consumption of petrol by 19.24 3%
the Group’s owned fleet
BEER REEB BB URER
Scope 2
giE2
Indirect emission Purchased electricity 440.51 73%
2 B A BES
Scope 3
giE3
Other indirect emission Paper waste disposed at landfills 119.81
H A I BE AR EEMIHRENER
Business air travel by employees 27.98
B BRAREINE N E
147.79 24%
Total 607.54
st

50

Note: Emission factors were made reference to Appendix 27 of the Listing
Rules and their referred documentation as set out by the Stock
Exchange, unless stated otherwise.

There were 607.54 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
greenhouse gases (mainly carbon dioxide, methane and nitrous
oxide) emitted from the Group's operation in the reporting
period. The Group has complied with all applicable
environmental laws and regulations, and was not subject to
any fine, penalty, investigation or prosecution for non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations relating to
emissions.
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Vehicle operation

The Group has company vehicles for business purposes and
film production, contributing to an estimate of 19.24 tonnes of
carbon dioxide equivalent emission. The Group will look into
giving priority to vehicles with higher fuel efficiency during
future purchase and rental. Public transit and carpooling are
highly encouraged for employees at film production operation.

Hazardous and non-hazardous waste

During the reporting period, the Group mainly generated non-
hazardous waste, which includes domestic waste, commercial
waste, construction and demolition waste. A total amount of
24.96 tonnes of paper waste were generated, contributing to
an emission of 119.81 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent.
Employees at the head office are encouraged to print on both
sides of paper if possible, and old cartridges are returned to the
supplier. The Group’s public reports make use of eco-friendly
papers and materials whenever possible. For film production on
site, electronic devices and forms instead of paper are used, as
much as possible, for schedules, call sheets, crew and contract
lists, production reports, viewing production documents and
dailies. To further reduce waste generation on sets, the Group
provides water jugs and stations instead of plastic water
bottles, and staff and extras are encouraged to bring their own
reusable water bottles, cutlery and food container. The Group
will look into the development of waste management system
and recycling practice in film exhibition operations in the
coming future.

Business air travel

During the reporting period, the Group's business air travel for
potential business opportunities contributed to a total 27.98
tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent emissions. The Group
encourages employees to make use of telecommunication to
reduce travel frequency in order to minimise the related carbon
emissions.

RIR - g RERRE

BEHEE

AEERREGREREXRENARE
WA AR 19.24MEH) — S/LHIRE B -
AEERARRBLREER&EBELE
ABRSMA KRN ER c KN FEZH
EERBNREERRIKBRE -

BEREZEEY

RREHRE - AEET2ELBEEEY)
BREEAERY BEBERY  ZERF
BrREEZRY) - EEBE R 2496 BRI EEAL « HF
BI19.81HER) — L E B - SRl E
SERTTRIE R T & m E Rl 4t ok Mo B8 22
BREHER - AEENAFRREET
R ARERA RS - EEZEIER
% AR - BRI BEIREBHEE -
SUEHRE  TENREXHRBHRME
BEEZEMAETREMEABRER B
E- RO RGELERY  AEBEREH
IKEE RRUE B AR E K - BB B T KRR
BEBEWREFASUEERERNKE &
ARER - ARBERRENAHEEHE
TR ETEH R Y E R 2 R AR A
FR o

T TBIP H 2B

RMEHRRE - REBpRETEEB K S TR
N N EE A 227 98 WA R —E Lk
EEHN - ASEBBESFAEFBA
WA MO RERE  WEERD B B
HERR ©

REFEERER AT ~ 2016/17 F3] 5



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - g kERHmE

59

Use of Resources

Energy

The Group has consumed 791,228 kWh during the reporting
period, contributing to an emission of 440.51 tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent. For film exhibition operations, all facilities
comply with the Buildings Energy Efficiency Ordinance
implemented by Electrical and Mechanical Services Department
to ensure key building services meet the minimum energy
efficiency standards of the Building Energy Code. The Group
also regularly reminds employees to maintain optimal
temperature inside the facilities, to turn off computers and
monitors when not in use and before leaving work, further
reducing electricity consumption.

Water

The Group’s major water supply and discharge were managed
by buildings’ management office where businesses operate
and the consumption have been included in the management
fees (except for film production operation). It is noteworthy
that the Group did not consume significant amount of water
through business activities, and the water consumption was
considered minimal during the reporting period.

The Environment and Natural Resources

With electricity consumption being the largest contributor of
greenhouse gas emission from the Group during the reporting
period, management will review and consider implementing
further energy saving initiatives and venue remodification to
integrated automation system, as well as reducing
environmental impacts from other resources such as cutting
down vehicle fuel consumption and going forward with
digitalised production and paperless office.
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Social Aspects B. 85 MH
1. Employment and Labour Practices 1. EERZEIER
(i) Employment (i) EE
The Group had 139 employees as of 30 June 2017 in HE2017%6A30H  Z"EBRE
Hong Kong. SR 139%ES -
Workforce by employment type Workforce by gender
RERERISNHETIHEY RUEFESHNETEY

M Full time M Male
28 Bt
[ Part time ¥ Female
Fe foq 3
Workforce by employment category Workforce by age group
REBEMNESHNE TR RERANESNETHEY
18-25
18%255%
W 26-35
26Z355%
[ Managerial staff W 36-45
EREET 36%455%
W 46-55
M Frontline and general staff 46Z555%

AR —RET
¥ 56 and above
5658 M A =
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Employees are the most valuable asset of the Group and
the primary force in driving the Group’s business growth
and operations on a sustainable basis. Policies and
regulations in the Group’s staff handbook have been
established for the guidance and observation by the
employees of the Group and will be subject to the laws
of Hong Kong as stipulated by the Hong Kong
Government as far as they may be applicable in
conjunction with the policies. Staff handbook provides
information and guidelines regarding employee’s
standard working hours, rest days, statutory holidays,
termination of employment, summary dismissal, exit
interview, salary payment, overtime work (require
approval in advance), various types of leaves, medical
coverage, mandatory provident fund, night shift travel
allowance (for film exhibition employees) and overtime
work allowance (for specific employees). The Group has
been in compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations relating to employment.

Equal opportunity

The Group places a high priority on achieving equality of
opportunity for all employees in relation to all personnel
matters including recruitment, training, promotion,
transfer, benefits and dismissal. The dignity and
individuality of each employee will be respected and the
privacy and confidentiality of employee records will be
safeguarded. Employees’ performance will be assessed
solely according to their ability to meet job requirements.

Promotion and appraisal

It is also the Group’s policy to offer internal promotions
to employees, whenever possible, within the Group.
Promotion to higher grade will normally depend on the
availability of vacancy, individual performance and
potential to take up the new position.

The Group will provide an open, challenging and
participative environment for all employees. The Group
aims to provide opportunities for the development of the
skills of employees to the fullest extent possible,
consistent with the needs of the Group. Job performance
is reviewed annually, and this serves as an opportunity
for supervisor to evaluate employee’s performance in an
objective and open manner, to discuss concerns, strength
and suggestions on further improvement. Employees’
remuneration and pay scale adjustment are made
reference to individual’'s performance and appraisal
results, industrial standard and market trend.
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Employee welfare

Employees can enjoy free enrolment to Cinema City’s
membership along with complimentary movie tickets
and coupons. Movie premiere invitations are also given
to employees for the Group’s own productions. The
Group offered special arrangement to employees to
leave work early on important traditional days which are
not a public holiday such as Mid-Autumn Festival, Winter
solstice, Christmas Eve and Chinese New Year's Eve. The
Group regularly organises internal events to strength the
sense of belonging within the Group and boost the
communication transparency among all levels of
employees, through Christmas party and annual dinner
etc.

Employee turnover

During the reporting period, 76 employees were newly
hired and 56 employees left the Group. The annual
turnover rates (categorised by employment type, gender
and age group) in the reporting period are as follows:

RE - g MERRE

1E S 157

1 8 A1 Z A Cinema City%e & & # -
WEBERBEZERESRS - BB
BEREEEASEERERNER
B RE@AREELFRIZHE &
EMEEEAjHE%’/}%TEx%E’JiE{%W

£ B (e FRER C FRR KR
?)ﬁ?ﬁﬁ(l o $%@Egﬂ§@#}#ﬁﬂ
HERE RBFBREZRNRANIE
B LIRAZBREENAEENEE
B hsaEmismE o

BRALE

1E

RMEHE AEEHEETcRE
g FS6REERE NS H
FMWFEERKLER(RERER - &
B R FheARIE D) AT

Annual turnover rate by employment type Full time Part time
FERLE  RERERED 2R I
2016/17 34% 51%
2016/17 £
Annual turnover rate by gender Male Female
FERKE  REHE D S 7tk
2016/17 35% 46%
2016/17 &

56 and
Annual turnover rate by age group 18-25 36-45 46-55 above

FERKR  BRFEHRARNESD

18BE255 26mE355 36mEA5m 46HmESSHE  S6mRIULE

2016/17 49%
2016/17 £

15% 33% 1%
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(ii)

56

Health and Safety

As stated in the staff handbook, health and safety at
work are the interest and responsibility of both
employees and the Group. Employees’ compensation
insurance is provided to cover any work-related injuries,
illnesses and occupational diseases. The Group is
committed to complying with all local occupational
health and safety legislations that are relevant to the
Group. Employees must take reasonable care for the
health and safety of themselves and of others. If any
employee notices any unsafe conditions or get injured at
work, he/she should immediately report it to the
supervisor.

The Group's film exhibition operation has obtained
Places of Public Entertainment Licence issued by Food
and Environmental Hygiene Department (“FEHD") to
ensure its business comply with relevant laws and

@ii)

REHEZE

RS FMEM - BSRERREE
BEKAKENESE AL - BB
HEREEEREMIE  KEAR
BEBIRMRE - AEREBU)E TR
REBEBH I BERRRL
270 - BREASE /BT Rt A2
FRZ2ZEE - BEMERBAER
T ZE2ERKERTE - HEEAZ
UL REEEER

AEBNEZHRREBF SRR
BEHAEE(RREBEEN QRN
SRR - AR E AT A
BREM -

regulations.

Occupational health and safety data 2016/17
BERFEZZEE 2016/17 &
Work related fatality 0
ATIkT

Work injury cases >3 days 1
TEEH23H

Work injury cases <3 days 0
IEEH<3H

Lost days due to work injury 3

RIBEETIERH

During the reporting period, no employee experienced
serious accident and the Group has been in compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations relating to the
employees’ health and safety.
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(iii)

(iv)

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Development and Training

It is the Group’s policy that all training activities,
executed through the Human Resources & Administration
Department of the Group (“HRA"), should comply with
the local laws and regulations and protect the Group’s
interest. The Group provides on-the-job trainings to all
frontline employees and ensures they are well equipped
with skills, knowledge and competences that are needed
to perform their job duties. Standard trainings are
arranged for Directors and the Company Secretary on an
annual basis and on a regular basis, respectively to
strengthening their continuous professional development
as well as to complying with requirements of the Listing
Rules.

Labour Standards

In compliance with the Employment Ordinance, there
was no child nor forced labour in the Group’s operation
during the reporting period. The HRA conducts checking
on candidates and newly joined employee’s identity
cards, working visa, relevant certificates and references
to ensure compliance with all the applicable laws and
regulations relating to labour standards.

There was no case of violation of laws and regulations
relating to child or forced labour against the Group
during the reporting period.

(iii)

(iv)
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2.

Operating Practices

(i)

Supply Chain Management

The Group has established good relationship with the
suppliers which ensure sustainable and stable quality
products and services to the Group’s customers. A
procurement policy has been established for assigning
purchasing responsibilities and ensuring a consistent
approach for selecting vendors who will provide the best
terms, conditions and products to meet the Group's
standards and requirements. The Group requires that all
material aspects of procurement of goods, raw materials,
works and services be conducted to the highest ethical
standards and consistent with the following principles:

- competitive tendering wherever possible and the
impartial selection of appropriately qualified
tenderers;

- objective evaluation of tenders and selection of
contractors and suppliers;

- adoption of appropriate forms of contract
according to needs; and

- adoption of effective monitoring systems and
management controls to ensure the proper
fulfillment of contractual obligation, and to detect
and prevent bribery, fraud or other malpractices
throughout all stages of the procurement process.

The Group will take environmental and social
performance into considerations in upcoming
engagement and assessment with suppliers and
contractors for the Group's business operation.
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(ii)

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Product and Service Responsibility

Customer relations

The Group recognises that customer (including
cinemagoer) satisfaction is of primary importance to its
success. Mindful of its responsibility to the customers it
serves, the Group strives to understand their
requirements and concerns and to merit their business
by responding effectively to their needs. Specifically, the
Group's policy is to:

- always put the customers first by providing them
with good quality cinema facilities, high quality
viewing environment and the services that meet or
exceed the customers’ needs under all reasonable
circumstances;

- furnish services that reliably and safely meet
responsible standards of performance, efficiency
and courtesy;

- furnish timely, accurate and sufficient information
about its operations, capabilities and services,
without misrepresentation, exaggeration and
overstatement.

Food health and safety at cinemas

The Group obtained the Food Factory Licence issued by
FEHD and strictly complies with the policies and relevant
regulations set by FEHD. Officers from FEHD regularly
conducts inspection on the Group’s film exhibition
premises to ensure food quality and hygienic
environment are maintained. Training and food
preparation guidelines are also provided for employees
working at concession stands.

@ii)
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Copyrights management

The Group has established a copyrights management
policy for its distribution and production of films, in the
aspects of copyright’s filing procedure, define ownership
of the copyrights and contract terms. Digital Cinema
Package (DCP) are used for movies for protection against
illegal copying and piracy as specific decryption is
required. In case of any suspected copyrights
infringement item is come to the Group's attention, the
policy also provides guidance of reporting structures and
responsible parties and departments. Moreover, the
Group enforces security encryption, subject to customers’
instruction, and the Group sets securities codes for
internal data and privacy protection. For film exhibition
operation, the Group ensures the warning message and
policy trailers are displayed to protect intellectual
property rights of the films exhibited in the cinemas. The
Group also prevents the use of pirate software to avoid
infringement of copyrights of other parties.

The Group has been in compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations relating to its product and service
responsibility, food health and safety, and intellectual
property during the reporting period.

Privacy policy

The Group commits to comply with data protection
principles and the requirements of the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance. No collected personal data of
employees, customers, suppliers and cinemagoers shall
be shared with any third party outside the Group without
their prior consent unless permitted or requested by law.
Only those employees who need the personal data to
perform specific task with such information (such as job
application and customer services) are granted access
rights to personally identifiable information. Personal
information will only be retained for such period as may
be necessary for the carrying out of the purposes
referred to the detail of the policy or as otherwise
specified at the time of collection.
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(iii) Anti-corruption (i) REZ

The Group complies with the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance and it is in the Group’s anti-fraud policy and
code of conduct manual that employees should maintain
the highest standards of integrity and honesty in
conducting the Group's affairs. Any employee
contravening the Group'’s rules and ethical standards is
liable to disciplinary action.

The Group will not tolerate illegal or unethical acts.
Anyone violating the code of conduct will be disciplined,
and may be dismissed. The Group expects all employees
to honestly uphold the Group’s policy, the accounting
procedures and other controls. Employees should report
to the management at once any suspected violations of
the code of conduct and anti-fraud policy (including
conflicts of interest, deception, bribery, forgery,
extortion, corruption, theft, conspiracy, embezzlement,
misappropriation, false representation, concealment of
materials facts and collusion, fighting or gambling whilst
on duty, serious neglect of duty, money laundering)
which will constitute wrongdoing and damage the
Group's reputation. In cases of suspected corruption or
other forms of criminality, once prima facie evidence has
been established, reports will be made to Hong Kong
Independent Commission Against Corruption or
appropriate authorities.

The Group deeply believes that conducting the business
within an honest, moral and ethical arena is the best
business policy to achieve healthy and sustainable
growth of the Group. The Group manages and directs its
business with honesty including honest financial
procedures, budget proposals and honest economic
evaluation of its business. According to the code of
conduct, those involved in the selection of and purchase
from suppliers and contractors should avoid misuse of
authority or engagement in situations which could
interfere, or appear to interfere, with their ability to
make free and independent decisions regarding purchase
or procurement.

The Group is in compliance with laws and regulations
relating to corruption or bribery. There was no case of
violation of laws and regulations relating to anti-
corruption against the Group or the Group’s employees
during the reporting period.
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3. Community
(i) Community Investment

The Group strives to discharge its corporate social
responsibility and has been offering special movie ticket
price for the elderlies and students, and will consider
supporting non-governmental organisation through
charity gala premiere of the Group’s productions or the
films exhibited in the Group’s cinemas.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF PEGASUS ENTERTAINMENT
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Pegasus
Entertainment Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 70 to 170, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June
2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2017,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matters

BMREERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RTNBERNIEERRERER

Impairment loss on interests in associates

B &R Rl 2 A9 B (E 5 1R

We identified the impairment loss on interests in associates as a
key audit matter due to its significance to the consolidated
financial statements, combined with the judgement involved in
management’s impairment assessment of the interests in
associates.

RTRR BARREE R RSN REEEH G VKRR
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BRI - MBS L R A SR REEEE BREXEE -

As at 30 June 2017, the carrying amount of the Group’s interests
in associates include (i) interest in Jade Dynasty Holdings Limited
("JDH") and (ii) interest in Supreme Art Entertainment Limited
("Supreme Art”) amounted to HK$31,395,000 and
HK$22,059,000, respectively. As disclosed in notes 4 and 16 to
the consolidated financial statements, the Group determines the
recoverable amount which is the higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal. The management has made a number
of key assumptions in the value in use calculation. The key
assumptions include discount rates and the future expected cash
flows based on management'’s view of future business prospects.
In addition, independent valuer is engaged to perform valuation
on both JDH and Supreme Art which has carrying amount of
HK$31,395,000, net of impairment of HK$20,351,000, and
HK$22,059,000, respectively as at 30 June 2017.
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment loss on interests in
associates included:
RATIEERE SR AR EBERIRAREF 8

o Understanding management’s process for identifying the
existence of impairment indicators and performing
impairment assessment in respect of the interests in
associates;

. THREBEZFIEDFERETR IR SR AR
HEITRE R AP EABREFT

o Evaluating the independent valuer's competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

o  FHEBUMEMNEL N REEIE

o Engaging our internal valuation expert to evaluate whether
the valuation methodology adopted by management is
complied with the International Valuation Standards and
the appropriateness of the discount rate applied by
reference to comparable companies in the industry;

. ZEIMOABLEERTEEERBRANEETER
BREBIBRGEELER2BRZITENELRA KA
UBREZTBEE

o Checking a selection of data inputs underpinning the
future expected cash flows against appropriate supporting
evidence, such as approved budgets, licensing copyright
agreements and artiste services agreements to assess the
accuracy and reliability;

. e & ZFRE (DI TEE - iRt rl i OB B R
B B E KRR SR ETDAFTER 2 B A SR - LAY
b AR R AT S

o Evaluating the historical accuracy of the projections of cash
flows prepared by management by comparing the historical
budget to actual results; and

e FEHHBERHEERIESE FEEEERENES
METEAMBERERGE &

J Performing sensitivity analysis on the key inputs to evaluate
the magnitude of their impact on the calculation of the
recoverable amount of those associates.
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Key audit matters

BREERER
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RTHBERNUEERRERER

Impairment loss on film rights and film production in progress

TR BB TR R

We identified the impairment loss on film rights and film
production in progress as a key audit matter due to the
significance of the Group’s film rights and film production in
progress to the consolidated financial statements and the
judgement and estimation uncertainty involved in the
management’s impairment assessment of the film rights and film
production in progress.

RITHNEXMERBEREZHREBERBREZEE
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As at 30 June 2017, the carrying amount of film rights and film
production in progress amounted to HK$9,264,000 and
HK$122,521,000, respectively, which represented approximately
2% and 27% of the Group's total assets, respectively. In
determining whether impairment on film rights and film
production in progress is required, the Group takes into
consideration the distribution and license agreements entered into
by the Group and the current market environment to project cash
flows expected to be received through box office receipts and
distribution and licensing income. Impairment loss is recognised in
the period in which the recoverable amount is less than the
carrying amount. As disclosed in notes 4 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements, an impairment loss of film
production in progress of HK$2,400,000 was recognised and
charged to profit or loss for the year ended 30 June 2017.
R2017F6 A30H » EXREREUEFEXNEREED B A
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment loss on film rights
and film production in progress included:

RITHEREZRE MR EFREZREBENZF 2

o Understanding the process of how management perform
impairment assessment on the film rights and film
production in progress;

. TREREHEXRENEERERETRENGHE
F

J Evaluating the appropriateness of the methodology used
by management in determining the recoverable amounts
of the film rights and film production in progress; and

e HMEEEEBTEXMENMBFTET A DK ERAN
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o Evaluating the reasonableness of the assumptions used in
the future cash flow projection and challenging the
management’s assessment on the expected revenue to be
generated by the film rights and film production in progress
by checking the film budget summary to the contract
amounts of the distribution and licensing agreements and
the estimated film box office receipts to the historical trend
of similar film released.

o EBREHTRBTEREMATAIMENEXRERESR
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group'’s
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in @ manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that

we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s
report is Lee Po Chi.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 September 2017

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

AreEm A MR E WS

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z= 2017466 A30 AL &E

2017

2017

NOTES HK$°000

Fft 5 BT T

Revenue e 5 225,631
Cost of sales $HEE A X (109,370)
Gross profit EH 116,261
Other gains HAob e 7 5,353
Other income E A A 7 6,593
Selling and distribution expenses SHE METTHRAY (110,539)
Administrative expenses THAX (CER-LE))
Net foreign exchange loss b i 518 F 58 (5.016)
Impairment loss on goodwill A REEE 14 =
Impairment loss on intangible asset B EEREER 15 -
Impairment loss on interest in an associate 7 —[&1H 4 A T HESE 65 (8 &5 18 16 (20,351)
Impairment loss on other receivable Hofth i Yo SR B R (B 5 1B 23 -
Financial costs B & KR ()]
Share of results of associates NG E (1,757)
Share of results of a joint venture ER—EeEhEEE 13,494
Loss before tax MR AT E 1R (39,914)
Income tax expense FriSif 8 (966)
Loss for the year FRNEIE 9 (40,880)

Other comprehensive expense Hit2 AR

Items that may be reclassified subsequently — (14 al & B HLH 2Bz m1EH
to profit or loss
Share of exchange difference of an associate [&{h — Bt & R 5 E G INETE

arising on translating foreign operation EAERENZRE
Share of exchange difference of a i —HE 8 EREEINER

joint venture arising on translating EEREN Z5E

foreign operation (2,413)
Exchange difference arising on translating B EFINETSE L RIE N Z58

foreign operation 1,116

(1,249)

Total comprehensive expense for the year FRNEEMLBRE (CYR L))
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2016
2016 4F
HK$'000

BT

446,381
(259,552)

186,829

4,738
(102,820)
(87,674)
(6,779)
(43,084)
(20,514)
(2,011)
(170)
(234)
(2,090)

(73,809)
(10,343)

(84,152)

29

(2,485)

1,503
(953)

(85,105)



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

iR BBt 2R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z 201746 A30 A L F[E

2017 2016
2017 2016 4F
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
s BT T BT

Loss for the year attributable to: T ATEIHFEAERE :
Owners of the Company FiN/NETE =N (39,984) (72,591)
Non-controlling interests AR 2 (896) (11,561)

(40,880) (84,152)

Total comprehensive expense for the year THALTEEFREEMAS B :
attributable to:

Owners of the Company KAEHEB A (41,233) (73,544)
Non-controlling interests R (896) (11,561)
(42,129) (85,105)

Loss per share BkEE
Basic and diluted (HK cents) EAR R H#5E (B 12 (2.90)

REFEERER AT ~ 2016/17 F3] dl



Consolidated Statement of Financial P05|t|on

INNUR Y

At 30 June 2017 A 201746 A30H

NOTES
Fft 5
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BRE R R 13
Goodwill EES 14
Intangible assets mEE 15
Interests in associates NG e 16
Interest in a joint venture R—EEELENER 17
Prepayment to an artiste TAfHE&FIE 18
Rental deposits HEZe 24
Deposits for acquisition of property, WEEYI % - BB MR EIES
plant and equipment
Available-for-sale investment AEEERE 19
Deferred tax assets EIERIIEE B 32
Current assets REBEE
Film rights B 20
Film production in progress BHEPEF 20
Available-for-sale investment AMEHERE 19
Investments in film/drama production BEBYHERIE 21
Inventories FE 22
Trade and other receivables B 5 I B Ath FE U R IE 23
Prepayment to an artiste TEfTE B RIE 18
Rental deposits HE&e 24
Amount due from non-controlling interest &Yt 3E1R AR 25 T 1B 28
Tax recoverable ALY B B IR
Pledged bank deposits BRI T 25
Bank balances and cash WITEBRER S 26
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R HARERFRIA 27
Receipts in advance TEl R IE 27
Tax payable FERRLIE
Amounts due to related companies FEAS B E R R FOE 29
Amount due to a joint venture JER—fAl & &5 RIE 30

Net current assets

RBEEFE
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2017
2017
HK$°000
BT T

62,058
5,600
53,454
459
12,000
24,833

15,229

10,832

184,465

9,264
122,521
4,056
27,417
579
9,143
12,000
19,944
245
31,250
31,998

268,417

59,676
71,849
11,479
26
2,116

145,146

123,271

2016
2016 4F
HK$'000

BT

898259

5,600
53,887
47,504
12,000

4,056
7,878

170,184

3,175
80,050

33,401
801
35,716
12,000
19,989
146

31,165
72,177

288,620

45,582
69,037
7,555
402
3,918

126,494

162,126



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR e BRI

At 30 June 2017 72017 6 A 30 H

2017

2017 &

NOTE HK$'000

s BET T

Total assets less current liabilities BREERRBEE 307,736

Capital and reserves EXRE #E

Share capital ¥ 31 6,489

Reserves G 304,725
Equity attributable to owners of the AARFEBAEGLES

Company 311,214

Non-controlling interests IR (3.478)

Total equity B 307,736

The consolidated financial statements on pages 70 to 170 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors of the Company on 28
September 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

WONG PAK MING

ECELS
DIRECTOR

EF

2016
20164
HK$'000
BT
332,310

6,309
327,718

334,027

(=7172)

332,310

BRFEIOEFIT0BZREA Y BRREEARARAES
R2017F9 A28 A ERITERE  WAHIA T AL

RREE

WONG YEE KWAN, ALVINA

B
DIRECTOR
EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

1\\/T\

=
4; Z O\ mam

m 2 ER

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #1-20174 6 A30 AL &E

Attributable to owners of the Company

RREEE AL
Share Non-
Share Share option Other ~ Exchange ~ Warrants Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses ~ Sub-total interests Total
BRE DhER
& ROEE B HUEE  EXGE i ZE8 Nt FERER ag
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BT AETn 5%%?7_5) AT AEtn  A%Tn A%t BETn A%t
Note
(M)
At 1 July 2015 R1557A18 6,040 479313 S 10 1) 495 (128,647) 357,190 10,652 367,842
Loss for the year ERER 5 = = - = 3 (72,591) (72591) (11,51) (84,152)
Share of exchange difference of El—RBENTRERINER
anassociate arising on translating ~ EANELES
foreign operation - - - - 29 - - 29 - 29
Share of exchange differenceofa Bl —HREAXRERIEE
joint venture arising on EEMERZE
translating foreign operation - - - - (2,485) - - (2,485 - (2,485)
Bichange difference arsing on BERNBELNELZE
translating foreign operation = - — - 1,503 o = 1,503 e 1,503
Total comprehensive expense FRRERRAE
for the year - - - - (953) - (72,591) (73,544) (11,561) (85,105)
Acquisition of additional interest WENBARNE VER
in a subsidary - - - - - - - - (1,008) (1,008)
Issue of shares upon exercise ROEBRERESIRG
of warrants {note 31) (GREI; 269 25,040 - - - (200) - 25,109 - 25,109
Recognition of equity-settled TNEREENRABER
share based payments (note 33) R (E33) - - 25272 - - - - 25212 - 25272
Transfer upon share options lapsed R FRAE X BRI (R3£33)
(note 33) - - (25.272) - - - 25212 - - -
Capital contribution from SHARERETTE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - 200 200
At 30 June 2016 R2016F6A30A 6,309 504,353 - 10 (974) 295 (175,966) 334,027 (1,717 332310
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - (39.984) (39.984) (896) (40,380)
Share of exchange difference of Bl -HRENTRERNER
anassociate arising on ranslating ~ EANELES
foreign operation - - - - 48 - - 48 - 48
Share of exchange difference of ElE-Hee bR RERNEE
ajoint venture arising on EANELES
translating foreign operation - - - - 2413 - - 413) - 413
Bxchange difference arsing on BERIEBELNERZE
translating foreign operation - - - - 1,116 - - 1,116 - 1,116
Total comprehensive expense FRRERRAE
for the year - - - - (1,249) - (39,984) (41,233) (89%) (42,129)
Acquisition of non-controlling WE-BHBRANEARES
interests of a subsidiary (note 40) (MizE40) - - - - - - 53 53 (865) (812)
Share of reserve movement of ElE-HRENTINGERY
an assoclate - - - - - - 1627 1627 - 1,627
Issue of shares upon exercise ROEBRERESTRG
of warrants (note 31) (fsk31) 180 16,693 - - - (133) - 16,740 - 16,740
Transfer upon warrants expired IABRER KRR (1)
(note 31) - - - - - (162) 162 - - -
At 30 June 2017 R017F6A30A 6,489 521,046 - 2223) (214,108) 311,214 (3,478) 307,736
Note: Other reserve represents the difference between the aggregate nominal value of the  Ffi3T : B EIEREAEB AEBEARTROREEHEL S

respective share capital of the companies now comprising the subsidiaries of the
Company over the nominal value of the shares of the Company issued pursuant to
the group reorganisation completed on 5 October 2012 (the “Reorganisation”) to
rationalise the structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of the Company’s
shares on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing”).
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

,\\/T\/\fﬁimb

i~

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #1:20174 6 A30 HIL&E

2017
2017 &
HK$'000
BT T

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Interest income
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Share-based payment expense
Amortisation of intangible asset
Impairment loss on goodwill
Impairment loss on other receivable
Impairment loss on intangible asset
Impairment loss on interest in an associate
Impairment loss on film production in
progress
Share of results of associates
Share of results of a joint venture

ey
BRiRIE R
FLNIIBIRMFE
BB A

A EA

M - BELREBITE
HEWE - BE KRERE
VAR 1 R BT 2 R X
B EEH#H
BB E & 18
H b e W R IR R E S 1R
BREERERRE
R—B & QRSN ERR
SUFPREZRERE

PG E R RIRAR
B —HaEhERE

(39,914)

9
(352)

7,744

(14)

20,351

2,400
1,757
(13,494)

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Decrease (increase) in trade and other
receivables

Increase in trade and other payables

Decrease (increase) in investments in film/
drama production

Increase (decrease) in receipts in advance

Decrease in inventories

Decrease (increase) in amount due from
non-controlling interest

(Increase) decrease in film rights and film
production in progress

(Increase) decrease in rental deposits

(Decrease) increase in amount due to a joint
venture

Decrease in amounts due to related companies

Decrease in amount due to non-controlling
interest

LEESEPIKERENE

B 5 K E A AR A (1500)
B 5 K Bt FE A FRIRIE hn
RAEBY,BBEIRERD (510

TEYRIEIE N OB )
ﬁ%b\\ 9\
FE U S 12 A o SRR D (BB )

B AE M EUEPER (8 )R

HEZE () KD
N —F A2 REKIE L) i
FE 15 R 2 )

P& FFEE Hx’fE\

IR A
RIE R

(21,513)

26,469
14,159

5,609
3,058
222
146

(50,960)
(24,831)

(1,802)
(376)

Cash (used in) generated from operations
Income tax paid
Income tax refunded

& (A MBERS
B ETEH
R EFTEHR

(49,819)
(590)
349

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

ReEES (A MEREFE

(50,060)

2016
20164
HK$'000
BT T

(73,809)

170
(1,430)

7,675

25,272
11,154
43,084

2,011
20,514

17,934
234
2,090

54,899

(24,898)
107

(8,350)
(100,892)
130
(146)

92,793
51

3,918
(292)

@)
17,313

(925)
63

16,451
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

N0/ A=k
%mﬁfﬁi/ﬁiﬁ

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & 1: 20174 6 A 30 AL F[E

2017

2017 &

NOTES HK$’000
=3 BT T

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Placement of pledged bank deposits
Investment in an associate
Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits
Dividend received from a joint venture
Interest received
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

REED

TF B EIRRITIE R

R 2ERRNRE

WEME  BEMREBENDNEZES

Yo ig —FIF B A RV AR ME &R
R ERRITER
BER—FHAELERE
EUHE

HEWE - BFE MREMERA

(31.438)
(31,250)
16 (20,000)

(15,229)
31,165
17 58,126
7 352

89
17 -

Formation of a joint venture R —fEEERE
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETBHFARESFEE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE

Proceeds from issue of shares upon exercise of
warrants

Interest paid

Capital contribution from non-controlling
interests

TTIE BRI RE 1R BT D Z FT1S 50R

ENFE
KBRS EE

16,740
9)

(41,514)

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEITBABREFEE

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERBLSEEYRDFE
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING E¥E 4 RESZEY
OF THE YEAR

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEE RSB E

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END FERESRRESEEY
OF THE YEAR, represented by bank RIRITEBR MR ®

balances and cash

31,998
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2016
20164
HK$'000
BT

25,109
(170)

200

25,139

(11,664)

81,750
2,091

72,177



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

General

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. The
Company’s registered office is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-111, Cayman Islands and
its principal place of business is located at Rooms 1801-2, Westlands
Centre, 20 Westlands Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong. Its immediate
and ultimate holding company is Honour Grace Limited (“Honour
Grace"), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal

activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 40.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar ("HK$"), which is the Company’s functional and presentation

currency.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

(“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Accountants (“HKICPA") for

the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interest in Joint Operations

Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception

Are ISR Mot

For the year ended 30 June 2017 &= 201746 A 30 AL FZ

—REH

AaalA—HRHASESHMK IO RAZRERA
A EROREERAT ET o« AAal /M EE
A 7 Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-111, Cayman Islands -
HFrZE XM URE B RRER 205 ERH
HR1801-2%E - HERERKAERDFA/KRE
ERAF(RE]  A—ERABREZES ([H
BRELZES])FMKZAAR -

RABR—FHREZERAR - Ef B AR EE
FEENMEE40

REMBBRRARNRANDER 2N EE L
(ME¥% D25 -

R REERI B RMBRELE
RI(TEBHBHREER D)

\

REAFEBHERNE BV BERELER
A2

1&

AEEDRAFEEREAN THEERHHA
& EBEHAAR ) BEOTBHHREER
THES

BRUBHRESENE R KWERBEREER
CHEN, Em 2 ErTRE

BEAGENF 1R (BATA) WEFE
BAGEANF6NNAEL BENERMEL

SEHERIFE 38R UBEIA) ABITE

ERMBRELER(BRIA) BAAEWBRSE
2012 20148
M FE ki

EAGEANF 16K NEL BE: AENED
BEERIZ 415 (1B3TA)

BRGERFE 275 (BFTA) BUMBRROERE

AR BREEAFE 105 -
BRERBREENF 1257
RAEB G ERIE 285
CHEN,

REER : BRAK
APIsMER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1 for the first time
in the current year. The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that an entity
need not provide a specific disclosure required by an HKFRS if the
information resulting from that disclosure is not material, and give
guidance on the bases of aggregating and disaggregating
information for disclosure purposes. However, the amendments
reiterate that an entity should consider providing additional
disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in HKFRS
is insufficient to enable users of financial statements to understand
the impact of particular transactions, events and conditions on the
entity’s financial position and financial performance.

As regards the structure of the financial statements, the amendments
provide examples of systematic ordering or grouping of the notes.
The Group has applied these amendments retrospectively. The
grouping and ordering of certain notes have been revised to give
prominence to the areas of the Group’s activities that management
considers to be the most relevant to an understanding of the Group's
financial performance and financial position. Specifically, information
to capital risk management and financial instruments was reordered
to notes 35 and 36, respectively, to the consolidated financial
statements. Other than the above presentation and disclosure
changes, the application of the amendments to HKAS 1 has not
resulted in any impact on the financial performance or financial
position of the Group in these consolidated financial statements.

Pegasus Entertainment Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2016/17
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments'
HKFRS 16 Leases?
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration’
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment?

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions'

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture?
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative*
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses*
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property’

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle except
for amendments to HKFRS 12!

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

2w N =

Re ISR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z 201746 A30 A L F[E
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BAUEREERNE % SRIA
EEUBHRELFE 155 FEANKSR

BREET
BEEUBHRELENE 6%  HE?
%sﬁ(ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁiﬁégé INER S RFERRE
) —ZBE2R

BA (AR BRERE FriS Tl IE R
FE®) —REBFE23% N E M2
BB IS RELRFE 25 AR AR AR
CHES RIODBERFE!
BAEM B RELERE 457 FERBBI BRE%EA
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BAERBRELED

F4TREBAENY
ERUBRELENE10RE REFEABRENF

BERGEAF 2857 FeahEZH
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CHEN, B EEE"
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 # = 201746 A30 AL F[E

2. Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and

measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge

accounting and impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group are:

all recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
are required to be subsequently measured at amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a
business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held
within a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets,
and that have contractual terms that give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding, are generally
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI"). All other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at their fair value at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may
make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in
the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognised in profit or loss.

in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected credit
loss model requires an entity to account for expected credit
losses and changes in those expected credit losses at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a
credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk management
policies as at 30 June 2017, application of HKFRS 9 in the future may
have a material impact on the classification and measurement of the
Group's financial assets. The Group’s available-for-sale investment
stated at cost less impairment of HK$4,056,000 as at 30 June 2017
(2016: HK$4,056,000), will either be measured as fair value through
profit or loss or be designated as FVTOCI (subject to fulfilment of the
designation criteria). In addition, the expected credit loss model may
result in early provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred in
relation to the Group’s financial assets measured at amortised cost.

Except for the above, the directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
do not anticipate that the application of HKFRS 9 in the future may
have other material impact on amounts reported in respect of the
Group's financial assets.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In May 2015, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.
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Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue

recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance

obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods
or services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore,
extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation to
the identification of performance obligations, principal versus agent
considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

The Directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 in the
future may result in more disclosures, however, the Directors do not
anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 will have a material
impact on the timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the
respective reporting periods.

Based on the Group existing business model as at 30 June 2017, the
Directors do not anticipate that the application of these amendments
will have a material effect on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of
lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and
lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions
of operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by
lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement
of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease
payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst
others. For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows in
relation to leasehold lands for owned use and those classified as
investment properties while other operating lease payments are
presented as operating cash flows. Under the HKFRS 16, lease
payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal
and an interest portion which will be presented as financing cash
flows.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.
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Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As disclosed in note 34, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of approximately HK$1,203,603,000 among
which lease contracts amounting to HK$1,203,568,000 are within
original lease term more than one year. A preliminary assessment
indicates that these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease
under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless
they qualify for low value or short-term leases upon the application
of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of new requirements may
result changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the financial effect until the Directors
complete a detailed review.

Except as described above, the Directors anticipate that the
application of the other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CQO").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis at the end of each reporting period, as explained

in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases
to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash

flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's relevant components of equity including reserves and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted after re-
attribution of the relevant equity component, and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the
acquisition date (see the accounting policy below); and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If,
after re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in
the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured
at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration that do
not qualify as measurement period adjustments depends on how the
contingent consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates
and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group'’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by
the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the
Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), and additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about
facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that date.

Goodwiill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, which represent the lowest level at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes and not larger than
an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or
more frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period,
the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit
(or group of cash-generating units).
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount
of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
associates and a joint venture is described below.

Investments in associates and a joint venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and a joint venture
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting, The financial statements of associates
and a joint venture used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate or joint
venture. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint
venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or joint venture
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate or joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments in associates and a joint venture
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost
of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group's investment in an associate or a joint venture. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group's consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or
joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns,
rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each of
the Group's activities, as described below.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed.

Income from the distribution of own produced films is recognised
when the production is completed, the film has been released and
distributed to the cinema circuit and the amount can be measured
reliably, which is generally when the cinema circuit confirms to the
Group its share of box office receipts.

Income from the licensing of the distribution rights over films is
recognised when the Group's entitlement to such payments has been
established which, subject to the terms of the relevant agreements, is
usually upon delivery of the film negatives to the customers.

Amounts received for the distribution rights over films before
completion and delivery of production are accounted for as receipts
in advance.

Income from advertising service is recognised upon the provision of
the services. Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Income from box office takings for film exhibition is recognised upon
the sale of tickets and when the film is released.

Income from the screen advertising is recognised when relevant
advertisements and programme are exhibited pursuant to the terms
of the relevant agreements.

Membership income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
membership period.

Income from investments in film/drama production is recognised
when the Group’s entitlement to such payments has been established
which, subject to the terms of the relevant agreements.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land held
under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on
a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests
as appropriate).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses
or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits
Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense

when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties other
than employees are measured at the fair value of the goods or
services received, except where that fair value cannot be estimated
reliably, in which case they are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments granted, measured at the date the entity obtains
the goods or the counterparty renders the service. The fair values of
the goods or services received are recognised as expenses.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwvill.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates,
and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group'’s
accounting policy. Such construction in progresses are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets other
than construction in progress less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Film rights and film production in progress

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any). The Group amortises costs of
film rights in the same ratio that current period actual revenue
(numerator) bears to estimated total projected revenue
(denominator). The Group begins amortisation of the capitalised costs
of film rights when a film is released and it begins to recognise
revenue from that film.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Film rights and film production in progress
(Continued)

The Group reviews and revises estimates of total projected revenue
and total production costs of film rights at the end of each reporting
period. If estimates are revised, the Group adjusts the amount of total
projected revenue (denominator) from the period when such changes
in estimates take place and re-calculated the ratio for amortisation of
film rights. The effect from changes in estimates is recognised on a
prospective basis.

Film production in progress is stated at cost less any provision for
impairment losses. Cost includes all costs associated with the
production of films including remuneration for the film director, casts
and production crew, costumes, insurance, makeup and hairdressing
as well as rental of camera and lighting equipment. Film production
in progress is transferred to film rights when the film is released.

Joint arrangements
Joint operations

When a group entity undertakes film production activities under joint
venture arrangements (which do not involve the establishment of a
corporate entity) and shares the ownership of the film rights upon
completion of the production with other ventures, such film rights
are classified as joint operation. The Group recognises its share of the
joint operation and its share of liabilities incurred jointly with other
ventures in the consolidated statement of financial position, classified
according to their nature.

The Group recognises the income derived from the joint operation (in
accordance with its revenue recognition policy set out above),
together with its share of any expenses incurred in respect of its
interest in the joint operation in its consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at costs, being their fair value at the date of the
revaluation less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect
of impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill (see
the accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not
yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)
Intangible assets acquired separately (Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill (see
the accounting policy in respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of
an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero.
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary
to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial
assets and loans and receivables. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b)
held-to-maturity investments or (c) financial assets at FVTPL.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unguoted equity investments are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
investments in film/drama production, trade and other receivables,
amount due from non-controlling interest, pledged bank deposits
and bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment (see accounting
policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the

fair value of the security below its cost is considered to be objective
evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods (see the
accounting policy below).
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity

instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition. Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, amounts due
to related companies and amount due to a joint venture) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors are required to make estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimates (see below), that the Directors have made in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Estimated impairment loss on film rights and film
production in progress

Management of the Company (“Management”) regularly reviews the
recoverability of the Group's film rights and film production in
progress with reference to its intended use and current market
environment. Appropriate impairment for estimated irrecoverable
amounts are recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired.

In determining whether impairment on film rights and film production
in progress is required, the Group takes into consideration the
distribution and license agreements entered into by the Group and
the current market environment to project cash flows expected to be
received through box office receipts and distribution and licensing
income. Impairment is recognised in the period in which the
recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount. The carrying
amount of film rights and film production in progress as at 30 June
2017 are HK$9,264,000 (2016: HK$3,175,000) and HK$122,521,000
(2016: HK$80,050,000), respectively. An impairment loss of
HK$2,400,000 (2016: HK$17,934,000) has been recognised in
respect of film production in progress for the year ended 30 June
2017. Details are set out in note 20.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimated impairment loss in interests in associates

The Group determines the recoverable amount which is the higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal. The value in use is
based on the estimations of future expected cash flows from the
associates and a suitable discount rate which is performed by
independent professional valuer. The discount rate represents rate
that reflects current market assessments of time value of money.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected or there is
a downward revision of future estimated cash flows due to
unfavourable changes in facts and circumstances, a material
impairment loss may arise. The carrying amount of interests in
associates as at 30 June 2017 is HK$53,454,000 (2016:
HK$53,887,000). An impairment loss of HK$20,351,000 (2016: nil)
has been recognised in respect of interests in associates for the year
ended 30 June 2017. Details of the recoverable amount calculation
for interests in associates are set out in note 16.

Estimated impairment loss on investments in film/
drama production

In assessing the recoverability of investments in film/drama
production, Management assessed the credibility of the
counterparties, the progress of the related film/drama production and
the market condition. Management determines the provision for
impairment of investments in film/drama production taking into
account the estimation of future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. The carrying
amount of investments in film/drama production as at 30 June 2017
is HK$27,417,000 (2016: HK$33,401,000). Details are set out in note
21.

Amortisation of film rights

The Group is required to estimate the projected revenue of the film
rights based on their economic lives in order to ascertain the amount
of amortisation charges for each reporting period. The
appropriateness of the amortisation estimate requires the use of
judgement and assumptions with reference to the prevailing and
future market conditions to estimate total projected revenue over
their economic lives. Changes in these estimates and assumptions
could have a material effect on the amortisation expenses. The
carrying amount of the film rights as at 30 June 2017 is
HK$9,264,000 (2016: HK$3,175,000). Details are set out in note 20.
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Revenue Wz
2017 2016
2017 & 2016 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Film production, distribution and licensing income  BRZEE - 84T R THEGE A FT AT A 83,867 300,237
Film exhibition income BRBRIA 137,291 137,489
Post-production income & BRBIVEIR A 1,957 1,992
Advertising, marketing and publication income B - TS5 E R R 2,516 6,663
225,631 446,381

Segment Information

Information reported to the Directors, being the chief operating
decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance is based on the following
four reportable and operating segments identified under HKFRS 8
Operating Segments.

(i) Film and TV series production and distribution;
(i) Film exhibition;

(iiiy  Post-production; and

(iv)  Advertising, marketing and publication

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
the Group's accounting policies described in note 3. Segment profit
(loss) represent the profit earned or loss incurred by each segment
without allocation of certain other income, certain selling and
distribution expenses, certain administrative expenses, finance costs,
impairment loss on interest in an associate and share of results of
associates. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.
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ARE MR M AT

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z 201746 A30 A L F[E

Segment Information (Continued) 6. AIBER(E)

Segment revenue and results o EBUN R R A

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by UTEZA2EREEED IS DAL B S K
reportable and operating segment. EEDHT °

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BZE2017F6 A30HLEE

Film and
TV series Advertising,

production marketing

and Film Post- and
distribution exhibition production publication Total

EXRERR B% W5
SERBT SHR #AsE HRER R wct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETT BT ik BT

Segment revenue P EblE
— External customers — IR F 137,291 1,957 2,516 225,631
Segment profit (loss) HEE N (B18) (25,575) (EALY) (1,892) (8,500)
Unallocated other income RO BRE YA 370
Unallocated head office AN RCERY

and corporate expenses (9,667)
Finance costs BLARAK ©
Impairment loss on interest in R—FE R A

an associate REBE (20,351)
Share of results of associates i NS (1.757)

Loss before tax BRELRIE R (39,914)
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e B HRR N

For the year ended 30 June 2017 # = 201746 A30 AL F[E

6. Segment Information (Continued) 6. DEER (&)
For the year ended 30 June 2016 BIZE2016F6 A30HLLFE
Film and
TV series Advertising,
production marketing
and Film Post- and
distribution exhibition production publication Total
EYRERE B %5
RERET B ‘ERUE B R R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BETT BT
Segment revenue 7 Ep
— External customers —HEEP 300,237 137,489 1,992 6,663 446,381
Segment profit (loss) A Ear (E8) 56,766 (12,876) (3.769) (79,870) (39,749)
Unallocated other income AOEHEMBA 1,754
Unallocated head office and APENETRCERY
corporate expenses (35,410)
Finance costs BEKA (170)
Share of results of an associate  JE{5— B4 N A E4E (234)
Loss before tax B ETE S (73,809)
As the Group’s segment assets and liabilities are not regularly AR ASENDREENMBEWIETHREH T A
provided to the Group’s CODM, the relevant analysis for both years is SENEZELERKE  WHEZIREFED
not presented. BRADMNT -
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z 201746 A30 A L F[E

Segment Information (Continued) 6. DEER (HE)
Other segment information Hith 7 ZB&E R
For the year ended 30 June 2017 BZE2017566 A30HLLFE

Film and
TV series Advertising,
production marketing

and Film Post- and
distribution exhibition  production  publication  Unallocated Total

EYRELRS e
BERERT EYHB ®RAE  BERLW RAE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BRI BETT BT BETT BT

Amounts included in the measured SEANERRARE

of segment profit or loss: fed:
Depreciation of property, plant 0% BEREENE

and equipment
Share of results of a joint venture BlE—HAgtE%E
Amounts reqularly provided to the THRETIEEERRS

CODM but notincluded in the measure Bt ENEBHEB T EAHE

of segment profit or loss: e
Interest income FMEMA 352 352
Finance costs AR b )
Impairment loss on interest in an associate 3 — k42 Al g4

fRESE (20351) (20,351)

Share of results of associates NGBS (1757) (1.757)
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Segment Information (Continued) 6. DEER (&)
Other segment information (Continued) BEoHER (8)
For the year ended 30 June 2016 HZE2016 6 B30 HLLEE
Film and
TV series Advertising,
production marketing
and Film Post- and
distribution exhibition production publication  Unallocated Total
BEYRERE EE M5
RERES B0 FERE  HERDR RAE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Amounts included in the measured HENUEREEENEE:
of segment profit or loss:
Depreciation of property, plant n% - BEREENE
and equipment 392 5015 1,687 407 174 7,675
Impairment loss on goodwill BEHERE - - - 43,084 - 43,084
Impairment loss on BYEERERE
intangible asset - - - 20,514 - 20,514
Amortisation of By EERE
intangible asset - - - 11,154 - 11,154
Share of results of a joint venture Flh—HAet¥EE (2,090) - - - - (2,090)
Amounts reqularly provided to the THRMATIECEREE
CODM but not included in the BEtEN BREHLERR
measure of segment profit or loss: MEH
Interest income FIBHA - - - - 1,430 1,430
Finance costs AR - - - - (170) (170)
Share of results of an associate EE-FBERREE - - - - (234) (234)
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Segment Information (Continued)
Geographical information
An analysis of the Group's revenue from external customers by

geographical market based on where the film distribution and
licensing income is derived from are as below:

ARE MR M AT

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z 201746 A30 A L F[E

7 EREF ()
AR BN ASNBES RIS BT R

H T A PR T AT M A FRTE SR TS B 5 05 1
W -

2017 2016

2017 & 2016 4F

HK$"000 HK$'000

BT PSR T

Hong Kong and Macau B RIRF 169,873 196,597
The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") REEAREMB ([HRE]) 43,325 192,968
North America ik - 23,337
South East Asia Region REEn & 7,890 17,292
Others Hp 4,543 16,187
225,631 446,381

The Group's non-current assets by geographical location of the assets
are details below:

REEMEMREI NN EEIERBEEFTIN
™

2017 2016

2017 & 201645
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

The PRC F
Hong Kong N

15,482 273
168,983 169,911

184,465 170,184
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 # = 201746 A30 AL F[E

6. ZEEFR (&)
ERXEEFNER

6. Segment Information (Continued)
Information about major customers

HRFERE /A EBAHERERA 10% %

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing

over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as follows: PUEIT
2017 2016
2017 2016 F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Customer A’ ZER1 26,460 N/A2
Customer B! BE N/A 87,753
Customer C' EERA! N/A 78,159

KEBYLEGBRIERBETELENRE -
MEREUZR W R BB AR SR AR YA B 10% JA o

! Revenue from film and TV series production and distribution. !
2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue 2
of the Group.
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7. Other Gains and Other Income 7. Bz EMBUA
2017 2016
2017 5 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Other gains Hib iz
Compensation income (note i) HEWA (BFEED -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEY3 « iE &R EHUE -
Other income Hgl A
Handling service income BRIE RIS HA 2,335
Investment income from investments in BEEY BB RENIRERA
film/drama production -
Government subsidies (note ii) R B (PR &) -
Membership income gEIWA 505
Interest income AN ON 1,430
Franchise income FRETREUR A >
Others EAh 468
4,738
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Notes:

@)

(ii)

8.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Other Gains and Other Income (Continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2017, the Group received a compensation of
approximately RMB4,684,000 (equivalent to HK$5,339,000) from the
landlord of a cinema leased in the PRC due to the delay in handover of the
leased cinema to the Group. The compensation income was unconditional
and paid to the Group in according to the lease agreement entered into with
the landlord.

During the year ended 30 June 2017, one of the Group's subsidiaries in the
PRC received approximately RMB501,000 (equivalent to HK$571,000)
subsidies from the local authority for the purpose of encouraging the
development of group entity in science and technology park. The subsidies
received are giving immediate financial support to the Group’s entity with no
future related cost or without any conditions and accordingly recognised in
profit or loss during the year ended 30 June 2017.

Income Tax Expense

ARE MR M AT

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z 201746 A30 A L F[E

7.

(ii)

H s & E AW A (5)

HZE2017F6 A30BLLFE  ASEE—RTEA

FRMEFTEEAAEERRBE TR mKE W
EH AR ¥ 4,684,000 (FHE R #E#5,339,0007T) °
BEREEFITIHWEERZE - MERATEGES
HFAER -

HZE2017F6 A30B LLFE - AEEH— M EH
BARNEIM S ERASBREENEEETRBER
M 2% IR 69 7 Bh 49 A R # 501,000 7T (48 & 1 78 #
571,0007T) ° WEI K FHBE AR B E EEIRE T IR A
MisS - BWEAKMEEER - IEERIES
RN AEEZE 2017456 A30 B IEFEMBRPRER -

8. FIEHiBAx

2017
2017 &
HK$'000
BET T

2016
20165
HK$'000
BT T

The income tax expense comprises: FriSHif s 84F :
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBNEH
— current — BNEA
— underprovision in prior years — BAFERETR

7,746
78

7,824

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT")
— current
— underprovision in prior years

— BNHER

REIRRATEH ([REMEH])

— BEFERETRE

808

817

Deferred taxation (note 32)

EERIE (MFE32)

8,641
1,702

10,343

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law")
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries are 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

ERBFEHIEMETEMNGHTERE G M
16.5% 5t & o

RIEFBETZEMGRE ([REMEHE]D K%
PSR EE ISR - o BB A 75 2008 F 1 A
1 BRABAER25% °
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 # = 201746 A30 AL F[E

8. Income Tax Expense (Continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss before tax
per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

8. FrEHiE< (&)

BB AT SR T

2017

2017 5
HK$'000
BEET T

Loss before tax

FRELRIES IR (39,914)

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 16.5%
(2016: 16.5%)

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purpose

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised

Tax effect of impairment loss on goodwill

Tax effect of impairment loss on intangible asset

Tax effect of impairment loss on interest in
an associate

Tax effect of impairment loss on film production
in progress

Tax effect of impairment loss on other receivable

Tax effect of share of results of associates

Tax effect of share of results of a joint venture

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating 7> H b B A7 [& & :E 7 i B A 518

AR PSR R 16.5% 2T E M B 18
(20164 : 16.5%)

BEEHWANTISE

TR B R S B i 2

RERNHRBBRNREEZE
AL RERNRABRNORGEE

BEREBRNRETE

BIVEEREBENRETZE

R — B2 QR SRR EEE
MBEE

SERERREBBRNHRETE

Bt MR EBIENRE T E
EE A PNSIE S OS2
BlE—HAECEXRENRBTE

in other jurisdictions TRRENTZE
Underprovision in prior years BEFERETR
Others At
Tax charge for the year FAFIEZ H

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 32.

EETR IR IS E NI FE32 o
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FABRBAXHEGESERREME2EKERAR

2016
20164
HK$'000
kst

(73,809)

(12,178)
(521)

7,827
2,055

(804)
7,109
3,385

2,464
332
39
345

313

87
(110)

10,343



Loss for the Year

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE MR M AT

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z 201746 A30 A L F[E

9. FREE

2017
2017 &
HK$'000
BET T

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging: & A& 18 Jh & HIBR A N S IEEHE -

6,708
20,797

1,243

28,748

Directors’ emoluments B

Other staff costs Efth 8 TRKA

Retirement benefit scheme contributions, RNEFET BT - TEFBESMHR
excluding those of Directors

Total staff costs BT AMEEE

Auditors’ remuneration ZERN B &

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment WE - BERRETE

Amortisation of intangible asset mEEEH

Cost of film rights recognised as an expense TR A B ER A

Impairment loss on film production in progress
(included in cost of sales)

Minimum lease payments under operating
leases in respect of:
Premises
Cinemas

Contingent rents incurred for cinema

Cost of services provided

Cost of inventories sold

Share-based payment expense

SUEREFRRERR (I AHERK)

THEEAEET

L
Bk
BYREENHIA
SRR A
AR
BARRD B EERE 1 B

BB R &K

H&

R S

1,669
7,744

37,181

2,400

3,710
74,868
1,332
58,742
2,295

2016
20164
HK$'000
BT

(HF893
22,116

1,171

34,680

=
7,675
11,154
171,315

17,934

4,314
57,158
1,509
61,052
2,657
25,272
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 # = 201746 A30 AL F[E

10. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and Employees’ 10. % - (THABRREEMS

Emoluments

Directors and the chief executive’s emoluments EERTHRATZHNS

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed BiEER MBI RAHEOIFEEFENES &
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and CO, is as follows: THREZHMSHT

Retirement
Salaries and benefit
Directors’ other scheme
fees Bonus allowances  contributions Total
FeRk RAGER
E=He A HitZ Rk STEIfR &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BET T BETT BETT BETT
(Note c)
(=t c)

For the year ended 30 June 2017 2201756 A30H
LEE

Executive Directors (Notea)  #{7E% (Hiifa)
Mr. Wong Pak Ming UL
Ms. Wong Yee Kwan, Alvina Rt
Mr. Wong Chi Woon, Edmond & 1854

Independent non-executive BN FEHTES (HiEb)

Directors (Note b)
Mr. Lam Kam Tong MBELE
Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk BRELE
Mr. Tang Kai Kui, Terence B E
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z 201746 A30 A L F[E

10. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and Employees’ 10. % - THABREEMS (&)
Emoluments (Continued)

Directors and the chief executive’s emoluments EERITHRARZME (H)
(Continued)
Retirement
Salaries and benefit
Directors' other scheme
fees Bonus allowances contributions Total
ek RINMER
EETikn TEAT Hi28h HEES CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BETT BT BT
(Note ¢)
(BizEc)

For the year ended 30 June 2016 %2016 £6 A 30 A
LFE

Executive Directors (Note a) ~ H{TEZ (Kizta)

Mr. Wong Pak Ming HERBEE - 5,000 2,850 = 7,850
Ms. Wong Yee Kwan, Alvina BRPLT - 500 1,175 18 1,693
Mr. Wong Chi Woon, Edmond ~ EF185 4 - 500 900 18 1,418

Independent non-executive ~ BIFHTES (HiEb)

Directors (Note b)

Mr. Lam Kam Tong WiRE L 144 - - - 144

Mr. Lo Eric Tien-cheuk BRETAE 144 _ _ _ 144

Mr. Tang Kai Kui, Terence RS 144 - _ _ 144

432 6,000 4,925 36 11,393

Notes: ffsE -

(a) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their (a) YRR TEEME I EREX IR ER AR T
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company EAREENEHEEIEMIRHNRE -
and the Group.

(b) The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were (b) FXFRRBYIERITESINES T E R REE
mainly for their services as directors of the Company. ERRRIESATIRHEART -

(0 The amounts represented discretionary bonuses paid to the Directors for (0) ZELREABRMESE F—FHAEBRNESKE
their contributions to the Group’s business expansion in prior year. RIEH B BB MRS X A BISIEAT -

No emoluments of chief executive disclosed as the Group has no ARAEBREZE 20179 %2016 6 A30H 1t

appointment of chief executive during the year ended 30 June 2017 FEVEZTTRAR T EREBRTREEN

and 2016. B o
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 # = 201746 A30 AL F[E

10. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and Employees’
Emoluments (Continued)

Employees

Of the five highest paid individuals of the Group, the number of
directors and employees were as follows:

10. E5 THAERBREEME (&)

B’E

AEEDTARSFALTET EFTREENAHK
nr

2016
20164

Directors
Employees

B8

The remuneration of the Directors are set out above. The emoluments
of the remaining individuals were as follows:

BEREMEN EXE - BT ALHBENT

¥re RHEAMERL
RIRRERIET SR

Salaries and other allowances
Retirement benefit scheme contributions

2017 2016
2017 & 2016 4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
2,407 3,310

36 36

3,346

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

RENMENF THNEE :

Number of employee
EEA™
2016
20164

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000
Less than HK$1,000,000

7% 1,500,001 702 45 2,000,000 7T
7B 1,000,001 7L E B 1,500,000 7T
KA 1,000,000 7T

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the Directors or the five highest paid individuals (including Directors
and employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office. No Directors waived any
emoluments for the years ended 30 June 2017 and 2016.

120
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ARE MR M AT

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z 201746 A30 A L F[E

11. Dividends 1. RE
No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 30 June 2017, ARABREZE2017F6 A30 8 IEFEIXRIRN
nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting sEIR A ERIAR S - B B RS AR AR AR I AR
period (2016: nil). BRI EMRE (20165 : &) ©
12. Loss Per Share 12. BREE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable to KNG EEA A FE(L B B2 [ 858 B 18 Th AR 15 A
owners of the Company is based on the following data: TEUETE -
2017 2016
2017 2016 4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Loss BB
Loss for the year attributable to owners of STEEREARREEEIEN
the Company for the purpose of basic RAREE ANEEFEREIR
and diluted loss per share 72,591
2016
2016 4F

Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for st E&RRER L EEEH
the purpose of basic and diluted loss per share 38 MDA S IR R

PR AR PR 2,493,134,663

The computation of the diluted loss per share for both years did not STEMEFEGREEEETDREARARREARIT
assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding warrants since R RAIE W RETE - S TARRITEZER
their exercise would result in a decrease in loss per share. IRIEFHEHEREERD
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 # = 201746 A30 AL F[E

13. Property, Plant and Equipment 13. V¥ BERRE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor Computer Construction
improvements equipment vehicles equipment in progress Total
G- 2B

HEXHE e "E EKRE ERIR &it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETL BETT BETT BEFT BETL BETT

cosT RA&
At 1 July 2015 R201587R 18 29413 7,567 1,717 12,915 - 51,612
Exchange adjustments BN A% - - 27 - - 27
Additions NE - 14 619 865 - 1,498
At 30 June 2016 201656 A308 29,413 7,581 2,309 13,780 - 53,083
Exchange adjustments  [E X 5§ - - (13) (1) - (14)
Additions RE 20 2 - 681 30,715 31,438
Disposals HE - (30 - (1,849) - (1,879
At 30 June 2017 R201756A308 29,433 1573 2,29 12,61 30,715 82,628

DEPRECIATION e
At 1uly 2015 R201557A1H 2,946 697 720 1,791 - 6,154
Exchange adjustments  [E ¥ 53% - - (5 - - (5)
Provided for the year FRERE 3,045 1,499 391 2,740 - 7,675
At 30 June 2016 #2016%6 A308 5991 2,1% 1,106 4531 - 13,824
Exchange adjustments ~ [E X - - (5) 4 - (6)
Provided for the year FREE 3,041 1,501 459 2,783 - 7,744
Eliminated on disposals ~ FAE &8 - (15) - (977) - (992)
At 30 June 2017 2017564308 20,570

CARRYING AMOUNTS  BmEE

At 30 June 2017 2017564308 62,058
At 30 June 2016 2016564308 23422 5385 1,203 9,249 - 39,259
The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for Ltz - BE REEEE (ERZIERIN TR
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at BRI T FRIE

the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements 10% to 20% AERE 10% £ 20%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20% R RERE 20%
Motor vehicles 20% seE 20%
Computer equipment 20% E B 20%
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z 201746 A30 A L F[E

14. Goodwill 14. BE
Goodwill
5k
HK$'000
BT
COST R
At 1 July 2015, 30 June 2016 and 2017 7201547 A 18 * 2016 F % 20176 A30H 181,084

IMPAIRMENT AR
At 1 July 2015
Impairment loss recognised for the year

M®2015F7A1H
FRERRBERE

(138,000)
(43,084)

At 30 June 2016 and 2017

R2016F % 2017496 A30H

(181,084)

CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
At 30 June 2017

M2017F6 A30H

At 30 June 2016

R2016F 6 A30H

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill (before impairment
loss) of HK$181,084,000 (2016: HK$181,084,000) has been
allocated to the groups of cash-generating unit(s) (“CGU(s)") of Chili
Advertising & Promotions Limited (“Chili”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “Chili Group”) which included Chili and
Chili Platinum Advertising and Magazine Publishing Limited (“Chili
Platinum”) acquired by the Group in 2015.

Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement dated 6 March 2015
(as amended by a supplemental agreement dated 30 April 2015) (the
“Agreement”) entered into between Green Riches Holdings Limited
("Green Riches”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
Ms. Wong Kit Fong, the sister of Mr. Wong Pak Ming (“Mr. Wong"),
the Chairman and substantial shareholders of the Company, as the
vendor for the acquisition of Chili Group at a total consideration of
stated amount of HK$68,000,000, which was satisfied partly by
HK$10,040,000 paid in cash and HK$57,960,000 was satisfied by
issuance of 46,000,000 consideration shares by the Company at the
agreed issuance price of HK$1.26 per consideration share
("Consideration Share”) (the “Acquisition”).

SRERNHTS  mENRBERBIEA) B
181,084,000 7T (2016 £ : 7% #£ 181,084,000 7T )
ENTEAREEFR 2015 F U BE Y Chili Advertising
& Promotions Limited ([Chili]) & E KT 8B A &) (4
BATChIER ] BREChIEEBEASHMEES
PhrERAR(EEae))MRSEESEMN([E
SEAEEN])AR -

BIBEZBIERERAR([RE] XRFHEE
MEAR) MERS LT (RARAEFRETERRE
=HRABEE(ELE]D) NG - EBEH) B
BEChili =@ AT A8 4201543 A6 BN EE#H
H(EEHEA2015F4 A30 B E R REHE )
([ ]) - 3TRARMR(E5 % 68,000,000 7TH
75 110,040,000 LA R & X - i B
57,960,000 LA AR AR HE ZHTEERNKE
BAD S #5 1.26 J5 31T 46,000,000 A ALB B A ([
BRR G ) 2T (TYEEE1E]) -
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14.

124

Goodwill (Continued)

At 12 June 2015, the date of completion of the Acquisition, the fair
value of aggregate consideration paid for the Acquisition was
increased from HK$68,000,000 as stated in the Agreement to
HK$206,000,000 at the date of completion due to the unforeseen
increase in the quoted market price of the Company’s shares. The
market price of the fixed number of Consideration Shares paid as
part of the consideration of the Acquisition increased from HK$1.26
(at the date of the Agreement) to HK$4.26 (at the date of completion
of the Acquisition) per Consideration Share. As a result, the amount
of goodwill recognised as of the date of completion of the
Acquisition was HK$181,084,000 instead of the original estimated
amount of HK$43,084,000, which was estimated as of the date of
the Agreement based on the stated consideration amount of
HK$68,000,000.

During the year ended 30 June 2016, Management intended to
terminate its publishing cooperation agreement with an independent
third party and planned to cease the publication of a magazine
operated by Chili Platinum under Chili Group due to its unsatisfactory
operating results which was mainly due to decrease in demand for
advertising market for luxury products and services in the PRC arising
from the slowdown of the growth of the PRC economy and
conspicuous spending. In August 2016, the Group eventually entered
into a termination agreement with the independent third party
regarding the publishing cooperation agreement and ceased the
publication of the magazine operated by Chili Platinum. As a result,
Management had taken the termination of the publishing
cooperation agreement into consideration for the purpose of
impairment assessment of Chili Group for the year ended 30 June
2016.

As at 30 June 2016, the recoverable amount of Chili Platinum had
been determined based on fair value less costs of disposal
calculations. The recoverable amount of Chili had been determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period and a discount rate of 12.40%. Cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a steady 3%
growth rate. The estimation of the budgeted sales and gross margins
is based on past performance of Chili and Management’s
expectations for the market development. The estimated recoverable
amount of Chili Group was below its carrying amount, accordingly
the Group recognised an impairment loss of HK$43,084,000,
representing the difference between recoverable amount and the
carrying amount of Chili Group, in relation to goodwill and charged
to profit or loss during the year ended 30 June 2016.
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z 201746 A30 A L F[E

15. Intangible Assets 15. B EE
Publishing
cooperation
Brand agreement Total
BmE  HREFEGS BEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT T
cosT B
At 1 July 2015, 30 June 2016 and 2017 4201547 A1 8 - 2016 F &
201796 A30H 31,900 37,500
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION R BHERRE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 July 2015 7201547818 X 232 232
Provided for the year FEREE - 11,154 11,154
Impairment loss recognised for the year FREHERMEEIE - 20,514 20,514
At 30 June 2016 and 2017 R2016F X% 201746 A30H 31,900 31,900
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
At 30 June 2017 720176 A30H
At 30 June 2016 7201646 A30H 5,600 - 5,600
The intangible assets are allocated to the CGU of Chili Group BIZEEDDEZAEE TR Chili & E/)IR
acquired by the Group which is presented under “Advertising, CELEN MZBASELBUIRIES M
marketing and publication” reporting segment. SRR REDITIETZS -
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15.

126

Intangible Assets (Continued)
Brand

The brand name is associated to the advertising and promotion
services operated by Chili and it is treated as having indefinite useful
life because it is expected to contribute to net cash inflows to the
Group indefinitely. Therefore, it is not amortised until its useful life is
determined to be finite.

As at 30 June 2017, the recoverable amount of Chili has been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
Management covering a five-year period and a discount rate of
12.61% (2016: 12.40%). Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 3% (2016: 3%) growth rate. The
estimation of the budgeted sales and gross margins is based on past
performance of Chili and Management’s expectations for the market
development.

Publishing cooperation agreement

During the year ended 30 June 2015, Chili Platinum entered into a
publishing cooperation agreement that used to publish the magazine,
namely “Platinum of UnionPay” for a term of four years which can
be renewed if not objected by the parties entered into the publishing
cooperation agreement. Amortisation is provided to write off the cost
of the publishing cooperation agreement using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful life of 2.86 years’ representing the
remaining contractual life at the completion date of acquisition of
Chili Platinum.

The Group had ceased publication of the magazine operated by Chili
Platinum in August 2016 due to its unsatisfactory operating results.
For the year ended 30 June 2016, Management had taken the
termination of the publishing cooperation agreement into
consideration for the purpose of impairment assessment of Chili
Platinum. The recoverable amount of Chili Platinum had been
determined based on fair value less costs of disposal calculations.
Accordingly, the Group recognised an impairment loss of
HK$20,514,000 in relation to intangible asset and charged to profit
or loss during the year ended 30 June 2016.
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16. Interests in Associates 16. REEE QTR

2017 2016
2017 & 2016 6F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Cost of unlisted investments in associates REEE R AR R ETIRE KA 74,000 54,000
Impairment loss recognised (Note) B RERREEE () (20,351) <
53,649 54,000

Share of post-acquisition losses and MR EE R A
other comprehensive expenses (195) (113)
53,454 53,887

On 22 November 2013, the Group had completed the acquisition of
JDH at a consideration of HK$54,000,000. The Group is able to
exercise significant influence over JDH because it has power to
appoint 2 out of 5 directors of the associate under the Articles of
Association of JDH. Therefore, JDH is accounted for as an associate of
the Group.

JDH is an investment holding company incorporated in the BVI with
limited liability and its subsidiaries (collectively known as “JDH
Group”), are principally engaged in comic publication and owns the
intellectual property rights of a database of comic stories and comic
heroes. Management anticipates that the Group would make use of
the intellectual property rights of the associate (including but not
limited to the comic stories and comic characters) that the Group
considers they are suitable for reproduction as films.

Note: The recoverable amount of the CGU arising from JDH Group was determined
based on value in use calculations which was performed by an independent
valuer as at 30 June 2017. For impairment purpose, the calculation uses cash
flow projections of the associate based on the financial budgets attributable
to the equity interest of the Group approved by Management covering five-
year period and a post-tax discount rate of 21.94% (2016: 22.58%). Cash
flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a steady 2% (2016:
2%) growth rate for the CGU. The key assumption is budgeted revenue
determined based on the associate’s past performance and the
Management'’s view of future business prospects.

During the year ended 30 June 2017, the Group recognised an impairment
loss of HK$20,351,000 of JDH Group due to the intense competition in the
market of comic publication and licencing the copyrights of comic which
resulted in a decrease in sales revenue for the year ended 30 June 2017 as
compared to the budget and the expected future cashflows is decreased
accordingly. As a result, the difference of recoverable amount, which is the
value in use, and the carrying amount (containing goodwill) is recognised as
an impairment loss and charged to profit or loss.

NEEBEDN2013F1MA28 LR BB K
54,000,000 TCre U EE 28] - AE@MB E 28
EEAFEN AAEREIESVHMAHEZZH
AEEZABEA ARG SUEEFRN2ML - AL
EE2PARIEREBMEE QT -

FENR - HERBRERZEHSEMARLNRER
BBERAT  ZATREKHEAR (5[ 23
SEDIERFEERT UHFEERERE
EREADBIBEENNBERE - BRERY - K
SEBEATEERAERERAETNBER
AAHER(BRETRNEERFEREEXMH
A#) °

et EEREEEENRSEEENNARESETIH
B EERR2017F6 B30 R EREENEEE -
RREMS NEATEBMILERERFH A
SERERGRMBEEFENBERARRERE
B ER AT 1% BHIR % 21.94% (2016 4F © 22.58% ) i
Tt - BERAFHNRERDIRARSELEN
#12% (20164 : 2% ) BTEEREHE - T2BEA
BIEHEARBARBEREEEHARERIRN
BERETHES W -

HZE2017F6 A30BLFE  AEEEREEHE

BRI EE BB 120,351,000 - RAREZEITH
G R = R T AT B E 2017 6 A 30
HIEFERHE RaREE AR RIEHR KR
SREIERR D « Bt ATRESBENERAE
REREBEENEAEBEREEE(BEFE) LR
BaEANE °
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16.

128

Interests in Associates (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2017

On 11 July 2016, the Group acquired 40% equity interest of Supreme
Art Entertainment Limited (“Supreme Art”) at a consideration of
HK$20,000,000 which is referenced to a valuation report prepared
by an independent valuer to the Group at the completion date of
acquisition. The Group is able to exercise significant influence over
Supreme Art because it has power to appoint 1 out of 3 directors of
the associate under the Articles of Association of Supreme Art.
Therefore, Supreme Art is accounted for as an associate of the
Group.

Supreme Art is a private entity incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability which is engaged in provision of artiste management
and agency services. Management anticipates that the artiste of
Supreme Art could be participated in the film production of the
Group.

The carrying amount of the Group's interest in Supreme Art is also
tested for impairment by comparing the respective recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount of the Group’s investment in
Supreme Art has been determined based on value in use calculations
which was performed by an independent valuer as at 30 June 2017.
For impairment purpose, the calculation uses cash flow projections of
the associate based on the financial budgets attributable to the
equity interest of the Group approved by Management covering five-
year period and a post-tax discount rate of 20.85%. Cash flows
beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a steady 3% growth
rate for the CGU. Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations relate to the cash flow projections which include the
artiste management fee received, such estimation is based on the
Management's view of future business prospects.

As at 30 June 2017, the recoverable amount of Supreme Art is higher

than the respective carrying amount and thus no impairment loss is
recognised regarding to the Group's interest in Supreme Art.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z 201746 A30 A L F[E

16. RELE N R AR ()

The details of the Group’s associates at 30 June 2017 and 2016 are BN EBE SN T RN2017 5 %2016 6 A 30
as follows: HH BT -
Proportion
Place of Principal of ownership Proportion of
incorporation/ place of interest held voting rights
Name of associate registration  business by the Group held by the Group  Principal activities
1300 AVIZENE 2 AEEFEFE
BENTEM =Eioh ] EEHE RN A AEEAREENLH TBES
2016
20164
Jade Dynasty Holdings BVI Hong Kong 40% Comic publication and owns the
Limited intellectual property rights of a data
base of comic stories and comic heroes
FEPERERDA RERNES BE 40% BERT THEHEENFR
BELIEANER BN ASER
Supreme Art Hong Kong Hong Kong 33.33% N/A  Artiste management and agency services
ek B BB 33.33% TER REEBRRARRE

These associates are accounted for using the equity method in these
consolidated financial statements.

IR o
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16. Interests in Associates (Continued) 16. REtE AR (8)
The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's T E DI AN £ E B D BB IS BB B B R 5 42
associates is set out below and was prepared in accordance with BRI TEEREE -
HKFRSs.
JDH Group FEHEH
2017 2016
2017 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Non-current assets FRBEE 79,052 77,766
Current assets mEBEE 16,335 24,566
Current liabilities REE R (16,869) (18,491)

Net assets BEFE 78,518 83,841

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2017 30 June 2016
HE2017 5 HZE20164F

6H30H 6 A30H

IEFE HEE

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BETT

Revenue Wz 17,156 23,979

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the B NEIHER AEMFEEERE
associate (9,541) (584)

Group's share of loss RNEBEFEILETE (3.816) (234)

Other comprehensive income for the year FREM2ERE 119 72

Group's share of other comprehensive income AEBRGEMEEIKZE 29
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z 201746 A30 A L F[E

16. Interests in Associates (Continued) 16. REE QTR (B)
JDH Group (Continued) EEFHEE(E)
Recondiliation of the above summarised financial information to the il BA R A R B B A AR A B S R 3R R SR A A B
carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in the EN AR AREE AR

consolidated financial statements:

2017 2016
2017 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Net assets of JDH Group -EHEBMNEESFE 78,518 83,841
Non-controlling interests of JDH Group T EREENIEERER (31) =
78,487 83,841
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest REBERNEESHREEMERERLD
in JDH Group 40% 40%
31,395 33,536
Goodwill SRS - 20,351
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest AEERESHEERENREE
in JDH Group 53,887
Supreme Art [k
2017
2017
HK$'000
BT T
Non-current assets FRBEE 20,371
Current assets MENEE 13,464
Current liabilities MENAE (3,688)
Net assets BEFE 30,147
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16. Interests in Associates (Continued)

Supreme Art (Continued)

16. RELE N R AR ()
2 ()

Period from
12 July 2016 to
30 June 2017
H2016 &
78128 %
2017

6 30 HEAME
HK$'000
BT

Yozt

Revenue

13,080

Profit for the period attributable to owners of the associate B

ERRIHEE ARIEHNER

5,148

Group's share of profit

REBEREN

2,059

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

EIREA RS AR R BN AR S TS R W AR A O B
BRRESAREENERR

2017

2017 5
HK$ 000
BEET T

Net assets of Supreme Art
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in Supreme Art

SIBMEEFE
AR B EE P A S A L )

30,147
40%

Goodwill [EES

12,059
10,000

Carrying amount of the Group's interest in Supreme Art REERIL

LESMREE

22,059
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z 201746 A30 A L F[E

17. Interest in a Joint Venture 17. R—EEELENER

2017 2016

2017 § 2016 4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T PSR T

Cost of unlisted investment in a joint venture R—HAERERETRERA 52,079 52,079
Share of post-acquisition profit (loss) and FEAEW R = A (B18) &

other comprehensive income (expense) Hih 2wl (AxR) 6,506 (4,575)

FRUERRBLE

Dividend received during the year

(58,126) =

459 47,504

On 8 June 2015, Pegasus Motion Pictures (Hong Kong) Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Harmonious
Entertainment (Shanghai) Co., Ltd (“"HES") and Bounty Yoohanhwesa
("BY") entered into a Co-Production and Co-Financing Agreement to
co-produce and co-finance a film production namely “Bounty
Hunters”. The production budget of the film was
KRW18,375,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$130 million).
The production cost of the film was approximately HK$103 million.
“Bounty Hunters” was released during the year ended 30 June 2017.

Bounty Productions Limited (“BPL") (a limited company incorporated
in Hong Kong) has been set up solely for the film production of
“Bounty Hunters”. The Group, HES and BY held 40.00%, 25.51%
and 34.49% equity interest in BPL respectively. The board of directors
of BPL, the governing body which directs the relevant activities that
significantly affects the returns of BPL, consists of three directors of
which the Group, HES and BY can appoint one director each to the
board of directors of BPL. The relevant activities required to be
approved unanimously by all these three directors. Therefore, BPL is
jointly controlled by the Group, HES and BY. As the joint arrangement
does not result in either parties having rights to assets and obligations
to liabilities of BPL, it is accounted for as a joint venture of the Group.

R201566 A8H  ARRIEELEAWBARKR
FEFLEM(EE) AR A A BEHarmonious
Entertainment (Shanghai) Co., Ltd ([HES]) &
Bounty Yoohanhwesa ([BY ) 5] 37 Bt & & /E &
FIRLE % - LA RMERKFARE —FHEAIE
CEAINEX ZHBETNEELESR
18,375,000,0005 & (1R AHBHE130EETT) °
HESE M BRUER AL B 103 EE T [ESE
AJEZE2017F6 A30B EFED L# -

EeREARAR(ES ) RESEMALE KT
NERRR BEMEASFIHSEA] &E-
AN & B - HESKBYD Bl # B B £40.00% -
2551% Kk 34.49% k- ELESE (BLRAE

YEESHRNEBINREERR) B =%
EEEK  ERAEE  HES EBY AR B EE—
LEENMAECEETS - HAEEAELZE =
EFEIUE At E2BAAEE - HES KBY
HEES - AR ERZHTSEREN—FH %S
EEeMEERFNRBERT  WESARALSE
EmEEhE-
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 # = 201746 A30 AL F[E

17. Interest in a Joint Venture (Continued)

The details of the Group’s joint venture at 30 June 2017 and 2016

are as follows:

Place of Principal
incorporation/ place of
Name of joint venture  registration  business
1AV IZENE
RELENER B EEBE
Bounty Productions Hong Kong PRC
Limited
ERREBR LA BB hE

Proportion
of ownership
interest held
by the Group
TEEEEH

PRz LU

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in these

consolidated financial statements.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's joint
venture is set out below and were prepared in accordance with

17. R—BaEbXNER (&)

NEERESLPEN2017E K 201656 A30H
HIFBIR ¢

Proportion
of voting
rights held
by the Group
EEEIEEN
REELH
2017
2017

Principal activities

TEXK
2016
20165

33.33% 33.33% Production and distribution of the film

33.33% 33.33% EFRERETHEM

ZEEAMBRERAAELEDERREDEAR -

BFRAAKESECENMBEMNRZ(REER
MBS ERRE) ST o

HKFRSs.
BPL B
2017 2016
2017 2016 4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Current assets MENEE 9,179 223,451
Current liabilities MENEE (8,032) (104,690)
Net assets BEFEE 1,147 118,761
The above amounts of assets include the following: it &E SR AIEI & E
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEED 91,880
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z 201746 A30 A L F[E

17. Interest in a Joint Venture (Continued) 17. R—EEeELENER (F)
BPL (Continued) Ed(®\)

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2017 30 June 2016
CEPIMVES  HZE 20164
6 H30H 6 H30H
LEE ILEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT

Revenue Wz 152,570 -

Profit (loss) for the year attributable to owners of & &2 ER ATEEFE T (EE)
the joint venture 33,734 (5,226)

Group's share of profit (loss) B EF (E518) 13,494 (2,090)

Other comprehensive expense for the year FREMEARS ((FEE)) (6,213)

Group's share of other comprehensive expense AEEEGEMEZERSE (2,413) (2,485)

Dividends received from BPL during the year FREES WIS 58,126 -

The above profit (loss) for the year includes the following: il FREF (BB BIELTEIE

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2017 30 June 2016
BZ2017F BHZE20164F
6 H30H 6 H30H
LEE IFEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Interest income FEHA (269) (117)

Income tax expense FrSFim X 7,933 -
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17.

18.

136

Interest in a Joint Venture (Continued)
BPL (Continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the

carrying amount of the interest in a joint venture recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

17. R—EEeELENER (F)
B (H)

LR AN R RR A M BWERAERZ N —
RE & hEES 2 REEHER

2017 2016

2017 § 2016 4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Net assets of BPL EeEETE 1,147 118,761
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in BPL ZN £ E A E & B AR 25 tr 51 40% 40%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in BPL KEBRESEZ 2 REE 459 47,504

Prepayment to an Artiste

18. BT EERIE

2017 2016

2017 & 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT

]

Non-current portion FERNERERS
Current portion BNEREE >

S|

12,000 12,000
12,000 12,000

24,000 24,000

During the year ended 30 June 2010, the Group entered into a
contract with an artiste for his participation in nine of the Group's
film productions at a total contract fee of HK$48,000,000 with a
contract term of six years from 2010 to 2016. In 2014, the contract
term was mutually agreed to be extended to eight years from 2010
to 2018. During the year ended 30 June 2017, the Group has
entered a supplementary agreement with the artiste and the contract
term was mutually agreed to be further extended from 2018 to
2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Prepayment to an Artiste (Continued)

Management anticipates that the artiste would participate in one to
two film productions of the Group each year and therefore, based on
the service fee schedule of the artiste for each film stated in the
contract, an amount of HK$12,000,000 (2016: HK$12,000,000) was
classified as current assets and the remaining carrying amount of
HK$12,000,000 (2016: HK$12,000,000) was classified as non-current
assets as at 30 June 2017.

During the year ended 30 June 2017, the artiste had not participated
any film production for the Group (2016: one film).

Available-For-Sale Investment

On 16 April 2014, the Group entered into an agreement with an
independent third party, for the investment in an animation
production project held by an entity incorporated in Hong Kong, with
an amount of HK$4,056,000 as capital injection which entitled to
30% profit sharing in the project upon completion. Based on the
terms of the agreement, the Group is entitled to have the profit
sharing from the distribution of animation rights based on the
percentage of capital invested into the animation production project.
The animation production was originally expected to be completed in
April 2017. On 15 April 2016, the Group and the independent third
party agreed in writing to extend the completion date of the
animation production project to April 2018. Therefore, it is classified
as current assets as at 30 June 2017 (2016: non-current assets).

It is measured at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting
period because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is not
ascertain that the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
its fair value cannot be measured reliably. In the opinion of
Management, no impairment was identified on this investment in
animation production project at the end of the reporting period.

18.

19.
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z 201746 A30 A L F[E
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iRe R R M AT

For the year ended 30 June 2017 # = 201746 A30 AL F[E

20. EXMERREPER

20. Film Rights and Film Production in Progress

Film
production in
Film rights progress
&= SR BETEY
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
COST RS
At 1 July 2015 20157818 419,793 181,753
Exchange adjustments PE A= - (981)
Additions (note i) WNE (FED) 281 84,241
Transfer 7 167,278 (167,278)
At 30 June 2016 M 20164F 6 A30H 587,352 97,735
Additions (note i) WE (ML) 1,160 86,981
Transfer i 42,110 (42,110)

At 30 June 2017

720176 A30H

630,622

ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT

RETBERRE

142,606

At 1uly 2015 7201547 818 412,862 -
Exchange adjustments (kS - (249)
Charged for the year FR 171,315 -
Impairment loss recognised for the year (note i) € NFERHREEE (i) - 17,934
At 30 June 2016 7201646 A 30 A 584,177 17,685
Charged for the year FRZH 37,181 -
Impairment loss recognised for the year (note ii) R HEREREREE (M) - 2,400

At 30 June 2017

201746 A30H

621,358

CARRYING AMOUNTS
At 30 June 2017

RRTE B
20176 A30H

At 30 June 2016

1201656 H30H

3,175

20,085

80,050
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20. Film Rights and Film Production in Progress
(Continued)

Notes:

@)

(ii)

The additions in film production in progress for the current year of
approximately HK$1,206,000 (2016: HK$10,890,000) and the carrying
amounts of approximately HK$13,290,000 (2016: HK$12,084,000) as at 30
June 2017 represented the Group's share of film production in progress
relating to film rights which are jointly controlled by the Group and
independent third parties in Hong Kong.

Included in an impairment loss recognised for the year ended 30 June 2016
was an impairment loss on a TV production in progress amounting to
HK$14,934,000. On 11 April 2014, the Group entered into a contract with
an independent third party in the PRC for the TV series production. The TV
series were jointly controlled by the Group and the independent third party
upon completion of the production. As of 30 June 2016, the Group in total
paid RMB12,445,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$14,934,000) for the
production, in which the production was still in progress. Management was
in a view that the quality of the production in progress produced by the
independent third party was not satisfactory. Management intended to
terminate the contract with the independent third party and obtained the
ownership of the TV series production in progress. Subsequent to the year
ended 30 June 2016, the Group had entered into a termination agreement
with the independent third party. In January 2017, the Group had paid
RMB380,000 to the independent third party to terminate the contract and
eventually obtained the ownership of the TV series production in progress.
Given that the unsatisfactory quality of the production in progress and the
uncertain future returns of the TV series, the Directors were in an opinion
that the carrying amount of the production in progress of HK$14,934,000
was fully impaired.

The remaining portion of an impairment loss of HK$3,000,000 represented
an impairment loss on the pre-production costs for a film production in
progress. During the year ended 30 June 2016, Management was in a view
that the expected return for the film production in progress should be loss
making and the Group ceased the production on those film production in
progress. The Directors were of the opinion that the carrying amount of the
film production in progress of HK$3,000,000 was fully impaired.

During the year ended 30 June 2017, an impairment loss of HK$2,400,000
was recognised on the pre-production costs for a film production in
progress. Management is in a view that the production plan on the pre-
production costs incurred for a film production in progress was postponed
and considered that the amount may not be fully recovered. The Directors
are of opinion that the carrying amount of HK$2,400,000 is fully impaired.

20.
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z 201746 A30 A L F[E

BYRARREFBY ()

(ii)

RNEEREREZHAE AL 1,206,0007T

(20164 : 7 #10,890,0007T ) & 201746 A 30
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iRe R R M AT

For the year ended 30 June 2017 # = 201746 A30 AL F[E

1. REER HBIRME

21. Investments in Film/Drama Production

140

2017 2016
2017 & 2016 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Investments at amortised cost R SHR AT BR 2 1 &
— film (note i) — B¥ (K=ED) 19,513 19,398
— animations (note ii) — g&E (ML) 7,904 11,053
— TV programme (note iii) — BRE B (FTii) = 2,950
33,401

The amount represents investments in an international and PRC
production houses for co-financing of the production of film, TV
programme and animations.

During the year ended 30 June 2017, the Group has three (2016:
four) agreements with production houses, which are independent
third parties, at a total contract amounts of HK$27,417,000 (2016:
HK$33,401,000). The investments are governed by the relevant
agreements entered into between the Group and the production
houses whereby the Group is entitled to benefits generated from the
distribution of the related film/television programme/animations

productions.

Notes:

U]

Based on the terms of the agreement signed by Pegasus Motion Pictures
Investment Limited (“PMPIL"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, with Inversion Productions Limited (“Inversion”) (previously
known as TNC Productions Limited), an amount of US$2,500,000 (equivalent
to HK$19,513,000) (2016: US$2,500,000 (equivalent to HK$19,398,000))
was invested and would be fully repaid to PMPIL upon the commencement
of principal photography of the film tentatively scheduled to take place in
August 2013 or upon the close of bank financing tentatively scheduled to
take place before November 2013, whichever occurs earlier. In addition,
PMPIL is entitled to a return of 20% of the investment amount upon the
theatrical release of the relevant film in the United States of America
tentatively scheduled to take place in 2014 and a certain percentage of the
profit to be derived from the release of the film worldwide in any media and
in any format. As a security, Inversion created a pledge in favor of PMPIL for
another international film to be launched by Inversion, which should be
exercisable in the event that the principal photography of the film did not
commence by 30 November 2013 or if the production of the film was
abandoned, PMPIL was entitled to exercise its right prior to 31 December
2013.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Investments in Film/Drama Production
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

@)

(Continued)

Pursuant to an announcement of the Company dated 13 September 2013,
PMPIL and Inversion agreed in writing to extend the date for Inversion to
start principal photography of the film to 30 April 2014. As a result, the date
before which PMPIL could exercise its right to seek full repayment under the
agreement has been extended to 31 May 2014. In addition, in the event that
the principal photography of the film did not commence by 30 April 2014 or
if the production of the film was abandoned, PMPIL was entitled to exercise
its rights prior to 31 May 2014 to seek full recoupment from another
international film as additional security.

Pursuant to the announcements of the Company dated 28 January 2014
and 29 August 2014, PMPIL and Inversion agreed in writing to further
extend the date for Inversion to start principal photography and worldwide
theatrical distribution of the film to on or before 30 April 2015 and in the
second half of 2016, respectively. Due to the extension of time, the amount
of the agreed fully repayment and the agreed amount of return to which
PMPIL were entitled have also been increased from 20% to 23%. Save for
the amendments have been made and disclosed above, all the other terms
and conditions of the agreements, including but not limited to a pledge of
security that created by Inversion in favour of PMPIL over the rights of the
film, have remained unchanged and continue in full force and effect.

Pursuant to the announcement of the Company dated 30 April 2015, PMPIL
and Inversion agreed in writing to further extend the date for Inversion to
start principal photography of the film from on or before 30 April 2015 to
31 October 2015 without a further delay in world theatrical distribution. In
addition, due to the extension of time, the agreed amount of priority return
to which PMPIL was entitled upon the theatrical release of the film in the
United States of America has also been increased. Besides, the Company has
been notified by Inversion that the director, producers, production designers
and visual effect supervisor of the film have been confirmed and the first
location for shooting was expected to be in New Zealand. The film was in
the pre-production stage which involves, among others, casting, formulation
of the filming schedule, refinement of the script and location scouting and
the principal photography and worldwide theatrical distribution of the film
were tentatively scheduled to take place on or before September 2015 and
in the second half of 2016, respectively.

Pursuant to the announcements of the Company dated 7 December 2015,
PMPIL and Inversion agreed in writing to further extend the date for
Inversion to start principal photography of the film from on or before 31
October 2015 to 30 June 2016. In addition, due to the extension of time,
the agreed amount of recoupment to which PMPIL was entitled upon the
commencement of principal photography of the film or upon the close of
bank financing, whichever is earlier, has also been increased. The principal
photography and worldwide theatrical distribution of the film were
rescheduled to take place tentatively on or before 30 June 2016 and in the
first half of 2017 respectively.
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z 201746 A30 A L F[E
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21.

142

Investments in Film/Drama Production
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

@)

(i)

(Continued)

Pursuant to the announcements of the Company dated 20 May 2016, PMPIL
and Inversion agreed in writing to further extend the date for Inversion to
start principal photography of the film from on or before 30 June 2016 to
30 September 2016. In addition, due to the extension of time, the agreed
amount of recoupment to which PMPIL was entitled upon the
commencement of principal photography of the film or upon the close of
bank financing, whichever is earlier, has also been increased. Besides, the
Company has been notified that Travis Fimmel, who starred in the television
series “Vikings” and the movie to be released named “Warcraft”, has joined
the main cast of the film. The principal photography and worldwide
theatrical distribution of the film are rescheduled to take place tentatively on
or before 30 September 2016 and in the second half of 2017, respectively.

On 14 February 2017, PMPIL and Inversion agreed in writing to further
extend the date for Inversion to start principal photography of the film from
on or before 30 June 2017. Due to the extension of time, the amount of the
agreed fully repayment and the agreed amount of return to which PMPIL
were entitled have also been increased to 33%. Besides, the Company has
been notified that Crystal Liu, a famous Chinese actress is part of the main
cast. The production of Inversion is underway with filming and worldwide
theatrical distribution tentatively scheduled to take place in early 2018 and
2019, respectively.

As at 30 June 2017 and 2016, the film has not yet started its principal
photography.

During the year ended 30 June 2015, based on the terms of the agreement
signed by It R RSB B AFEXEBR AR (“db =K "), an amount of
RMB4,867,000 (equivalent to HK$5,743,000) was invested and would be
fully repaid to It 5K B on 8 April 2016. In addition, 4t 7 A5 was entitled
to a minimum rate of return at 10% per annum on the principal amount
and share of profit generated from the distribution of the related animation
production based on the percentage of capital invested into the production
of animation production.

During the year ended 30 June 2017, the investment cost of RMB4,867,000
(equivalent to HK$5,743,000) and an investment income of RMB487,000
(equivalent to HK$555,000) was received by the Group.

During the year ended 30 June 2016, based on the terms of the agreement
signed by 4t I X 55, an amount of RMB4,500,000 (equivalent to
HK$5,130,000) and was invested and would be fully repaid to 3t X on
15 July 2016. In addition, 3t K5 is entitled to a minimum rate of return
at 10% per annum on the principal amount and share of profit generated
from the distribution of the related animation production based on the
percentage of capital invested into the production of animation production.

During the year ended 30 June 2017, an investment income of RMB450,000
(equivalent to HK$513,000) was received by the Group. In addition,
b K55 and the independent third party agreed in writing to extend the
date of principal repayment from 15 July 2016 to 15 July 2017 and
the minimum rate of return to which 1t 2= X 5 is entitled has also been
increased from 10% to 20% per annum. On 11 September 2017, 3t K55
and independent third party agreed in writing of which the principal
repayments of RMB1,500,000 each will be settled on 12 September 2017,
15 November 2017 and 15 January 2018, respectively.
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Investments in Film/Drama Production
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(Continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2017, based on the terms of the agreement
signed by 4t R X %, an amount of RMB2,434,000 (equivalent to
HK$2,774,000) was invested and will be fully repaid to 1t X5 upon the
theatrical release of the animation or on 30 April 2018, whichever is earlier.
In addition, 3t & X 5 is entitled to a minimum rate of return at 15% per
annum on the principal amount and share of profit generated from the
distribution of the related animation production based on the percentage of
capital invested into the production of animation production.

During the year ended 30 June 2016, based on the terms of the agreement
signed by Star Pictures Entertainment (Hong Kong) Limited (“Star Pictures
HK"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, an amount of
RMB2,500,000 (equivalent to HK$2,950,000) was invested and would be
fully repaid to Star Pictures HK on 9 December 2016. In addition, Star
Pictures HK is entitled to a minimum rate of return at 10% per annum on
the principal amount and share of profit generated from the distribution of
the related TV programme production based on the percentage of capital
invested into the production of TV programme production. During the year
ended 30 June 2017, the investment cost of RMB2,500,000 (equivalent to
HK$2,950,000) was fully repaid to the Group and an investment income of
RMB250,000 (equivalent to HK$285,000) was received by the Group.

Since the initial investments are expected to be recovered by the
Group within one year, the amount of HK$27,417,000 (2016:
HK$33,401,000) is classified as current assets at 30 June 2017.

The investments in film/drama production contain embedded

derivatives which are not closely related to the host contract. The

debt components of the investments in film/drama production are
measured at amortised cost subsequent to initial recognition. At
initial recognition and 30 June 2017, the fair value of embedded
derivatives is considered insignificant.

The Group's investments in film/drama production that are not

denominated in the functional currencies of the relevant group

entities are as follows:
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F12H9BBHEETEMBRE(ES) - 1o B
RIRZE (BB ZANSEETFTRE10% WEHRE -
WIZBHEBRET B IR E L HI D EEITHEERD
BEUEELMET - HE2017F6 A308 1LEE -
AR A AR 2,500,000 7T (A& HAEH 2,950,000
T ERYEETAEBARAEEBREURERAAR
# 250,000 7T (1H & R BH 285,000 7T) ©

HRFERAREEB R —FRKREHBILE - 805
27,417,000 TTHY £ 58 (2016 4F = 7 33,401,000
JU)FR2017F6 A0 B D AREEE -

WEEY,/ BB RIERIEREE AW ERYREFR
HRARITETR - REBF BB ZIENER
A TRV HEREOE HEK AT E - RYILE
R N2017F6 A30H MAXTETEHA
TEERAHMTEE

$EIE§EDA$EE§EI‘?E‘“%E’\]UJ§E
BERBBISENT -

EEFHEMNER

RMB
usb

ARK
ET

2017 2016
2017 & 2016 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
- 2,950

19,513 19,398
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fre SRR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2017 # = 201746 A30 AL F[E

22. Inventories 22. F8
2017 2016
2017 5 20164
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Raw materials and consumable R B REFE 111 160
Finished goods SRk T 468 641
Total Ky 579 801
23. Trade and Other Receivables 23. ESRHMEWRE
The aged analysis of the Group's trade receivables, net of allowance RBEEAR  NEEE SR TIE(KBNK RER
for doubtful debts, based on the invoice date, which approximates BE)REZHH(RBASEZRERRAH)
the respective revenue recognition dates at the end of the reporting HBRIR DT T ¢

period is as follows:

2017 2016
2017 2016 FF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Trade receivables: B S REWGRIA
0-30 days 0Z30H 23,551
31-60 days 31260H 5,757
61-90 days 61290H 7
91-180 days 912180 H 5
181-365 days 1812365 H 9
Over 365 days HBim365H 14
29,343
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HEWRIE -« ke RTENKIE 7,718
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts o REREME (2,011)
5,707
Other deposits and prepayments for B EBNEM RS RIETFHIE
cinema operation 666
35,716
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23. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

Generally, with the exception of post-production customers who are
generally granted credit period ranging from 30 to 60 days, no credit
period is granted to the Group's customers. Distribution and licensing
fee from distributors in Hong Kong, the PRC and overseas countries
are normally settled upon delivery of film negatives to them. On a
case-by-case basis, one to two months of credit period may be
granted to its customers with good repayment history.

These trade receivables relate to a number of independent customers
that have a good repayment history. Included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$59,000 (2016: HK$38,000) as at 30 June 2017 which are past
due as at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral or credit
enhancements over these balances.

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

ARE MR M AT

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z 201746 A30 A L F[E

23. E5 Rk EAMEYRE ()

BREBASUERP —RERNFI0E0BNEE
BN AEE - RIBEAETPREEMEE
He BUES  FREBINERETENETR
BITRERIEABERARSXNEZIFMK
EREEHE ARBAREAREENABRIE
RN EPRE—EMEANEER -

ZEESHRUGRIER S Z B ERITE R ENE
VEFEM - AEEE S EUGRIBEKBER
20174 6 A 30 B EREAE A5% 59,0007t(2016
& 5%38,0007T) W EIRER K - MiE HHIE
BMEEAREBWES L HRREBERE - A%
B h 5% S5 A AR A AT A I R R SR ER{E AR N
RIS o

EEREEN RRERNE ZEEFIANERER DT -

31-60 days 31260H
61-90 days 61290H
91-180 days 91& 180 H
181-365 days 1812365 H
Over 365 days HBi®365H

2017 2016
2017 & 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
3

7

5

9

14

38

Management believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in
respect of these balances as there have not been a significant change
in credit risk and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

The Group's trade and other receivables that are not denominated in
the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are as follows:

EEERA BRNEERRILEEAEE A ER
RER BB E - MBARZSTHERETIRAE
B -

AEELAASEEREEB UINERIED
B 5 R EABEFIRNT

usD S

2017 2016
2017 & 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT I
2,575
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 # = 201746 A30 AL F[E

24,

25.

146

Rental Deposits

24. HE®RSE

2017 2016

2017 & 2016 4F

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Current assets (note 1) mEVEE (1) 19,944 19,989

Non-current assets (note 2) EMBNEE (H3E2) 24,833 -

44,777 19,989

Notes: FiEE -

1 Cinema City (Langham Place) Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of (1) R2013F 128278 » ARRMEZEHBRAE

the Company, had entered into a lease agreement on 27 December 2013 to
rent a cinema situated in Langham Place (“the Lease Premises”), a prime
location in Hong Kong and to take the cinema operation for a term of ten
years commencing on 23 July 2014 and expiring on 22 July 2024 (the
“Lease”). Based on the terms of the Lease, the Company is obliged to pay a
deposit in a sum equivalent to the aggregate of three months’ base rent for
the tenth year, three months’ management charges for the first year, three
months’ promotional levy for the first year and one quarter’s government
rates in respect of the Lease Premises. The operation of cinema and related
operations in the cinema could provide a platform for the development of
the film distribution business of the Group. As the landlord of the Lease
Premises has the right to terminate lease unilaterally, the rental deposit was
classified as current assets at 30 June 2017 and 2016.

(2) During the year ended 30 June 2017, the indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company have entered into several lease agreements to rent the
cinema premises situated in Chai Wan, Causeway Bay and Tsuen Wan for
terms ranging from five to fifteen years. As the deposits are refundable at
the expiry of the leases, the amounts were classified as non-current assets as
at 30 June 2017.

Pledged Bank Deposits

At 30 June 2017, the amounts represent bank deposits of
HK$31,250,000 (2016: HK$31,165,000) in which an amount of
HK$30,591,000 (2016: HK$30,507,000) pledged to a bank to secure
short-term banking facilities granted to the Group and the remaining
amount of HK$659,000 (2016: HK$658,000) pledged to a bank to
secure for the 4Dx’s equipment rental fees payable to a supplier of
4Dx equipment for the Group’s operation in the Lease Premises in
accordance with the 4Dx Equipment Rental Agreement dated on 20
August 2015. The bank deposits are carried interests at a fixed rate
of 0.10%-0.30% (2016: 0.10%-0.30%) per annum and they will be
matured on 5 July 2017 and 13 July 2017 (2016: 5 July 2016 and 5
July 2016), respectively.
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EERSHBRASRGNER ((BEME]) REFER
EME B2014F7 82388 E2024F78228 1
BHTE(HE]D - REAEER  AQRARA
EMES MRS SEHERBPEETFEN=HA
HEAHe F-FN=EAERE F—FH=f
AHEBBUR—BAFEENBFEMZ - FEH
BERERMNBBESIUAANEEBHEITER
WEREETE BREEMENETAREST
WIEFE - R2017F K2016F6 5300 » E R
SPERBRBEE -

) HZE2017F6 A30 B ILFE - RAAINEE2EH
BRAETUEOEE R - UHER R 0 # S5
EREENEEREYE  BANTRE+TAF - A
RIEEREEREMEIRE  ZEREN20174F6
A30BNEAIRBEE -

C K FRITER

M2017F 6 308 » #Z K IEIE MR 17 H #H &Y
iR 17 17 7 8 ¥31,250,00070 (2016 4F : B ¥
31,165,0007T ) © H & % # 30,591,000 7T (2016
& 130,507,000 T ) AE T AL B EHER
TTRE MR - MEREES 1 659,000 (2016 F -
75 15 658,000 7T ) Bl A& [A) 4R 77 # 47 DA Bt i FE P AR
B EEA2015F8 520 B ADXR BT E 3
MR BRI E W % 2B /) 4Dx R B T S
HERIDxHFEHEBENER - ZSFRITFERIER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE MR M AT

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z 201746 A30 A L F[E

Pledged Bank Deposits (Continued) 25. BEEFRITFER(E)
The Group's pledged bank deposits that are not denominated in the AEENRBAEEERNINEEEUINGESE
functional currencies of the relevant group entities are as follows: HMEEBRTERET :
2017 2016
2017 & 20164F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
usb E 659 658
Bank Balances and Cash 26. RITHEBREAS
Bank balances and cash of the Group carry interest at market rates REBRITERERBESIZ TITHSARTA -
which are as follows:
2017 2016
2017 2016 4F
Interest rate per annum FEFI=E (N7 NP L’ 0.01% to 0.30%
O PR 0.01% £0.30%
The Group's bank balances and cash that are not denominated in the REBEEAEEERBEEEBEANEEERD
functional currencies of the relevant group entities are as follows: WITEBRRESWT ¢
2017 2016
2017 2016 4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
Australian Dollar (“AUD") Bt (R ]) PAV 15
Renminbi (“RMB") ARB(TARED 13,582 1,308
United States Dollar (“USD") E(EH)) 553 9,457
Euro ("EUR") BT ([BTl) 5 5
HK$ ookt 1,319 1,352
Singapore Dollar (“SGD") Fonsg g ([T 1) 21 21
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27.

148

Trade and Other Payables/Receipts in 27. ESRHEMENRIE FEKRXK

Advance

2017 2016

2017 & 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

18,765 19,496
39,667 24,424
1,244 1,662

59,676 45,582

Trade payables B SN FRIA

Other payables and accruals H A RRIA K e st B
Deposit received (Note a) Bz (Miika)
Receipts in advance (Note b) FE MR (Kt b)

71,849 69,037

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 60 to 90 days.
The aging analysis of trade payables presented is based on the invoice

REE

HEmrFIEEEHRE0E90H - RIS H

R BHERNFENREROTDERERAMZ

AEERBEHRRNE S RN FKIEBD A

2017 2016

2017 & 2016 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

18,233 19,496
532

18,765 19,496

date at the end of the reporting period. The following is analysis of I o
the Group’s trade payables at the end of the reporting period: T
Within 60 days 60 B

Within 91 to 365 days 91 %365 H

Notes BT
(@) Deposits received represent deposits received from a cinema circuit operator (@

in Hong Kong for a film to be theatrical release in Hong Kong.

(b) Receipts in advance represents the instalments of contribution from the PRC
co-producers for film production in progress and advances of distribution
and licensing income received from distributors prior to theatrical release
and delivery of film negatives of HK$71,849,000 (2016: HK$69,037,000) as
at 30 June 2017.

The Group's trade and other payables that are not denominated in
the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are as follows:

EH&Z&%TE%%EE\ R —HEYERE
BEERELHIZED -

TEWRIEIER 2017 F6 A30H « REIEFA Rt
BHEREFEEND BHHEERRNERBRRINE
MIEMER I B WBEITENEIT REITRERNTHY
HAU\TELI& X I8 5 71,849,000 7T (2016 4« B #&
69,037,000 7T) ©

AEELAEEEEREEBUINERIED
B 5 REAMENFBEDT

2017 2016
2017 & 2016 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

usD ET

408 1,026
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ire MR M AT

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z 201746 A30 A L F[E

Amount Due From Non-Controlling Interest  28. FEURIEIERERERIB
The amount was unsecured, interest free and fully repaid during the AIEAEEE . B NNEE2017%6 30
year ended 30 June 2017. H - EE RS ES o
Amounts Due to Related Companies 29, FENRIEESD TZE
Members of the key management of the Group have controlling REEFEEREXERAZZME D AR
interest over the related companies. FEm o
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. ZEFEAEIRE B NBRENRERE -
Amount Due to a Joint Venture 30. EN—RS&EFHEF
The amount is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. FAREREEAR 2R REAEREREER -
Share Capital 1. R4
Number of Share
shares capital
R#HEE &S
HK$'000
BT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each: TR AEES 0.0025 LAy E @A
Authorised: EE
At 1 July 2015 M2015F7 A1H 8,000,000,000 80,000

Effect of share subdivision (Note)

B inyral 2 28 (M)

24,000,000,000 -

~
D
D
D

At 30 June 2016 and 2017 R2016F & 201796 A30H 32,000,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:

At 1 July 2015 R2015F7 A1H 604,000,000 6,040
Effect of share subdivision (Note) A& D 40 2 228 (M 5E) 1,812,000,000 -
Issue of shares upon exercise of warrants RITE R IAE R B EITIRMD 107,768,239 269
At 30 June 2016 M 201646 A30H 2,523,768,239 6,309
Issue of shares upon exercise of warrants RITERRREE BTG 71,845,494 180
At 30 June 2017 120176 A30H 2,595,613,733 6,489
Note: B 5E

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company at
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 21 July 2015, a share
subdivision was approved and effective from 22 July 2015, each of the existing
issued and unissued ordinary shares of the Company of par value of HK$0.01
subdivided into four subdivided ordinary shares of the Company of par value of
HK$0.0025 each (the “Share Subdivision”). The Share Subdivision was duly passed
by the shareholders of the Company by way on poll at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 21 July 2015. The Share Subdivision was effective
on 22 July 2015.

REARRMBRER2015F7 A21 HRITHAQ T BRI
A2 LFEABNTERZER  ROFMELETHN 201557
A22 BRRER - BREEBE0.01 THARRIREE#T
RAREBITE BT —RF4 A U AR & AR E S % 0.0025 7T
BARRARFAL AR ([IRGOIFA]) o BRIDIFHAN 201567
A21 BEITHARRREEIAE LEAD A REIRRE
JEFNIEX BB - RDIFAN2015F7 A22 BAER »
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31.
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Share Capital (Continued)
Warrants

On 13 November 2013, the Company entered into a warrant placing
agreement with a placing agent pursuant to which the placing agent
agreed to place up to 96,000,000 warrants conferring rights to
subscribe for 96,000,000 warrant shares at the warrant exercise price
of HK$0.93 per warrant shares (subject to adjustment) to not less
than six warrant placees.

During the year ended 30 June 2015, register holders of 29,000,000
warrants exercised their rights to subscribe for 29,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company at HK$0.93 per share.

As at 30 June 2015 and 1 July 2015, 67,000,000 warrants were
outstanding. As a result of the Share Subdivision, based on the
relevant terms of the warrants, the exercise price of the warrants was
adjusted from HK$0.93 per share to HK$0.233 per subdivided share,
where such adjustment was effective from the close of business of
the business day immediately preceding the date on which the Share
Subdivision became effective. In accordance with the adjustment of
the exercise price of the warrants as aforesaid, the number of shares
falling to be issued upon exercise of the warrants changed from
67,000,000 shares to 267,424,892 subdivided shares.

During the year ended 30 June 2016, register holders of 107,768,239
warrants exercised their rights to subscribe for 107,768,239 ordinary
shares in the Company at HK$0.233 per share.

During the year ended 30 June 2017, register holders of 71,845,494
warrants exercised their rights to subscribe for 71,845,494 ordinary

shares in the Company at HK$0.233 per share.

As at 30 June 2017, the Company had no outstanding warrants as
the remaining 87,811,159 warrants were expired.
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32. Deferred Tax Assets

ire MR M AT

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z 201746 A30 A L F[E

32. IEERBAEE

The followings are the deferred tax asset (liability) recognised by the AEERAFERBAFERRNELCHEEE
Group and movements thereon during the current and prior years: (B REESHHT :
Accelerated
tax
Tax losses  depreciation Total
BIEFE MEBEBERE “ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT
At 1 July 2015 201547 A1 H 11,866 (2,286) 9,580
(Charge) credit to profit or loss (Z8) st AEBE (2,455) 753 (1,702)
At 30 June 2016 201646 A30H 9,411 (1,533) 7,878
Credit to profit or loss BPNiEE 2,192 762 2,954

At 30 June 2017 201746 H30H

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared
in respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries from 1 January
2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to undistributed earnings of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses
of HK$115,529,000 (2016: HK$83,938,000) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of HK$70,326,000 (2016: HK$57,040,000) of such losses. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$45,203,000 (2016: HK$26,898,000) due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses
of HK$4,759,000 (2016: HK$2,758,000 would expire in 2020) that
will expire in 2021. Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

11,603 (771) 10,832

RIBEEMRETE - TEMEBATE 2008514
1 H 2B ERER A F P B R B9 AR SR SR TR IR Y

REE I ARBAEE T EMBRRH RS IKEF
RGN ERZENR A M BRRFTRELEHRE

R R R AN % BB 4% Tl I e 22 R 0 8% 0 i ) A % °%
FRi ZR AL TGN AT A R AR REED -

RBEBHR AEEEAYARIBEEELEE
115,529,000 7T (2016 4F : /& ¥ 83,938,000 7T) 7]
TER BRI GEF - AEBERABAEIESE
70,326,000 (2016 4F = 7 % 57,040,000 7t ) i
RIELEMBEE - MR KRR AF R 2T A 88
M RSB KRB ER T B 1 45,203,000 7T (2016
F 1 B 26,898,000 ) MRELEHRIBEEE - K
HRBEEESEIEN 2021 EEiR 2 EI8BK
4,759,0007T (2016 F : /& ¥ 2,758,000 7T # 2020
FIEM) o EhE 8T e R A4S
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33.

152

Share-Based Payment Transactions
Share option scheme

The Company'’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”), was approved
and adopted by the sole shareholder on 5 October 2012 for the
primary purpose to grant options to eligible persons as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the Group.

Under the Scheme, the Board of the Directors may, at its discretion,
grant options pursuant to the Scheme to the Directors (including
executive directors, non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors), employees, advisors and consultants of the
Company and its subsidiaries who the Board of the Directors
considers, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or will
contribute to the Group (the “Participants”).

The total numbers of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares
issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted and may
be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in
time, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 5 October 2012. Options granted during the life of
the Scheme shall continue to be exercisable in accordance with their
terms of grant. The exercise price is determined by the Directors, and
will not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant, which must be a trading day; (i) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares. Upon acceptance of the option, the Participants
shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company by way of consideration for the
grant. The option will be offered for acceptance for a period of 28
days from the date of grant.

For the year ended 30 June 2017, there was no share options granted

under the Scheme by the Company. There was no share options
outstanding as at 30 June 2017.
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33. IR BERIRHIRZ (&)

33. Share-Based Payment Transactions
(Continued)
BB EsT & ()

Share option scheme (Continued)

B ZE2016F6 A30R LFEZTEBETIHREA

Details of the share options granted under the Scheme for the year

ended 30 June 2016 are as follows: BREFBOT
Number of share options*
EREHA
Granted Adjustment Exercised Lapsed

Category of Exercise  Outstanding during during during during Outstanding
participant ~ Dateof grant  Exercisable period price*  at1July 2015 the year the year* the year (UCATEIRAN at 30 June 2016
120155 H2016%
1R18 £ £ £ £ 64308

SEEEH  RLEH e kg R Rt EiL- Y il R A

Consultants 13 July 2015 13 January 2016-12 July 2017 218 = 12,000,000 36,000,000 = (48,000,000)

Bi 1567A138 01651 A13RZ017€7 5128

13 July 2015 13 July 2015-12 July 2017 218 = 28,000,000 84,000,000 = (112,000,000)
1567A138 WI5ETA1BRZNTETA12A
- 40,000,000 120,000,000 - (160,000,000)

* As a result of the Share Subdivision, based on the relevant terms of the * HPNVETROIFM - BB EIMBBIER . 17&E
Scheme, the exercise price and number of shares falling to be issued upon ERERAK 218 T ARE SR ITMR /DS 0.545
exercise of the share options were adjusted from HK$2.18 per share to T M EERERSSE TR 2RO E B
HK$0.545 per subdivided share and 40,000,000 shares to 160,000,000 40,000,000 A% 8% = 160,000,000 A& #F 4BR% 15 - B 78
subdivided shares, where such adjustments were effective from the date on SR PRI A S BARAE K o
which the Share Subdivision became effective.

ok The share options were lapsed during the period between 13 November * BRI MR 20154F11 138 £2015411 418 H

2015 and 18 November 2015. BRFEI R ©

For share options granted during the year ended 30 June 2016, the
Binomial Model had been used to estimate the fair value of the share

HZE2016F6 A0 L FERONERE B
R ZIEAEA AT R AREN A TE - sTEBR

options. The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair AT EEANE %&&{EJ*”)HE}FZ]S B &
value of the share options are based on the Company’s best estimate. (EfHEEY - BIRENEEREE T TEHBENT
The value of an option varies with different variables of certain RIEEMARTR - ZEALN T Zig AZE N
subjective assumptions. The significant inputs into the model are as T

follows:

Date of grant 13 July 2015 EH A 201547 A13R
Closing price of share at grant date HK$2.18 AR B ERROKTHE BHEE2.187C
Exercise price HK$2.18 1118 E B 2.187T
Expected volatility 64.65% FEHRR 1S 64.65%
Risk-free rate 0.36% 42 [ B 1) 2R 0.36%
Expected dividend yield 0% FEEARS B U 25 = 0%
Included in administrative expenses, the Group recognised the total HZE2016F6 308 ILFE - REBRITHHE

expense of HK$25,272,000 for the year ended 30 June 2016 in
relation to share options granted by the Company.

SRR BN A BT B AR B R RO B S AR
75 ¥ 25,272,000 7T ©
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34.

154

Operating Lease Commitments
The Group as lessee

As at 30 June 2017, the Group leased certain of its office premises
and cinemas under operating lease arrangements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had committed for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

34, REHERE

REBEREBA

R2017F6 A30H r AL B REBELLEHAELH
HEEETHAEMERERR -

RBEMR - AEER T A RHEL S HERER
THERKERENKOIBRERWT

Within one year 1FA
In the second to fifth year inclusive
Over five years

54

F2FEFSF(BRREEREMSF)

2017 2016
2017 2016 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
116,238 66,104
511,082 283,890
576,283 290,282
1,203,603 640,276

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable for the Group's
office premises and cinemas. Leases are negotiated for terms ranging
from one to fifteen years (2016: one to fifteen years).

Certain non-cancellable operating leases included in the above are
subject to contingent rent payments, which are charged at
progressive rates from 10% to 39% (2016: 12% to 38%) of the
excess of the annual gross box-office takings of the related cinema
premise over certain level of box-office income as determine is the
respective lease agreement.
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Capital Risk Management 35. EXREEE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group AREBEBEEASERRAEEERIFEL
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the & WiBBeHESERENRETEmARE
return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and IREHZALR - REBEMEERISE FFEAAL
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from HEFEEE o
prior year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash REBMEAEEAIERSRESEBYRARN
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company, RlEA AEER RS (BERAK 251 EE) °
comprising share capital and accumulated losses.
Management reviews the capital structure on a regular basis. As part EIRE TR T E ARG - (EABFTHN—2 D
of this review, Management considers the cost of capital and the BEEEEEANRANESEANEREBENE
risks associates with each class of capital. Based on recommendations e BESEEBNESE AEEBKEBI MR
of Management, the Group will balance its overall capital structure B BITHIRA R BT ES S ERIRE G
through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the B H B E AR -
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
Financial Instruments 36. ERTH
36a. Categories of financial instruments 36a. SRITAMESE
2017 2016
2017 2016 4F
HK$000 HK$'000
BET T BETT
Financial assets SRIEE
Loans and receivables Bk EYGRIE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BERSRRSEEY) 93,917 166,687
Available-for-sale investment A ERE 4,056 4,056
Financial liabilities SREE
Amortised cost BHIERCAR 27,048
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36. Financial Instruments (Continued)

36b. Financial risk management objectives and

156

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-
sale investment, investments in film/drama production, trade
and other receivables, amount due from non-controlling
interest, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables, amounts due to related companies and
amount due to a joint venture. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks
associated with the Group’s financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in
foreign exchange rates.

The functional currency of all group companies is HK$ except
for kRKRE, LERBREXREEARAF (" LEEB",
FBREMLEFEARAT (" LERE ") and BEXXLERE
(E8)B R 2 8 ("B 5 X 1) of which their functional
currency is RMB. At the end of each reporting period, the
carrying amount of the monetary assets and liabilities of the
group companies, which are denominated in foreign
currencies, are as follows:

AUD JBIT
RMB AR
usD ETT

EUR BT
HK$ ok
SGD gt
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36. $RITH (&)

36b. ERIEMEE B ERBUR

AEENTECRTABEIHEUERSE
KREBY HBEIEE  E5REMEBER
B RYSFERERNR EERRTE
R ROTEHRERE  BHREMEMNK
B ENBEBARFAREN—HeEE
EHE - ZEEMI AN FIBREMM
KE -FEAEESRITANARBRED
SRE(EERREMNEER) EERR
MnEE R o MAREZ SRR IK
RENTX - EREEERERZEAR
R K BB B REUEE 6

5B
B8

E¥RRRERTANAFEIARKRES
mEREINEE R BB TR BFTELE AR o

SEMERBERRINEEEG /B
HIERKSE - LERREZREEARA
Al LERE))  LEREXLERER
AR LERE D kBB eEE(LE)
BRAR (BB DRI HEER
BARYE - REREHR  FEKERF]
DSNEFHEM BB EER B EREENT :

2017 2016
2017 & 20164

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE aE BE BE&E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BET T L)

212 15 -
13,582 4,258 >
20,725 32,088 1,026

5 5 =

1,319 1,352 =

21 21 =
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36. £ T A (M)
36b. SREKEEE BREE (H)

36. Financial Instruments (Continued)

36b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk of
RMB and USD against HK$. Since HK$ is pegged to USD, the
Group does not expect any significant movement in USD/HK$
exchange rate and this is excluded from the sensitivity analysis
below. No sensitivity analysis for AUD, EUR and SGD are
presented as Management considered the exposure is
insignificant. Management will monitor foreign exchange
exposure to mitigate the foreign currency risk.

At the end of each reporting period, certain group companies,
of which their functional currency is HK$, had amounts due
from the PRC subsidiaries which are denominated in RMB.
These intra-group balances are approximately HK$46,011,000
(2016: HK$66,548,000) as at 30 June 2017.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in HK$ against RMB. 5% is the sensitivity
rate used which represents Management's assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items including the above intra-group
balances and adjusts their translation at the end of the
reporting period for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A
negative number below indicates a decrease in post-tax loss
where HK$ weaken 5% against RMB. For a 5% strengthening
of HK$ against the relevant currency, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the loss and the balances below would
be positive.

5 e ()
B (&)

AEBIZAZARBERETHLABEDOI

HRER - AR BRI THE  NEEE

HET / BREXTEHRABRE - &

AMATXEZRESN - ANERERS

RBRR/N - M| F)RIT - BT K0

BRITHEREDN - BEREREZINER
@ IAREIMNE R o

RERERK maggﬁzﬁ%ﬁzm“
BB AR EKRFREMEA IELU\
RUESHE - 20176 A30H - EZ%%@
RSB AEER 4 BB 15 46,011,000 7T (2016 £F
7% 66,548,000 7T ) °

TRAVAEEEHEELAREAERE
BES%HBRE - B EHUIMNEE RS
B R H BT AR IR AN BRE L X
5% - BRESTTEBRAINEFHER
AXMHERIER (B Ll B A EER)
KRR & B R LA SME B R 5% 0 B3 1T
MEE - TXHRABMEKRTER LA
RMEFZES% BREEERD - EREK
REBEEAES%  HUBEELRSX
HRFE - MATERBRES -

2017 2016
2017 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Profit or loss (note)

MR 1R ()

(2,488) (2,956)

Note: This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on bank
balances, investments in film/drama production and intra-group
balances at the end of the respective reporting period.

MR EBEREREARORITELS REE
%/ BB BE R SR B N ED A BRFT I 4 R SR
R o
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36. €RITH (&)
36b. REAMTEBEREE (H)

36. Financial Instruments (Continued)

36b. Financial risk management objectives and

158

policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)

Management considered the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the
exposure at the end of each reporting period does not reflect
the exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to investments in film/drama production and fixed rate pledged
bank deposits (see notes 21 and 25 for details of these
balances respectively).

In addition, the Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances.

If interest rate had been 50 basis points higher for bank
balances, and all other variables were held constant, the impact
to the Group's loss for the year is as follows:

5 L ()
B (&)

F P 3 o B R A B B 3 A R BR A I R
% MEEERABREDIMATKKRE
BHSMNER -

T m B

ﬂ}iﬂ RERTANQTFESARRS
mE TS MRS IR KB E R o

AEEERHBREY HERERERE
FEM R B WM RIT R R FER X 2
(R BRI DB 2B E21 & 25)

SN - AN SR IR E bR A BT BN R ARTT A
RIS RA EE R -

HERITAE SRV R R EFHSOEESE - MAAA
Hip g ERSTE  BAEEERNNER
FENT

2017 2016
2017 & 20164
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T ok v

FAREERD

Decrease in loss for the year

133 296

No sensitivity analysis for the decrease in interest rate of bank
balances is presented as Management considered that it is not
meaningful to assume a decrease of 50 basis points lower for
the interest rate because the bank balances carried interest
ranged from 0.01% to 0.29% (2016: 0.01% to 0.3%) per
annum during the current year.
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36. ©RT A (&)
36b. SREKEEE BREE (H)

36. Financial Instruments (Continued)

36b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, Management reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debt at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, Management
considers that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds including pledged bank deposits
and bank balances is limited because the counterparties are
banks with good reputation.

The Group was exposed to concentration of credit risk on one
of its trade customers which accounted for 34% (2016: 75%)
of its trade receivables as at 30 June 2017. The top customer
has a good repayment history and long-term working
relationship with the Group.

The Group was exposed to concentration of credit risk on a
production house which accounted for 71% (2016: 58%) of its
investments in film/drama production as at 30 June 2017. The
production house is an independent third party, which is well-
known film/drama production house in United States.

Except for the above, the Group does not have any other
significant concentration of credit risk.

=EERE

REMEMR - B F o RERITRE
%@Eﬂﬁﬁkéﬂgﬂ’]?ﬁﬁgﬂﬁ PN
HEMBIRRKRMIISREERAZRE
EE’\JEEEE

tﬂ%%

AEAEREEERR  EEEENER
THRBHSERNEHO AT RC SRR - E
RER AR EISFRIEL B HARRERE
RUTE  BEERERR AEENEER
RO AR o

HRHFHTHREARFEERNIRIT &
nBEE (SR EIFRITERLIRITAER)
MEERRER -

$%l5¢tﬁt HESRFPABREESTE
o B HEFN2017%F6 A30 B1G4AE
E M E 5 E WK IEZE3I%(2016%F ¢
75%) c HBABRFPERGCHRL AL
By T REAEREK -

AEBER—EREQFHEEEEFTRER -
ZEVEARN 201746 A30 BIRAREER
B Y BB B ET71% (2016 F ¢
8%) SHER 77%%4%—75 BB

WEY, BB EER

B EXPr &SN ARBEYEETAEME
REESTER -
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E@THE(E)
36b. TREAMEEEERBUER ()

36. Financial Instruments (Continued) 36.

36b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by Management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
Management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and
other sources of funding and considers the risk is minimal.

The following tables provide details of the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities
based on the agreed repayment terms. The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest dates on which the Group can

B E L@

REBRBDE SRR  AEEEZEREF
FEREERRRHNEE LR EEYX
FoURAEEMNELREESLINER
SRERDNTE - EBEEZRITENR
ME MR R E S E IR - R AE
TN

TRANAREFRITESHBEBERHEE
EHROBTAOIHIBER - RFRBR

BAKETHERINEMABENRTH
HEANARMARSARERH - RFRR
EHATRRERE -

be required to pay. The tables include principal cash flows only.

On demand Total
or 0-90 91-365 Over undiscounted Carrying
days days 1year  cash flows amount

RERD AUREE
0Z90H 91%365H —FHE RERHE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BETT BETT

At 30 June 2017 R2017F6A30H

Trade and other payables BHMEMEMNZIE 27,197 27,686 27,686
Amounts due to related companies  JER B A 7508 26 26 26
Amount due to a joint venture [ER—A SN ERIE 2,116 2,116 2,116
29,339 29,828 29,828

On demand Total
or 0-90 91-365 Over  undiscounted Carrying
days days 1 year cash flows amount

ENE AURRS
02908 91%3654 —FLE mEEE FmE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BETT BETT

At 30 June 2016 #2016 6 A30F

Trade and other payables BHREMENTE 22,728 - - 22,728 22,728
Amounts due to related companies  JE{ 78R 2\ 713018 402 = - 402 402
Amount due to a joint venture EN—HaEtERE 3,918 = = 3,918 3,918
27,048 i 2 27,048 27,048
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36. Financial Instruments (Continued)

36¢. Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated statement of financial position approximate their
fair values.

37. Retirement Benefit Plans

0]

(i)

Plans for Hong Kong employees

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("MPF Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong Kong
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in funds under the control of trustees. Under the
rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme at rates
specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with
respect of MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions
under the MPF Scheme. No forfeited contribution is available
to reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

The contribution to the MPF Scheme is calculated based on the
rules set out in the MPF Ordinance which is 5% on the monthly
basic salary of the relevant employee subject to a specific
ceiling of HK$1,500.

Plans for PRC employees

The employees employed in the PRC are members of the state-
managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC
government. The PRC subsidiary is required to contribute a
certain percentage of its payroll to the retirement benefits
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme.

The total cost of HK$1,279,000 (2016: HK$1,207,000) charged to
profit or loss represents contributions paid or payable to the above
schemes by the Group for the year ended 30 June 2017.

ire MR M AT

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z 201746 A30 A L F[E

36. @M T A (&)

36c. 2FE

TREERERABNAFENERAR
EEEARBEMRESREDNMETE °

ERERR REHKAREGEMBRR
RIGEHEMEE,RBBENETMERER
FEMRE -

37. BB E

0]

(i)

FRERESWTE

AEERBARB MBS EGH AEAR
BURBENAERER R —IAEH T
AEEFE((BRESHE]) - BESHE
MEERASBEEESIRKE  E2mX
FEARRS o RIFBTESFTBIWMED - B
N B AR B ARG DIE E w0 L Bl Rt 813
Ko ARBEHBERTENE—FEIR
EaeE e BE L AR R - WE KA
PR AT HBR SR E K o

HaE et SRR EBTES RO
SIMRAETE - ERRBEESAELRH
SH5% MRS ABH,500 THE LR
BRI o

FRTEESWTE

EHEEAEE T AT BB EFNE
REBRERARBANFENOKE - PEKBER
AARERTEMNE T AN LRERAKER
HEERHEAR - ARHENE S - AEH
SR NRA BV — B E TR BT EIME
HPTFR K o

B Z B 48 Ak AR 78 51,279,000 7T (2016 £F -
781,207,000 7T ) IEAE B RE Z=2017F6 A
30 B I F[E A bt s 815 4 sk T RIHEER ©
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38. Related Party Disclosures

U]

Transactions

During the year, the Group entered into the following
significant transactions with related parties:

BT E

CAEBEBEBRT BRI LA TEAR

Name of related parties Notes Nature of transaction 2017 2016
B B8 ME XZMHHE 2017 2016 4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BET T
PM Motion Pictures Limited (@) Service income 271 485
REEZHRBERAR BRI UA
Pegasus Laboratory (International) (b) Film processing services fee
Limited (“Pegasus Laboratory”) 8
REHED(EE) BRAF BEIEMFERG &
(TREHEND)
Pure Project Limited (© Rental expense 1,320
Pure Project Limited HeM%
BPL (d) Production income 2,991
B+ SUEIRA
Ta Creative House (e) Production services fee 2,510

Ta Creative House

RUERTE

Notes:

(a)

162

The service income was received from PM Motion Pictures Limited for
the Group'’s provision of film distribution services. Mr. Wong, Mr.
Wong Chi Woon Edmond and Ms. Wong Yee Kwan Alvina
(collectively referred to as the “Controlling shareholders”) all being
the Directors, collectively have controlling interests over this
company.

The film processing services fee was paid to Pegasus Laboratory in
which it is beneficiary owned by a company collectively controlled by
the Controlling Shareholders at 30 June 2017 and 2016.

The rental expense was paid to Pure Project Limited for the office
premise leased by the Group. Mr. Wong has controlling interests in
Pure Project Limited.

The production income was received from the joint venture, BPL.

The production services fee was paid to Ta Creative House in which
Ms. Wong Kit Fong, the sister of Mr. Wong, has controlling interest.
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GER
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(e)

ZRTUA Ty LA SR B ER 1 22 3 1T AR T 1
ARSEXHRARATMR - #EE &
FlasERERH LT (FHR ERERR])
BRES  HARZAREAZERER -

ZERIEMPENRIS BT S AS T REMED -
ZAA2017 F K 20164 6 A 30 H AR
R HRZEN —HARERES

ZHEERAX I AEEBENRAEYEM
2 i F Pure Project Limited ° & 5t 4 7 Pure
Project Limited # A {2 A% #E 25 -

ZEUEMA B A EEESUE -
Z2AERR 7% & Ty = 4 F Ta Creative House

T8 42 A BB R R 55 & T 2 R 1
Bt 25 -



38. Related Party Disclosures (Continued)

(n

(1)

39. Statement of Financial Position of the

Balances

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Details of the amount due from non-controlling interest,
amounts due to related companies and amount due to a joint
venture are set out in the consolidated statement of financial
position and in notes 28, 29 and 30, respectively.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of Directors and other key management
personnel of the Group during the year was as follows:

ARE MR M AT

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z 201746 A30 A L F[E

(in

(1

38. BT E ()

£=3-0

FE U FEYE AR M 2 R0 ~ PR RE S A R RUE
REM—EEECERENFBED BIEHR
LRE ISR R KT EE 28 ~ 29 & 30 ©
TEEEASTM

FR EERAEERMEIEZEEARN
HrEME s T

Salaries and other allowances

Retirement benefit scheme contributions

Fro RHEAMERL
RIRIEFIET B

2017 2016
2017 & 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
9,413 13,817
104 103
9,517 13,920

The remuneration of Directors and key executives is determined
by the remuneration committee of the Company having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

EERTI2ITHABNF AR QB HM
ZEEEEEARRERTSBEKLET -

39. QBB AR R &

Company
2017 2016
2017 & 2016 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BB
Assets BE
Investment in a subsidiary R—ERBARRHRE 97,196 97,196
Other receivables H th fE Y I 145 145
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG E O] 311,313 203,060
Bank balances RITEERR 20 177
Total assets EEH#AE 408,674 300,578
Liability 8f&
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTH B A R F0E 110,555 -
Total assets less liability EEABRAE 298,119 300,578
Capital and reserves EAXR#E
Share capital (note 31) A& (FFEE31) 6,489 6,309
Share premium and reserves (Note) A7 345 18 M k4 (B aE) 291,630 294,269
298,119 300,578
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39. Statement of Financial Position of the
Company (Continued)

39. AR AB AR R ()

The amounts due from (to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free FEWREEMAHEB AT ZREVEER . @2 RIRE
and repayable on demand. SKAEE o
Note: ffsE -
Share
Share option Special Warrants  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
RDEE BRERE RHRE RAREIRE RitEA @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BETT BETT
At 1]uly 2015 ®2015F7A 18 479,313 = 47,196 495 (178,561) 348,443
Loss for the year and total comprehensive ~ FREBERFERZEF T LE
expenses for the year - - - - (104,286) (104,286)
Recognition of equity-settled share based ~ FEBLAEREE LR G A
payment EROER - 25272 - - - 25,272
Transfer upon share options lapsed TS R ok A - (25,272) - - 25,272 -
Issue of shares upon exercise of warrants T 71 S RRCHERE (£ 35 1T AR D
(note 31) (B3E31) 25,040 - - (200) - 24,840
At 30 June 2016 #201656A30H 504,353 - 47,196 295 (257,575) 294,269
Loss for the year and total comprehensive — FREIE R FEN 2 HEF S A%
expenses for the year - - - - (19,199) (19,199)
Issue of shares upon exercise of warrants T AR EE B TR
(note 31) (M5E31) 16,693 - - (133) - 16,560
Transfer upon warrants expired (note 31)  RAGRRRHE B K A 88 5 (M58 31) - - - (162) 162 -
At 30 June 2017 201756 A30H 521,046 - 47,19 - (276,612) 291,630

Special reserve represented the capital contribution from Honour
Grace which is based on the total equity of Green Riches at the date
of the Reorganisation.

FRIREEREREBERONEA A OESER
EITTE -
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40. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company

a.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE MR M AT

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z 201746 A30 A L F[E

40. XRFIMBARFHE

The Company had the following subsidiaries as a.
at 30 June 2017 and 2016:
Place of Issued and fully Attributable
incorporation/ paid ordinary equity
establishment/  share capital/ interest held by
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital the Company
BRARAE
ML/ LERRE/ KRAARE
WRARER RI/EERE  ARER W RE
2016
2016%F
Green Riches (Note i) BVI US$1 100%
B2 GED) RERIES 1%7
Pegasus Motion Pictures Hong Kong HK$1 100%
Production Limited
AEEYRIFERAT Bk BRI
Pegasus Motion Pictures Hong Kong HKS1 100%
(Hong Kong) Limited
REBm(EE)BRAR Bk BT
Pegasus Motion Pictures BVI US$1 100%
Distribution Limited EERLEE 1%
REEFETBRAA
JERAE (Note i) The PRC HK$1,500,000 100%
SN HE 781,500,000 7
Star Pictures Entertainment Limited BVI US$1 100%
ERREBRAT ERRNES 1571
Star Pictures HK Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%
ERRE(FE) £ 710,000 7T
PMPIL Hong Kong HK$1 100%
REETHR &k BEIT
Cinema City Group Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100%
EYNEBARAR B BRI
Cinema City (Langham Place) Limited  Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100%
EVN (AR BRLA B 713,000,000 70
Cinema City (Chai Wan) Limited (Note iii) Hong Kong HK$ 1 N/A
B (2) BR AR (i) Bk BEIT TER

M2017 FE K% 2016 F6 H30H * &2
AEETIMEBLT :

Proportion
of voting
power held by
the Company

NGl
ZRMLA
2016
20165

Principal activities

IEREH

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

N/A
TER

Investment holding
REHR

Film production

B

Film distribution

EFETHM
Film distribution and production

EVRTHRREE

Service provider of the Group for
facilitating the establishment and
expansion of the Group’s business
in the PRC

FRERURBRASERPEZBN
REERKHES

Representing the Group in entering
into actors’ and film directors’
contracts and film distribution

REAEETLERREFGEANR
EFEMTHR

Representing the Group in entering into
actors' and production crew’s
contracts and film distribution

REARETLRE REFASOR
EFRITHM

Film investment

EYRE

Cinema operations and management

FhERERER

Cinema operations

TREME

Cinema operations

&l
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AN
N=

RIS ERR M e

For the year ended 30 June 2017 # = 201746 A30 AL F[E

40. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company
(Continued)

a.

166

The Company had the following subsidiaries as

at 30 June 2017 and 2016: (Continued)

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid ordinary
establishment/  share capital/
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital
BEARAR
HEMERL/ BRRRA/
WEARERE R/ BEws%  HREX
Cinema City (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$1
(Note iii)
BN (ER)ERAA (W) &k BT
Cinema City (TW) Limited (Note iii) Hong Kong HK$1
B (22)BRAF (i) B BT
Screen Media & Promotion Limited Hong Kong HK$1
YREREBERAR EE BT
Skywork Media Limited (“Skywork”) ~ Hong Kong HK$100
(Note iv)
RERRBRAR(IRE] (M) & AR1007T
Chil Hong Kong HK$10,000
Chil &E 710,000
Powerful Target Investment BVI Us$1
Group Limited
PEHRESEERAR KBRS 1%
Favourable On Global Investment Limited BVI Us100
("Favourable On")
RRERRABRAA(ER]) HERELHE 100%7
Chili Platinum Hong Kong HK$1
EBAE E it A
LR The PRC RMB10,000,000
LR A AR 10,000,000
Le5E The PRC RMBS5,000,000
LE%E G AR 5,000,000 7T
BEXL The PRC RMB4,000,000
BEXL T AR 4,000,0007T
TENEEYRERARLA The PRC RMB7,500,000
(Notes ii &iii)
LENEEYRERARLA Gil? ARE7,500,0007C

(WsEii Riit)
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40. A EIKIE A R F1E ()

a.

Attributable
equity
interest held by
the Company

ADTRE
MR
2016
20165

Proportion
of voting
power held by
the Company

ARARE
REEHLL B

R2017 5% 201656 A308 » &2
AER NIIMBATE - ()

Principal activities

IERB

N/A

TEm
N/A
0l
100%

80%

100%

100%

70%

70%

100%

100%

100%

Cinema operations

ThiEfE

Cinema operations

FREME

Film distribution, advertising and
promotion

EYRTG  BERER

Post-production

& 5E

Provision of advertising and marketing
services

REBERTSEERE

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding

RARR

Provision of printed and digital media
publication business

AR R BB R

Cinema management and operation in
the PRC

REEEERERT R

Film distribution in the PRC

RAEETEY

Cinema operation in the PRC

T IS 2

Cinema operation in the PRC

RPEREYR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company
(Continued)

a.

The Company had the following subsidiaries as
at 30 June 2017 and 2016: (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Except Green Riches, all other subsidiaries are indirectly owned by
the Company.

It is a wholly-foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC.

These subsidiaries were newly incorporated during the year ended 30
June 2017.

On 30 June 2017, Green Riches, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company has acquired the remaining 20% equity interest in Skywork
from the non-controlling shareholder at a consideration of
approximately HK$935,000, in which the consideration was agreed
to be settled by transferring certain of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment at a net gain of HK$123,000 (being the difference of
the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment being
transferred of HK$872,000 and the agreed fair value of
HK$995,000). As a result, the net consideration paid for the
acquisition of 20% equity interest in Skywork is HK$812,000 and a
credit balance to other reserve of HK$53,000 is resulted. Upon the
completion of acquisition, Skywork became an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

ire MR M AT

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z 201746 A30 A L F[E

40. A& RIKIE A R FE ()

a. 20175 K%2016F6H30H » AR
RAEATIIMEAR ()

BYAE -

@

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

BREBARIN -
REEA o

B A E M KB A RS m AR ERE

ZAB RN BERZAINEBE R -

ZEWBARIREZ2017F6 A30HIEFE
RFTEEMAR L

R2017F6 A30H ' AARIZEHBARR
B B AR AR B U KB 85 T 20% A% AE -
RAB XA % 935,000  LABEEE D AEE
WY BERERGEE  EheERSEm
FEERHYF U 25 A8 %5 123,000 7T (BN EE:E A 1)
¥ B RFREREER 872,000t B 4L
€ A (BB % 995,000 T 2 BRI ZEFE) ©
it - KRB 20% IRIES R FRERABE
812,000 7T & & Bt A H b f7# & 4% #4 53,000
TC o MIRBE S IETEKE - REBKARRARK
ME2EHB AR -

RERLFREAERE - &K EARRE
EAIREREBES

REFRUCZERBR AR ~ 2016/17 F3R
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iRe R R M AT

For the year ended 30 June 2017 # = 201746 A30 AL F[E

40. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company
(Continued)

b. Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of the non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company that has material non-controlling

interests:
Place of
incorporation and Proportion of ownership
principal place interests and voting rights held
Name of subsidiary of business by non-controlling interests
Bk FERERSEN
KWEARERE TERERY FEERERREELA
Favourable On BVI 30%
E3 RERAEE

Individual immaterial subsidiary with
non-controlling interests

REFERERNERFEANRAT

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
subsidiary that has a material non-controlling interest is set out
below. The summarised financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations.

PREFERERNGR

40. A EIKIE A R F1E ()

BEEARFEREZNFZENE
A

TREHFEEERFEBRERNNAFI
2EMBARMIE

Accumulated
non-controlling interests

Loss allocated to
non-controlling interests

R FERER
2017 2016 2017 2016
20175 20165 20175 20165

HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
ERTR ABTT ERTR ABTT

485 11,070 (3.478)

a1 491

896 11,561 (3,478)

ERBERERFZERERNAEENTE R
AN BERBEREINWMT - L THBE
RS S BB IR R BN E 5 -

1,276

Favourable On 273
2017 2016
2017 FF 20164F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEET T BT
Current assets TREEE 205 511
Current liabilities mEaE (12,679) (11,760)
Non-current assets EREBEE 881 1,273
Deficit attributable to owners of the Company 7K A1 A AFE(L E5 4t (8,115) (6,983)
Non-controlling interests eI (3,478) (2,993)
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ARE MR M AT

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #Z 201746 A30 A L F[E

40. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company 40. XATME D BFE (&)
(Continued)

b. Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that b. BEEARFEREZNHZENE
have material non-controlling interests NEMEETE (&)

(Continued)
Favourable On (Continued) 2L (&)
Year ended Year ended

30 June 2017 30 June 2016
BE2017 5% HZE 20164

6H30H 6 H30H
IHEE ILEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Revenue & 40 1,544
Expenses X (38,443)
Loss for the year FAEE (36,899)
Loss and total comprehensive expense NAREE ANENEBER
attributable to owners of the Company 2HEMAS A (25,829)
Loss and total comprehensive expense SRR R BIE R
attributable to non-controlling interests FHERZ A% (11,070)
Loss and total comprehensive expense FREEAEEAZEE
for the year (1,615) (36,899)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from operating KEEHIRE (RE) RAFEE
activities 770
Net cash outflow from investing activities B ESHR R L F5E (784)
Net cash inflow from financing activities A EEIR S M A -
Net cash outflow WML FEE (14)
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iRe R R M AT

For the year ended 30 June 2017 # = 201746 A30 AL F[E

41.

170

Commitments 41.

At the end of reporting period, the Group had outstanding
commitments as follows:

IR

RIMERR - AERE W RETAEWT :

2017
2017 F
HK$’000
BT T
Capital commitments: BRI
Capital expenditure in respect of renovations EETHERRER A VSRR D

of the lease contracted for but not provided in BENHEREEARRY

the consolidated financial statements

46,582
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2016
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Financial Summary
I mE

Financial Results MBS
For the year ended 30 June
HZ6H30HLEE
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

20134 20144 20154 20164 2017 &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT BETE A%t LR

Revenue Wz 192,645 134,788 155,240 446,381 225,631
Cost of sales $HE R A (127,362) (75,064)  (108,419)  (259,552) IMEIEEY[)]
Gross profit EF 65,283 59,724 46,821 186,829 116,261
Other gains HAb Uz = = = = 5,353
Other income H A 974 3,532 2,869 4,738 6,593
Selling and distribution expenses SHE RBITHRY (21,794) (15,033) (84,456) (102,820) (110,539)
Administrative expenses THAX (16,976) (22,112) (33,369) (87,674) (43,943)
Net foreign exchange loss Ry E = Dk = = (110) (6,779) (5,016)
Impairment loss on goodwill AEREEE = - (138,000) (43,084)
Impairment loss on intangible asset A& E R EE 18 - - - (20,514)
Impairment loss on other receivable H b fE U iR ZORE & 18 - - - (2,011)
Impairment loss on prepayment for %4 &8 Bl £ /ETE N ZRIBHY

investment in TV series production  JF(EE & - - (15,750) -
Impairment loss on interest inan A —EIE & N El R

associate RIEEE - - - -
Finance costs & R (53) (103) (78) (170) (©)
Other expenses HAbAx (3,806) - - - =
Share of results of associates JEIRERE N T EE - 4,661 (4,548) (234) (1,757)
Share of results of a joint venture {5 — A& & QB4 - - - (2,090) 13,494
Profit (loss) before tax BB AR (E18) 23,628 30,669  (226,621) (73,809) (39,914)
Income tax (expense) credit Fris®i (%) Ex (4,484) (4,283) 9,637 (10,343) (966)
Profit (loss) for the year F R (E1E) 19,144 26,386  (216,984) (84,152) (40,880)

Other comprehensive (expense) FARHMEE () WA
income for the year

Items that may be reclassified FER S EF S EEEm

subsequently to profit or loss HH
Share of exchange difference of JEML—REE AR

an associate arising on translating  FE# &GN G E £ Y

foreign operation M+ 2= - (23) 2 29
Share of exchange difference of EE—HaEhE

a joint venture arising on FMEFINETFE 1

translating foreign operation fEH =R - 1 - (2,485)
Exchange difference on translating /BN /IR E 7 [E 5 =58

foreign operation x & 3 1,503
Total comprehensive income FAZEBA (FXR) 8%

(expense) for the year 19,144 26,363 (216,982) (85,105) (42,129)
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Financial Summary

RGeS

For the year ended 30 June
BE6HA30BLFE
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
20134 20144 20154 20164 2017 &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BRETT BEELERT

Profit (loss) for the year THIA LR FERR A
attributable to: (E518) :
Owners of the Company RATEB A 19,144 26,386  (215,258) (72,591) (39,984)
Non-controlling interests FEFERME = - - (1,726) (11,561) (896)
19,144 26,386  (216,984) (84,152) (40,880)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets BERE 221,761 311,864 584,734 458,804 452,882
Total liabilities BEEEE (27,841) (20,588)  (216,892)  (126,494) | GL=Ll9)

193,920 291,276 367,842 332,310 307,736

Equity attributable to owners of KARER ARG EZ
the Company 193,920 291,276 357,190 334,027 311,214
Non-controlling interests FEPERR - - 10,652 (1,717) (3.478)

193,920 291,276 367,842 332,310 307,736
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